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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-36124

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Pennsylvania 46-211648¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organizatioi Identification No.)

825 Berkshire Blvd., Suite 400
Wyomissing, Pennsylvania 19610
(Address of principal executive offict (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area d@d€) 401-2900
Securities registered pursuant to Sectiip) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which register
Common Stock, par value $.01 per s Nasdac

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(ghefct:
None
Indicate by check mark if the registresnd well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rfeof the Securities Act. YeSl No X
Indicate by check mark if the registresnot required to file reports pursuant to Secfi@ror Section 15(d) of the Act. Ydd No X

Indicate by check mark whether the regigt(1) has filed all reports to be filed by SentlL3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Ac



1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sudhrteh period that the registrant was requiredloduch reports), and (2) has been subject t
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oodtporate Website, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntstio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gribnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Yd@s  No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure efidquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulat®i (8229.405 of this chapter) is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, toltést of the registrant's knowledge, in definifprexy or information statements incorporated
by reference in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or ampendment to this Form 10-Kx

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & nonaccelerated filer, or a smaller report
company. See the definitions of "large accelerfited, "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporticgmpany" in Rule 1212-of the Exchange Ac

Large accelerated file Accelerated filel Non- Smaller reporting compar
O O accelerated file O
(Do not check if a

smaller reporting
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the regittis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12lth@ Exchange Act). Ye&l No

As of June 30, 2013 (the last businegsofighe registrant's most recently completed sddmtal quarter), the registrant's common stoc
was not listed on any exchange or over-the-countgket. The registrant's common stock began tragimtpe NASDAQ Global Select Market
on November 1, 2013. The aggregate market valtieeofoting and non-voting common equity held by-adfiliates computed by reference to
the price at which the common equity was last soldhe NASDAQ Global Select Market on December2B1L3 was $3.5 billion.

The number of shares of the registrast'amon stock outstanding as of March 17, 2014 was1B2,334.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant's definitivexyy statement for its 2014 annual meeting of dhalders are incorporated by reference into
Part 11l of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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IMPORTANT FACTORS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEME NTS

Forward-looking statements in this docunsetsubject to known and unknown risks, uncefitgrdnd other factors that may cause actu
results, performance or achievements of Gaming.amlre Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") and subsidiafigae "Company") to be materially
different from any future results, performance chniavements expressed or implied by such forwaoltittg statements. Forward-looking
statements include information concerning the Camlsabusiness strategy, plans, and goals and olgect

expectatiticipates,” "intends,

Statements preceded by, followed by or dtfa¢rwise include the words "believes, projects,”
"estimates," "plans," "may increase," "may fluceyatind similar expressions or future or conditlarabs such as "will," "should," "would,"
"may" and "could" are generally forward-lookingriature and not historical facts. You should un@dedthat the following important factors
could affect future results and could cause actallts to differ materially from those expresseduch forward-looking statements:

. the ability to receive, or delays in obtainitige regulatory approvals required to own, develuy@er operate our properties, or
other delays or impediments to completing our péghacquisitions or projects, including GLPI's apito qualify as a real este
investment trust;

. our ability to maintain our status as a real estatestment trust and there being no need for arthér dividend of historical
accumulated earnings and profits in order to qualff a real estate investment trust in 2014;

. the ability and willingness of our tenants, opersitand other third parties to meet and/or perfdreirtobligations under their
respective contractual arrangements with us, iniegjdn some cases, their obligations to indemrdfend and hold us harmli
from and against various claims, litigation andbilisies;

. the ability of our tenants and operators to mamtaé financial strength and liquidity necessargdtisfy their respective
obligations and liabilities to third parties, inding without limitation obligations under their sking credit facilities and other
indebtedness;

. the ability of our tenants and operators to clyrmgth laws, rules and regulations in the openmatd our properties, to deliver

high quality services, to attract and retain qiedifpersonnel and to attract customers;

. the availability and the ability to identify suiteband attractive acquisition and development ojpmities and the ability to
acquire and lease the respective properties omdbimterms;

. the degree and nature of our competition;

. the ability to generate sufficient cash flows to/gze our outstanding indebtedness;

. the access to debt and equity capital markets;

. fluctuating interest rates;

. the availability of qualified personnel and @lnility to retain our key management personnel;

. GLPI's duty to indemnify Penn National Gamingg.land Subsidiaries ("Penn") in certain circumstarif the spin-off

transaction described in Part 1 of this Form 1Gisfto be tax-free;

. changes in the United States tax law and otheg,deederal or local laws, whether or not specfificdal estate, real estate
investment trusts or to the gaming, lodging or fitaity industries;

. changes in accounting standards;
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. the impact of weather events or conditions, natdisdsters, acts of terrorism and other internatibostilities, war or political
instability;
. other risks inherent in the real estate businestding potential liability relating to environmahmatters and illiquidity of real

estate investments; and

. additional factors discussed in the sectioniledt'Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussioth Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" in this docotne

Certain of these factors and other factis&s and uncertainties are discussed in the "Ré&kors" section of this document. Other
unknown or unpredictable factors may also causghoesults to differ materially from those proptiby the forwardeoking statements. Mc
of these factors are difficult to anticipate and generally beyond the control of the Company.

You should consider the areas of risk dbedrabove, as well as those set forth under thdihg "Risk Factors," in connection with
considering any forward-looking statements that tm@ynade by the Company generally. Except for tigpimg obligations of the Company to
disclose material information under the federalisigies laws, the Company does not undertake atigaiton to release publicly any revisions
to any forward-looking statements, to report event® report the occurrence of unanticipated evantess required to do so by law.
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This 10-K includes information regarding Penn, axRgylvania corporation. Penn is subject to the répg requirements of the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") anddsired to file with the SEC annual reports conitagnaudited financial information and
quarterly reports containing unaudited financiafanmation. The information related to Penn providedhis 10-K has been derived from
public filings. We have not independently veritieid information. We have no reason to believe st information is inaccurate in a
material respect. We are providing this data fdioimation purposes only. Penn's filings with theCSfan be found atww.sec.gov.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thenter"we," "us,
and subsidiaries, unless the context indicateswibe.

our," the "Company" and "GLPI" ref® Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

On November 15, 2012, Penn announcedtth@ended to pursue a plan to separate the majofrits operating assets and real property
assets into two publicly traded companies includingperating entity, and, through a tax-free spfrof its real estate assets to holders of its
common and preferred stock, a newly formed publicyed real estate investment trust ("REIT"), G[tRé "Spin-Off").

GLPI was incorporated in Pennsylvania obrkary 13, 2013, as a wholly-owned subsidiary afrPén connection with the Spin-Off,
which was completed on November 1, 2013, Penn ibaéd to GLPI through a series of internal corprastructurings substantially all of
the assets and liabilities associated with Peealsproperty interests and real estate developmesibess, as well as the assets and liabilities
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casieorf/ille, which are referred to as the "TRS Prdipst” in a tax-free distribution. As a
result of the Spin-Off, GLPI owns substantially @fllPenn's former real property assets and leasgsrhost of those assets to Penn for use by
its subsidiaries, pursuant to a master lease {ftaster Lease™). The master lease is a "triple-opérating lease with an initial term of 15 years
with no purchase option, followed by four 5-yeanewal options (exercisable by Penn) on the samestand conditions. GLPI also owns and
operates the TRS Properties through its taxabld REbsidiaries ("TRS").

The assets and liabilities of GLPI wereoréed at their respective historical carrying valaethe time of the Spin-Off in accordance with
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standardaio("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("89 505-60, "Spinoffs and Reverse
Spinoffs.”

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn enddrego a Separation and Distribution Agreementsgtiorth the mechanics of the Spin-Off,
certain organizational matters and other ongoirigations of Penn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or thespective subsidiaries, as applicable,
also entered into a number of other agreements farithe Spin-Off to provide a framework for thaetreicturing and for the relationships
between GLPI and Penn.

GLPI's primary business consists of acggirfinancing, and owning real estate propertyadeased to gaming operators in "triple net"
lease arrangements. As of December 31, 2013, Gp&itiolio consisted of 21 gaming and related ftes, including the TRS Properties and
the real property associated with 19 gaming aratedlIfacilities (including two properties under di®pment in Dayton, Ohio and Mahoning
Valley, Ohio) that are geographically diversifiezt@ss 13 states. We expect to grow our portfoliplssuing opportunities to acquire
additional gaming facilities to lease to gamingrapers under prudent terms, which may or may ndtde Penn.

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn allted its accumulated earnings and profits (as mhéed for United States ("U.S.") federal
income tax purposes) for periods prior to the
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consummation of the Spin-Off between Penn and GloRionnection with its election to be taxed asEdTRfor U.S. federal income tax
purposes for the year ending December 31, 2014 ) @&#lared a special dividend to its shareholdedidtribute any accumulated earnings
and profits relating to the real property assetsattributable to any pre-REIT years, including a@aynings and profits allocated to GLPI in
connection with the Spin-Off, to comply with cent&®EIT qualification requirements (the "Purging tiilsution"). The Purging Distribution,
which was paid on February 18, 2014, totaled $bilisn and was comprised of cash and GLPI comntonks Shareholders were given the
option to elect either an all-cash or sibck dividend, subject to a total cash limitatafr$210 million. Of 88,691,827 million shares ofemon
stock outstanding on the record date, approxim&i4l8% elected the cash distribution and approxaipat5.7% elected a stock distribution or
made no election. Shareholders electing cash reddi¥.358049 plus 0.195747 additional GLPI shasespmmon share held on the record
date. Shareholders electing stock received 0.308@8#ional GLPI shares per common share held emgbord date. Stock dividends were
paid based on the volume weighted average pricéhéothree trading days ended February 13, 2058822162 per share. Approximately
22.0 million shares were issued in connection with dividend payment.

Tax Status

We intend to elect on our U.S. federal medax return for our taxable year beginning orudan 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT and
intend to continue to be organized and to operagernanner that will permit us to qualify as a RET® qualify as a REIT, we must meet
certain organizational and operational requiremeéntduding a requirement to distribute at leas¥®6f our annual REIT taxable income to
shareholders. As a REIT, we generally will not bbjsct to federal income tax on income that werithiste as dividends to our shareholders. If
we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeag will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, inlihg any applicable alternative minimum t
on our taxable income at regular corporate incaredtes, and dividends paid to our shareholdersgdvmot be deductible by us in computing
taxable income. Any resulting corporate liabiliyutd be substantial and could materially and adhgraffect our net income and net cash
available for distribution to shareholders. Unlesswere entitled to relief under certain InternalBnue Code (the "Code") provisions, we als
would be disqualified from re-electing to be taxeda REIT for the four taxable years following ytear in which we failed to qualify to be
taxed as a REIT.

Our TRS Properties are able to engagetiviis resulting in income that is not qualifyimgcome for a REIT. As a result, certain
activities of the Company which occur within our SRroperties are subject to federal and state indaxes.

Tenants

As of December 31, 2013, all of the Compspyoperties with the exception of the TRS prapenvere leased to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Penn under the Master Lease.

Penn is a leading, diversified, multi-jalitctional owner and manager of gaming and pari-mlytwoperties, and an established gaming
provider with strong financial performance. Theigations under the Master Lease are guarantee@y &nd by all Penn subsidiaries that
occupy and operate the facilities leased undeMgter Lease, or that own a gaming license, otbense or other material asset necessary to
operate any portion of the facilities. A defaultBgnn or its subsidiaries with regard to any facikill cause a default with regard to the entire
portfolio.

We will seek to cultivate our relationshipgh tenants and gaming providers in order to exjide mixture of tenants operating our
properties and, in doing so, to reduce our depeatelen Penn. We expect that this objective will tleieved over time as part of our overall
strategy to acquire new properties and furtherrdifgeour overall portfolio of gaming propertiesoFinstance, in January

2
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2014, GLPI closed on an agreement to acquire tleegate assets associated with the Casino Qnéseast St. Louis, Illinois. The Casino
Queen property is operated by the former ownersyaunt to a long-term lease with terms and conditemilar to the Master Lease.

The rent structure under the Master Leatie Renn includes a fixed component, a portion bicl is subject to an annual 2% escalator if
certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are metaatmmponent that is based on the performancesdfttilities, which is adjusted, subject to
certain floors (i) every 5 years by an amount equdl% of the average change to net revenues tdalities under the Master Lease (other
than Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casiiotedo) during the preceding five years, andnignthly by an amount equal to 20%
of the net revenues of Hollywood Casino Columbus ldollywood Casino Toledo during the preceding rhoivt addition to rent, all properti
under the Master Lease with Penn are requiredytdhmafollowing: (1) all facility maintenance, (2)l insurance required in connection with
leased properties and the business conducted deabed properties, (3) taxes levied on or witpeesto the leased properties (other than 1
on the income of the lessor) and (4) all utilittesl other services necessary or appropriate fdetised properties and the business conducte
on the leased properties.

At Penn's option, the Master Lease withrPmay be extended for up to four 5-year renewahsdneyond the initial 15-year term, on the
same terms and conditions. If Penn elects to rehevierm of the Master Lease, the renewal will tiecéve as to all, but not less than all, of
the leased property then subject to the Masterd,gasvided that the final renewal option shallyoné exercisable with respect to certain o
barge-based facilities—i.e., facilities where bargerve as foundations upon which buildings aretrocted to serve as gaming or related
facilities or serve ancillary purposes such as sspéatforms or shear barges to protect a gamuilityafrom floating debris—following an
independent third party expert's review of theltoseful life of the applicable barged-based facitheasured from the beginning of the initial
term. If the final five-year renewal term would roatuse the aggregate term to exceed 80% of thaluisefof such facility, the facility shall be
included in the five-year renewal. In the event théive-year renewal of such facility would caiitse exceed 80% of the estimated useful life,
such facility shall be included in the renewal tioe period of time equal to but not exceeding 80%e estimated useful life.

Penn will not have the ability to terminéteobligations under the Master Lease priordaeitpiration without the Company's consent. If
the Master Lease is terminated prior to its exirabther than with our consent, Penn may be lifdnielamages and incur charges such as
continued payment of rent through the end of thedegerm and maintenance costs for the leasedrprope

3
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The following table summarizes certain tea$ of our properties as of December 31, 2013:

Tenants
Hollywood
Casino
Lawrenceb!
Hollywood
Casino
Aurora
Hollywood
Casino
Joliet
Argosy
Casino
Alton
Hollywood
Casino
Toledo
Hollywood
Casino
Columbus
Hollywood
Casino at
Charles
Town Race
Hollywood
Casino at
Penn
National
Race
Course
M Resort
Hollywood
Casino
Bangor

Zia Park
Casino
Hollywood
Casino Bay
St. Louis
Argosy
Casino
Riverside
Hollywood
Casino
Tunica
Boomtown
Biloxi
Argosy
Casino
Sioux City
Hollywood
Casino
St. Louis

Under

Developme
Hollywood
Gaming at
Dayton
Raceway

Hollywood

Approx.
Property
Square Owned Leased Hotel
Location Type of Facility Footage(1) Acreage Acreage(2) Rooms
Lawrenceburg
IN Dockside gaming 634,00( 74.1 32.1 29t
Aurora, IL Dockside gaminy 222,18 0.4 2.1 —
Joliet, IL Dockside gaming 322,44¢ 276. — 10C
Alton, IL Dockside gaming 241,76: 0.2 3.€ —
Toledo, OH Lanc-based gamin 285,33! 44.: — —
Columbus, OF Lanc-based gamin 354,07! 116.2 — —
Land-based
Charles Town gaming/Thoroughbre
\WAY racing 511,24¢ 298.¢ — 152
Land-based
gaming/Thoroughbre
Grantville, PA racing 451,75¢ 573.7 — —
Henderson, N' Lanc-based gamin 910,17¢ 87.€ — 39C
Land-based
gaming/Harness
Bangor, ME racing 257,08! 6.7 27.C 152
Land-based
gaming/Thoroughbre
Hobbs, NM racing 109,06° 317. — —
Bay St. Louis,
MS Lanc-based gamin 425,92( 579.¢ — 291
Riverside, MC Dockside gaminy 450,39° 41 — 25¢
Tunica, MS Dockside gaming 315,83: — 67.1 494
Biloxi, MS Dockside gaming 134,80( 1.€ 26.€ —
Sioux City, IA  Dockside gaminy 73,04¢ — 4.€ —
Maryland
Heights, MO  Lanc-based gamin 645,27( 247.¢ — 502
Land-based
gaming/Harness
Dayton, OH racing — 119.¢ — —



Gaming at

Mahoning Land-based

Valley Race Youngstown, gaming/Thoroughbre

Course OH racing — 193.¢ — —
6,344,40. 2,978.° 163.7 2,63

TRS

Properties

Hollywood

Casino

Baton Baton Rouge,

Rouge LA Dockside gaming 120,51 28.¢ — —

Hollywood

Casino

Perryville  Perryville, MD Lanc-based gamin 97,96 36.4 — —
218,47t 65.2 — —

Total 6,562,88. 3,044.( 163.7 2,63

Q) Square footage includes conditioned spacesanllides parking garages and barns.

(2) Leased acreage reflects land subject to leagkghird parties and includes land on which airtof the current facilities
and ancillary supporting structures are locatedebas parking lots and access rigl

4
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Hollywood Casino Lawrencebui

We own 74.1 acres and lease 32.1 acreawrdnceburg, Indiana, a portion of which servethasiockside embarkation for the gaming
vessel, and includes a Hollywood-themed casinabivat, an entertainment pavilion, a 295-room hated, parking garages and an adjacent
surface lot, with the other portion used for remudieking.

Hollywood Casino Auror:

We own a dockside barge structure and kzaskd pavilion in Aurora, Illinois. We own the lamehich is approximately 0.4 acres, on
which the pavilion is located and a pedestrian walk bridge. The property also includes a parkingifader an operating lease agreement anc
two parking garages under capital lease agreemegether comprising over 2 acres.

Hollywood Casino Jolie

We own 276 acres in Joliet, lllinois, whicdleludes a barge-based casino, land-based pawvii®60-room hotel, a 1,100 space parking
garage, surface parking areas and a recreatiohalegark.

Argosy Casino Alto

We lease 3.6-acres in Alton, lllinois, atfm of which serves as the dockside boardingHerAlton Belle I, a riverboat casino. The
dockside facility includes an entertainment paviland office space, as well as surface parkingsaréth 1,341 spaces. In addition, we own an
office building property consisting of 0.2 acres.

Hollywood Casino Toled

We own a 44-acre site in Toledo, Ohio, vehleenn opened Hollywood Casino Toledo on May 29220he property includes the casino
as well as structured and surface parking.

Hollywood Casino Columbt

We own 116 acres of land in Columbus, Oioere Penn opened Hollywood Casino Columbus ooliect8, 2012. The property incluc
the casino as well as structured and surface garkin

Hollywood Casino at Charles Town Ra

We own 300 acres on various parcels in lEedarown and Ranson, West Virginia of which 15%aaomprise Hollywood Casino at
Charles Town Races. The facility includes a 153wdmtel and a 3/4-mile all-weather lighted thordogiu racetrack, a training track, two
parking garages, an employee parking lot, an eadlgsandstand/clubhouse and housing facilitiee¥er 1,300 horses.

Hollywood Casino at Penn National Race Col

We own 574 acres in Grantville, Pennsylaanihere Penn National Race Course is located brad&s. The facility includes a one-mile
all-weather lighted thoroughbred racetrack andBanile turf track, a parking garage and surfacéiparspaces. The property also includes
approximately 393 acres surrounding the Penn NaltiRace Course that are available for future expans development.

5
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M Resori

We own 88 acres on the southeast cornea®iVegas Boulevard and St. Rose Parkway in HeadeMevada, where the M Resort is
located. The M Resort property includes a 390-rbanel, a 4,700 space parking facility, and otheilitées.

Hollywood Casino Bangc

We own and lease the land on which theywabd Casino Bangor facility is located in Banddaine, which consists of just over 9 aci
and includes a 152-room hotel and four-story paykin addition, we lease 25 acres located at hisBaiss Park, which is adjacent to the
facility, which includes a one-half mile standaréd racetrack and a grandstand with over 12,008rsedeet and seating for 3,500 patrons.

Zia Park Casino

The casino adjoins the racetrack and iatexton 317 acres that we own in Hobbs, New Mexibe. property includes a one-mile
quarter/thoroughbred racetrack. In September 2P&8n began construction of a new hotel, budget8@@&®2 million which will include 150
rooms, six suites, a board/meeting room, exerdise#s facilities and a breakfast venue.

Hollywood Casino Bay St. Lot

We own 580 acres in the city of Bay St. ispiississippi, including a 20-slip marina. The@perty includes a land-based casino, 18-hole
golf course, a 291-room hotel, and other facilities

Argosy Casino Riversic

We own 41 acres in Riverside, Missouri, ebhincludes a barge-based casino, a 258-room Itxatel, an entertainment/banquet facility
and a parking garage.

Hollywood Casino Tunic

We lease 68 acres of land in Tunica, M#gfs. The property includes a single-level casmd94-room hotel, surface parking and other
land-based facilities.

Boomtown Bilox

We lease 18.2 acres, most of which isagilifor the gaming location. We also lease 5 aafresbmerged tidelands at the casino site fron
the State of Mississippi, lease 3.6 acres for pgrkown 1.2 acres of land mostly used for parking &welcome center, and own 0.4 acres of
undeveloped land. We own the barge on which thimgas located and all of the land-based facilities

Argosy Casino Sioux Ci

We lease 4.1 acres, for the landing riginid parking, which includes the dockside embarkdto the Argosy IV, a riverboat casino. We
own the Argosy IV and adjacent barge facilities. &liko lease 0.4 acres primarily used for employekipg.

Hollywood Casino St. Lou

We own 248 acres along the Missouri RimeMiaryland Heights, Missouri, which includes a 502m hotel and structure and surface
parking.
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Properties Under Development
Hollywood Gaming at Dayton Racew

We own 119 acres in Dayton, Ohio, whereaveedeveloping a new integrated racing and ganaoijjtf/, which we anticipate completing
in the fall of 2014 at which time it will be leasteglPenn.

Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race CoL

We own 193 acres in Youngstown, Ohio, wiveeeare developing a new integrated racing and iggufisicility, which we anticipate
completing in the fall of 2014 at which time it Wile leased to Penn.

TRS Properties
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouq

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge is a docksiderboat gaming facility operating in Baton Rougeuisiana. The riverboat features
approximately 28,000 square feet of gaming spate 943 gaming machines and 18 table games. Thigyadso includes a two-story, 58,000
square foot dockside building featuring a varidtamenities, including a steakhouse, a 268-sedétu deli, a premium players' lounge, a
nightclub, a lobby bar, a public atrium, two megtmoms and 1,490 parking spaces.

Hollywood Casino Perryvilli

Hollywood Casino Perryville is located ditlg off Interstate 95 in Cecil County, MarylandsjB5 miles northeast of Baltimore and 70
miles from Washington, D.C. Hollywood Casino Peiilgvis a Hollywood-themed facility which offers 329 square feet of gaming space
with 1,158 slot machines. On March 5, 2013, talalmes were opened at Hollywood Casino Perryvilllmfahg a November 2012 referendum
authorizing the ability to add table games to Mangl's five existing and planned casinos. At DecerBihe2013, Hollywood Casino Perryville
had 12 table games and 10 poker tables. The faalbb offers various food and beverage optiorduding a bar and grill, a gift shop and
1,600 parking spaces with valet and self-parking.

Competition

We compete for real property investmenthwiher REITS, investment companies, private gauiid hedge fund investors, sovereign
funds, lenders, gaming companies and other inv&sBmme of our competitors are significantly larged have greater financial resources anc
lower costs of capital than we have. Increased editigmn will make it more challenging to identifyp@ successfully capitalize on acquisition
opportunities that meet our investment objectives.

In addition, revenues from our gaming prtipe are dependent on the ability of our gamimgtes and operators to compete with other
gaming operators. The gaming industry is charamdrby an increasingly high degree of competitimorag a large number of participants,
including riverboat casinos, dockside casinos,Jaasked casinos, video lottery, sweepstakes and paokehines not located in casinos, Native
American gaming, emerging varieties of Internet g@nand other forms of gaming in the U.S. In a bieyasense, the gaming operations at ou
gaming tenants and operators face competition fihmanner of leisure and entertainment activitiesluding: shopping; athletic events;
television and movies; concerts and travel. Legaligaming is currently permitted in various formmotighout the U.S., in several Canadian
provinces and on various lands taken into trusttferbenefit of certain Native Americans in the Lh8d Canada. Other jurisdictions, including
states adjacent to states in which our gaming tereard operators are located (such as in Ohio aargl®&hd), have legalized, and will expand
gaming in the near future. In addition, establispanhing jurisdictions could award additional gamiicgnses or permit the expansion or
relocation of existing
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gaming operations. New, relocated or expanded tipesaby other persons will increase competitiondior gaming tenants and operators and
could have a material adverse impact on our gateingnts and operators and us as landlord. Firthlyimposition of smoking bans and/or
higher gaming tax rates have a significant impactgaming tenants and operators' ability to compétie facilities in nearby jurisdictions.

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywdgakino Perryville recently faced additional comipeti Hollywood Casino Perryville's
results have been and will continue to be negativepacted by the opening of a casino complex, Néany Live!, at the Arundel Mills mall in
Anne Arundel, Maryland. The casino opened on Jyrg®62 with approximately 3,200 slot machines agdifcantly increased its slot
machine offerings in mid-September 2012 to appraxéty 4,750 slot machines, as well as opened tgbiees on April 11, 2013 and opened a
52 table poker room in late August 2013. Additidyah proposed mid-2014 opening of a $400 milliasino in Baltimore City County will
also negatively impact our operations at Hollyw@asino Perryville. Furthermore, in November 201ftevs approved legislation authorizing
a sixth casino in Prince George's County and tligyato add table games to Maryland's five exigtend planned casinos. The new law also
changes the tax rate casino operators pay the stageéng from casino to casino, allows all casiioMaryland to be open 24 hours per day fol
the entire year, and permits casinos to directlgipase slot machines in exchange for gaming taxctezhs. For our Hollywood Casino
Perryville facility, table games were opened on ¢liab, 2013 and the tax rate will decrease upompleming of the Prince George casino from
67 percent to 61 percent with an option for an galtil 5 percent reduction if an independent corsinisagrees. In December 2013, the
license for the sixth casino in Prince George'srifpwas granted. The proposed $925 million casitoch can not open until the earlier of
July 2016 or 30 months after the casino being lnuiBaltimore opens, will adversely impact Hollywb@asino Perryville's financial results. In
Louisiana, a new riverboat casino and hotel in B&&ouge opened on September 1, 2012. The openihisafverboat casino has and will
continue to have an adverse effect on the finamegllts of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge.

Segments

Consistent with how our Chief Operating B@m Maker (as such term is defined in ASC 280gt8ent Reporting") reviews and assesse:
our financial performance, we have two reportakignsents, GLP Capital, L.P. (a wholly-owned subsjda GLPI through which GLPI owns
substantially all of its assets) ("GLP Capital"fahe TRS Properties. The GLP Capital reportabyensmt consists of the leased real property
and represents the majority of our business. Thg PRoperties reportable segment consists of Holbglw@asino Perryville and Hollywood
Casino Baton Rouge. See "ltem 7—Management's Digmusnd Analysis of Financial Condition and ResoftOperations" and "ltem 8—
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data—NoteSg€gment Information” for further information witespect to the Company's
segments.

Management
Name Age Position
Peter M. Carlinc 67 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi
William J. Clifford 56 Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasi
Steven T. Synde 53 Senior Vice President of Corporate Developn
Brandon J. Moor 39 Senior Vice President and General Coul

Peter M. Carlino. Mr. Carlino is Chairman of our Board of Direrg@nd Chief Executive Officer. Prior to the Spiff;Mr. Carlino
served as Penn's Chief Executive Officer sincelA@94. After the Spin-Off, Mr. Carlino no longegrses as an officer of Penn, however, he
continues in his role as Penn's Chairman of thedofDirectors. Since 1976, Mr. Carlino has beessklent of
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Carlino Capital Management Corp. (formerly knowrCaslino Financial Corporation), a holding compdingt owns and operates various
Carlino family businesses, in which capacity he besn continuously active in strategic planning awhitoring the operations.

William J. Clifford. ~ Mr. Clifford is our Chief Financial Officer, $getary and Treasurer. Prior to the Spin-off, Miff@rd served as
Penn's Senior Vice President-Finance and ChiefniahOfficer since October 2001. After the Spir,®Ar. Clifford no longer serves as an
officer of Penn. From March 1997 to July 2001, Klifford served as the Chief Financial Officer @ehior Vice President of Finance with
Sun International Resorts, Inc., Paradise Islamthahas. From November 1993 to February 1997, Nffo@l was Financial, Hotel and
Operations Controller for Treasure Island Hotel &adino in Las Vegas. From May 1989 to NovembeB18#. Clifford was Controller for
Golden Nugget Hotel and Casino, Las Vegas. Pritdddg 1989, Mr. Clifford held the positions of Cauiter for the Dunes Hotel and Casino,
Las Vegas, Property Operations Analyst with Aladdotel and Casino, Las Vegas, Casino Administraitr Las Vegas Hilton, Las Vegas,
Senior Internal Auditor with Del Webb, Las Vegasdaigent, Audit Division, of the Nevada Gaming GohBoard, Las Vegas and Reno.

Steven T. Synder. Mr. Synder is our Senior Vice President of Gogbe Development. Mr. Synder joined us in conoectvith the
Spin-Off on November 1, 2013. Prior to the Spin;@# was Penn's Senior Vice President of Corp@atelopment from 2003 and was
responsible for identifying and conducting interaal industry analysis of potential acquisitiorestperships and other opportunities. He
joined Penn in May 1998 through 2001 as Vice Pesgidf Corporate Development. Prior to joining Pavin Synder was a partner wi
Hamilton Partners, Ltd., as well as Managing Diectf Municipal and Corporate Investment BankingNteridian Capital Markets.

Mr. Synder began his career in finance at Butch&igger, where he served as First Vice PresideRubfic Finance.

Brandon J. Moore. Mr. Moore joined us in January 2014 as Senige\President and General Counsel. Previouslyehed as a Vic
President, Senior Corporate Counsel at Penn frometM2010 where he was a member of the legal teaponsible for a variety of
transactional, regulatory and general legal mattnisr to joining Penn, Mr. Moore was with Ballggahr, LLP, where he provided advanced
legal counsel to clients on matters including meegel acquisition transactions, debt and equitgrfaings, and various other matters.

Tax Considerations

We intend to elect to be treated as a RIEIDur U.S. federal income tax return for our tdgafear beginning on January 1, 2014 and we
together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiafythe Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to fhjirelect to treat each of GLP
Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. Redn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsyd effective on the first day of the first
taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. We intend to cargito be organized and to operate in a mannewiligtermit us to qualify as a REIT.
Qualification and taxation as a REIT depends onadnility to meet on a continuing basis, throughuatbperating results, distribution levels,
and diversity of stock ownership, various qualifica requirements imposed upon REITs by the Code.ability to qualify to be taxed as a
REIT also requires that we satisfy certain tegigjesof which depend upon the fair market valuesssets that we own directly or indirectly.
The material qualification requirements are sumpeatibelow. Such values may not be susceptiblgtease determination. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that the actual resultsraderations for any taxable year will satisfylsuequirements for qualification and taxation
as a REIT. Additionally, while we intend to operatethat we continue to qualify to be taxed as #TREO assurance can be given that the
Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") will not cleallje our qualification, or that we will be ableofmerate in accordance with the REIT
requirements in the future.
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Taxation of REITs in General

As a REIT, generally we will be entitledaaleduction for dividends that we pay and theeefaill not be subject to U.S. federal corporate
income tax on our net REIT taxable income thatisently distributed to our shareholders. Thistirent substantially eliminates the "double
taxation" at the corporate and shareholder levetsdenerally results from an investment in a @omation. A "C corporation” is a corporation
that generally is required to pay tax at the camflevel. Double taxation means taxation onchetbrporate level when income is earned
once again at the shareholder level when the indgemistributed. In general, the income that weegate is taxed only at the shareholder level
upon a distribution of dividends to our sharehadd&ve will nonetheless be subject to U.S. fedevalr the following circumstances:

. We will be taxed at regular corporate rates onuwamgistributed net taxable income, including undistied net capital gains.

. We may be subject to the "alternative minimum tax'our items of tax preference, including any déidas of net operating
losses.

. If we have net income from prohibited transactiomigich are, in general, sales or other dispositafriaventory or property he

primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary smuof business, other than foreclosure propeush sncome will be subject to
a 100% tax.

. If we elect to treat property that we acquire immection with a foreclosure of a mortgage loanestain leasehold terminations
as "foreclosure property,” we may thereby avoidib@% tax on gain from a resale of that propeftth@ sale would otherwise
constitute a prohibited transaction), but the inednom the sale or operation of the property maguigect to corporate income
tax at the highest applicable rate (currently 35%).

. If we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income test/anthe 95% gross income test, as discussed bélatwonetheless maintain ¢
qualification as a REIT because we satisfy othguirements, we will be subject to a 100% tax omemount based on the
magnitude of the failure, as adjusted to refleetpofit margin associated with our gross income.

. If we violate the asset tests (other than cedaiminimisviolations) or other requirements applicable to RElas described
below, and yet maintain our qualification as a RBECause there is reasonable cause for the faihd@ther applicable
requirements are met, we may be subject to a petaxit In that case, the amount of the penaltydbbe at least $50,000 per
failure, and, in the case of certain asset tektr&s, will be determined as the amount of netime@enerated by the
nonqualifying assets in question multiplied by kiighest corporate tax rate (currently 35%) if tistount exceeds $50,000 per
failure.

. If we fail to distribute during each calendaayat least the sum of (i) 85% of our ordinary imeofor such year, (ii) 95% of our
capital gain net income for such year and (iii) angdistributed net taxable income from prior pesiogte will be subject to a
nondeductible 4% excise tax on the excess of tpained distribution over the sum of (a) the amouh& we actually distribute
and (b) the amounts we retained and upon whichaigtipcome tax at the corporate level.

. We may be required to pay monetary penaltiekeddRS in certain circumstances, including if \aé fo meet record-keeping
requirements intended to monitor our compliancé wiles relating to the composition of a REIT'srehalders.

. A 100% tax may be imposed on transactions betweemd a TRS that do not reflect arm's-length terms.
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. If we acquire appreciated assets from a corpordlianis not a REIT (i.e., a corporation taxabldemsubchapter C of the Code)
in a transaction in which the adjusted tax basithefassets in our hands is determined by referteniteeadjusted tax basis of t
assets in the hands of the subchapter C corporatimmay be subject to tax on such appreciatidheahighest corporate incor
tax rate then applicable if we subsequently recogygiain on a disposition of any such assets dihiagenyear period following
their acquisition from the subchapter C corporation

. The earnings of our TRSs will generally be subjedt.S. federal corporate income tax.

In addition, we and our subsidiaries magblgject to a variety of taxes, including payrakés and state, local, and foreign income,
property, gross receipts and other taxes on oetsaasd operations. We could also be subject totatuations and on transactions not
presently contemplated.

Requirements for Qualificati—General

The Code defines a REIT as a corporatioist br association:

1. that is managed by one or more trustees octdig

2. the beneficial ownership of which is evidenbgdransferable shares, or by transferable ceatifie of beneficial interest;
3. that would be taxable as a domestic corporatiorfdatits election to be subject to tax as a REIT;

4, that is neither a financial institution nor an ireuce company subject to specific provisions ofGoee;

5. the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100rmre persons;

6. in which, during the last half of each taxable ye@mt more than 50% in value of the outstandingkste owned, directly or
indirectly, by five or fewer "individuals” (as da#d in the Code to include specified tax-exempgties}; and

7. that meets other tests described below, inatudiith respect to the nature of its income anétass

The Code provides that conditions (1) tigto4) must be met during the entire taxable yaad, that condition (5) must be met during at
least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 monthsudnd a proportionate part of a shorter taxable y€anditions (5) and (6) need not be met
during a corporation's initial tax year as a RBNhiCh, in our case, will be 2014). Our charter pdes restrictions regarding the ownership anc
transfers of our stock, which are intended to &ssisn satisfying the stock ownership requiremeletscribed in conditions (5) and (6) above.
These restrictions, however, may not ensure thatiegn all cases, be able to satisfy the shasmership requirements described in
conditions (5) and (6) above. If we fail to satifiiigse share ownership requirements, except agprbin the next sentence, our status as a
REIT will terminate. If, however, we comply withahules contained in applicable U.S. DepartmethefTreasury (the "Treasury") regulati
that require us to ascertain the actual ownershiuoshares and we do not know, or would not Hax@vn through the exercise of reasonable
diligence, that we failed to meet the requiremeletscribed in condition (6) above, we will be trelads having met this requirement.

To monitor compliance with the stock owtgpsrequirements, we generally are required to ta@rrecords regarding the actual
ownership of our stock. To do so, we must demaritlenrstatements each year from the record holofesgynificant percentages of our stock
pursuant to which the record holders must disclbsectual owners of the stock (i.e., the persegsired to include
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our dividends in their gross income). We must nama list of those persons failing or refusingéonply with this demand as part of our
records. We could be subject to monetary penaftigs fail to comply with these record-keeping regments. If, upon request by the
Company, a stockholder fails or refuses to compti the demands, such holder will be required byaBury regulations to submit a statemen
with his, her or its tax return disclosing the attownership of our stock and other information.

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

In general, we may jointly elect with a sigliary corporation, whether or not wholly-ownea fteat such subsidiary corporation as a TRS
We generally may not own more than 10% of the seesiof a taxable corporation, as measured bynggtiower or value, unless we and such
corporation elect to treat such corporation as 8. TRhe separate existence of a TRS or other taxaleration is not ignored for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Accordingly, a TRS or othealtée subsidiary corporation generally is subjeatdrporate income tax on its earnings,
which may reduce the cash flow that we and ourididrées generate in the aggregate and may redurcehility to make distributions to our
shareholders.

We are not treated as holding the assesI@RS or other taxable subsidiary corporationsoregeiving any income that the subsidiary
earns. Rather, the stock issued by a taxable sabsicbrporation to us is an asset in our handd veatreat the dividends paid to us from such
taxable subsidiary corporation, if any, as incofftg@s treatment can affect our income and asset#dstilations, as described below. Because
we do not include the assets and income of TR®¢her taxable subsidiary corporations on a ltdulough basis in determining our complial
with the REIT requirements, we may use such estitleundertake indirectly activities that the REliles might otherwise preclude us from
doing directly or through pass-through subsidiartes example, we may use TRSs or other taxablsidialoy corporations to perform services
or conduct activities that give rise to certainegatries of income or to conduct activities thatahducted by us directly, would be treated ir
hands as prohibited transactions.

The TRS rules limit the deductibility otémest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parent R&l@ssure that the TRS is subject to an
appropriate level of corporate taxation. Furthieg, tules impose a 100% excise tax on transactietvegen a TRS and its parent REIT or the
REIT's tenants that are not conducted on an aengtt basis. We intend that all of our transactigite our TRS, if any, will be conducted on
an arm's-length basis.

Income Test

As a REIT, we must satisfy two gross incaeguirements on an annual basis. First, at |eztgt Gf our gross income for each taxable y
excluding gross income from sales of inventory @aildr property in "prohibited transactions," diggesof indebtedness and certain hedging
transactions, generally must be derived from "rénats real property,” gains from the sale of resthée assets, interest income derived from
mortgage loans secured by real property (includertgin types of mortgage-backed securities), divit$ received from other REITs, and
specified income from temporary investments. Secahtkast 95% of our gross income in each taxgdde, excluding gross income from
prohibited transactions, discharge of indebtedaesscertain hedging transactions, must be deringgd §ome combination of income that
qualifies under the 75% gross income test descrélbede, as well as other dividends, interest, & fjom the sale or disposition of stock or
securities, which need not have any relation tbpeaperty. Income and gain from certain hedgimgsactions will be excluded from both the
numerator and the denominator for purposes of thatfy5% and 95% gross income tests.
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We may directly or indirectly receive dibtrtions from TRSs or other corporations that aeREITs or qualified REIT subsidiaries.
These distributions generally are treated as diddacome to the extent of the earnings and profithe distributing corporation. Such
distributions will generally constitute qualifyirigcome for purposes of the 95% gross income testhbt for purposes of the 75% gross
income test. Any dividends that we receive fromth@oREIT or qualified REIT subsidiary, however|lie qualifying income for purposes of
both the 95% and 75% gross income tests.

If we fail to satisfy one or both of the%3%r 95% gross income tests for any taxable yeamnay still qualify to be taxed as a REIT for
such year if we are entitled to relief under apdie provisions of the Code. These relief provisiwiill be generally available if (i) our failure
to meet these tests was due to reasonable causmtadde to willful neglect and (ii) following ouglentification of the failure to meet the 75%
or 95% gross income test for any taxable year,il@a@fschedule with the IRS setting forth each itdrour gross income for purposes of the
75% or 95% gross income test for such taxable iyeaccordance with Treasury regulations, which hasteyet been issued. It is not possibl
state whether we would be entitled to the benétihese relief provisions in all circumstanceghése relief provisions are inapplicable to a
particular set of circumstances, we will not quatd be taxed as a REIT. Even if these relief piovis apply, and we retain our status as a
REIT, the Code imposes a tax based upon the anbgumhich we fail to satisfy the particular grosseme test.

Asset Test

At the close of each calendar quarter, wstralso satisfy four tests relating to the natfreur assets. First, at least 75% of the value of
our total assets must be represented by some catidnirof "real estate assets," cash, cash itens, ddvernment securities, and, under some
circumstances, stock or debt instruments purchagthchew capital. For this purpose, real estatetassclude interests in real property and
stock of other corporations that qualify as REdswell as some kinds of mortgage-backed secudtidamortgage loans. Assets that do not
qualify for purposes of the 75% asset test areestiltp the additional asset tests described below.

Second, the value of any one issuer's gesuthat we own may not exceed 5% of the valueusftotal assets.

Third, we may not own more than 10% of ang issuer's outstanding securities, as measuredhsr voting power or value. The 5% and
10% asset tests do not apply to securities of T&8squalified REIT subsidiaries and the 10% assttdoes not apply to "straight debt" hax
specified characteristics and to certain otheriéesi described below. Solely for purposes of1&6 asset test, the determination of our
interest in the assets of a partnership or limliggaility company in which we own an interest wik based on our proportionate interest in any
securities issued by the partnership or limiteHility company, excluding for this purpose certaécturities described in the Code.

Fourth, the aggregate value of all seasgitf TRSs that we hold, together with other noalifiad assets (such as furniture and equipmer
or other tangible personal property, or non-retdtessecurities) may not, in the aggregate, ex28é4l of the value of our total assets.

However, certain relief provisions are &afgle to allow REITSs to satisfy the asset requirets®r to maintain REIT qualification
notwithstanding certain violations of the asset atier requirements. For example, if we shouldttagatisfy the asset tests at the end of a
calendar quarter such a failure would not cauge isse our REIT qualification if we (i) satisfi¢e asset tests at the close of the preceding
calendar quarter and (ii) the discrepancy betwbkervalue of our assets and the asset requiremasteet wholly or partly caused by an
acquisition of non-qualifying assets, but insteeasa from changes in the relative market valuesuofassets. If the condition described in
(i) were not satisfied, we still could avoid digdification by eliminating any discrepancy withi@ 8ays after the close of the calendar quartel
in which it arose or by making use of the reliefyisions described above.
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In the case afe minimisviolations of the 10% and 5% asset tests, a REIY maintain its qualification despite a violationsafch
requirements if (i) the value of the assets caustiegriolation does not exceed the lesser of 1%h@REIT's total assets and $10,000,000 and
(ii) the REIT either disposes of the assets causiadailure within six months after the last ddyttee quarter in which it identifies the failure,
or the relevant tests are otherwise satisfied withat time frame.

Even if we did not qualify for the foreggimelief provisions, one additional provision allea REIT which fails one or more of the asset
requirements to nevertheless maintain its REITifjcafion if (i) the REIT provides the IRS with @&slcription of each asset causing the failure
(ii) the failure is due to reasonable cause andwiltful neglect, (iii) the REIT pays a tax equal the greater of (a) $50,000 per failure and
(b) the product of the net income generated byatisets that caused the failure multiplied by tigdéddét applicable corporate tax rate (currently
35%) and (iv) the REIT either disposes of the assatising the failure within six months after thstlday of the quarter in which it identifies
the failure, or otherwise satisfies the relevaseasests within that time frame.

Annual Distribution Requiremen

In order to qualify to be taxed as a REA/E, are required to distribute dividends, other tbapital gain dividends, to our shareholders i
amount at least equal to:

0] the sum of

(a) 90% of our REIT taxable income, computed withogfarel to our net capital gains and the deductionlifiddends paid;
and

(b) 90% of our after tax net income, if any, from fdoesure property (as described below); minus

(i) the excess of the sum of specified items of nofr-@gasome over 5% of our REIT taxable income, coragwithout regard to
our net capital gain and the deduction for dividepéid.

We generally must make these distributiartbe taxable year to which they relate, or inftiowing taxable year if declared before we
timely file our tax return for the year and if paiith or before the first regular dividend paymafier such declaration. These distributions will
be treated as received by our shareholders ingheig which paid. In order for distributions to dmunted as satisfying the annual distribution
requirements for REITs, and to provide us with dTRIEvel tax deduction, the distributions must bet"preferential dividends." A dividend is
not a preferential dividend if the distribution(ispro rata among all outstanding shares of steitkin a particular class and (ii) in accordance
with any preferences among different classes a@kshs set forth in our organizational documents.

To the extent that we distribute at le@¥t9but less than 100%, of our REIT taxable incoaseadjusted, we will be subject to tax at
ordinary corporate tax rates on the retained portide may elect to retain, rather than distribateme or all of our net long-term capital gains
and pay tax on such gains. In this case, we cdald for our shareholders to include their proporéte shares of such undistributed long-term
capital gains in income, and to receive a corredpgncredit for their share of the tax that we p&dr shareholders would then increase the
adjusted basis of their stock by the differencevien (i) the amounts of capital gain dividends thatdesignated and that they include in their
taxable income, minus (ii) the tax that we paidfweir behalf with respect to that income.

To the extent that in the future we mayehavailable net operating losses carried forwasthfprior tax years, such losses may reduce th
amount of distributions that we must make in otdezomply with the REIT distribution requirements.

If we fail to distribute during each calemgear at least the sum of (i) 85% of our ordiriagome for such year, (ii) 95% of our capital
gain net income for such year and (iii) any undisiied
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net taxable income from prior periods, we will lubjgct to a non-deductible 4% excise tax on thessof such required distribution over the
sum of (a) the amounts actually distributed, phjstifie amounts of income we retained and on whiethave paid corporate income tax.

We expect that our REIT taxable income dlless than our cash flow because of depreciatidrother non-cash charges included in
computing REIT taxable income. Accordingly, we eipiate that we generally will have sufficient casHiquid assets to enable us to satisfy
distribution requirements described above. Howeflvem time to time, we may not have sufficient castother liquid assets to meet these
distribution requirements due to timing differenbetween the actual receipt of income and actuahpat of deductible expenses, and the
inclusion of income and deduction of expenses terd@ning our taxable income. In addition, we magide to retain our cash, rather than
distribute it, in order to repay debt, acquire &ss@r for other reasons. If these timing differemoccur, we may borrow funds to pay dividends
or pay dividends through the distribution of otpesperty (including shares of our stock) in ordenteet the distribution requirements, while
preserving our cash.

If our taxable income for a particular yeasubsequently determined to have been undeltstatemay be able to rectify a resultant failure
to meet the distribution requirements for a yeapaying "deficiency dividends" to shareholders latar year, which may be included in our
deduction for dividends paid for the earlier yearhis case, we may be able to avoid losing REI@lidjcation or being taxed on amounts
distributed as deficiency dividends, subject to4b& excise tax described above. We will be requiogahy interest based on the amount of an
deduction taken for deficiency dividends.

For purposes of the 90% distribution reguient and excise tax described above, any divitteatdve declare in October, November or
December of any year and that is payable to a Bblter of record on a specified date in any suchtmwill be treated as both paid by us and
received by the shareholder on December 31 of geiah provided that we actually pay the dividentbtethe end of January of the following
calendar year.

Failure to Qualify

If we fail to satisfy one or more requiremntefor REIT qualification other than the incomeasset tests, we could avoid disqualification a:
a REIT if our failure is due to reasonable causkrast to willful neglect and we pay a penalty oD¥®O0 for each such failure. Relief
provisions are also available for failures of theame tests and asset tests, as described abbvdrinome Tests" and "—Asset Tests."

If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIn any taxable year, and the relief provisionsadiwed above do not apply, we would be subjec
to tax, including any applicable alternative minimtax, on our taxable income at regular corporaties: We cannot deduct distributions to
shareholders in any year in which we are not a R&&6F would we be required to make distributionsuigh a year. In this situation, to the
extent of current and accumulated earnings andtpi@ls determined for U.S. federal income tax psgs), distributions to shareholders woulc
be taxable as regular corporate dividends. Suddetids paid to U.S. shareholders that are indivigwiusts and estates may be taxable at the
preferential income tax rates (i.e., the 20% maxmuS. federal rate) for qualified dividends. Irdaibn, subject to the limitations of the
Code, corporate distributes may be eligible fordhédends received deduction. Unless we are edtitb relief under specific statutory
provisions, we would also be disqualified from teeting to be taxed as a REIT for the four taxafgars following the year during which we
lost our qualification. It is not possible to statbether, in all circumstances, we would be emtittethis statutory relief.
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Legislative or Other Actions Affecting REI

The present U.S. federal income tax treatroEREITs may be modified, possibly with retraaeteffect, by legislative, judicial or
administrative action at any time. The REIT rules eonstantly under review by persons involvecmlegislative process and by the IRS and
the Treasury which may result in statutory charagewell as revisions to regulations and interpiatat Changes to the U.S. federal tax laws
and interpretations thereof could adversely affecinvestment in our common stock.

Regulation

The ownership, operation, and managemeramaf provision of certain products and servicegaming and racing facilities are subject to
pervasive regulation. Gaming laws are generallytagpon declarations of public policy designedrtatgrt gaming consumers and the
viability and integrity of the gaming industry. Gang laws also may be designed to protect and maeirstiate and local revenues derived
through taxes and licensing fees imposed on gamahgstry participants as well as to enhance econal@velopment and tourism. To
accomplish these public policy goals, gaming lastatdish procedures to ensure that participantisergaming industry meet certain standard:
of character and fitness. In addition, gaming lagguire gaming industry participants to:

. ensure that unsuitable individuals and orgaiimathave no role in gaming operations;

. establish procedures designed to prevent ctpatid fraudulent practices;

. establish and maintain responsible accountiagtfmes and procedures;

. maintain effective controls over their finangahctices, including establishment of minimum ahares for internal fiscal

affairs and the safeguarding of assets and revenues

. maintain systems for reliable record keeping;
. file periodic reports with gaming regulators;
. ensure that contracts and financial transactioas@ammercially reasonable, reflect fair market gadud are arms-length

transactions; and

. establish programs to promote responsible gaming

These regulations will impact our busin@stsvo important ways: (1) our ownership and operabf the TRS Properties and (2) the
operations of our gaming tenants. Our ownershipagedation of the TRS Properties will subject GBRd its officers and directors to the
jurisdiction of the gaming regulatory agencies oulsiana and Maryland. Further, many gaming anthgaegulatory agencies in tl
jurisdictions in which our gaming tenants operait mwquire GLPI and its affiliates to maintainiadnse as a key business entity or supplit
Penn because of its status as landlord.

Our businesses are subject to various &daate and local laws and regulations in addittbgaming regulations. These laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, regtoins and conditions concerning alcoholic bevesagavironmental matters, employees, healtt
care, currency transactions, taxation, zoning anldling codes, and marketing and advertising. Saals and regulations could change or ¢
be interpreted differently in the future, or new$éaand regulations could be enacted. Material chsnuew laws or regulations, or material
differences in interpretations by courts or govegntal authorities could adversely affect our opegatesults.

Insurance

We have comprehensive liability, propentyg dusiness interruption insurance at our TRS Rtigge In regards to our properties under the
Master Lease with Penn, the Master Lease requires
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Penn as the tenant to have their own comprehehiahitity, property and business interruption insnice policies, including protection for our
insurable interests as the landlord.

Environmental Matters

Our properties are subject to environmeatas regulating, among other things, air emissiarastewater discharges and the handling ar
disposal of wastes, including medical wastes. @Geahthe properties we own utilize above or undeugd storage tanks to store heating oil
use at the properties. Other properties were duiing the time that asbestos-containing buildiregarials were routinely installed in
residential and commercial structures. The Maséask obligates the tenant thereunder to complyapifiicable environmental laws and to
indemnify us if their noncompliance results in kes®r claims against us, and we expect that anyeieases will include the same provisions
for other operators. An operator's failure to coymq@uld result in fines and penalties or the regmient to undertake corrective actions which
may result in significant costs to the operator tims adversely affect their ability to meet thahligations to us.

Pursuant to U.S. federal, state and loggirenmental laws and regulations, a current oviores owner or operator of real property ma
required to investigate, remove and/or remediatdemse of hazardous substances or other regutettstials at, or emanating from, such
property. Further, under certain circumstanced) smmners or operators of real property may be halde for property damage, personal inj
and/or natural resource damage resulting fromisinarin connection with such releases. Certaithe$e laws have been interpreted to be joir
and several unless the harm is divisible and tiseaereasonable basis for allocation of respontibilVe also may be liable under certain of
these laws for damage that occurred prior to ourership of a property or at a site where we sestasafor disposal. The failure to properly
remediate a property may also adversely affectbility to lease, sell or rent the property or tarow funds using the property as collateral.

In connection with the ownership of ourremt properties and any properties that we mayieeguthe future, we could be legally
responsible for environmental liabilities or costkating to a release of hazardous substance$er mgulated materials at or emanating from
such property. In order to assess the potentieddoh liability, we most likely will engage a coftsmt to conduct a limited environmental
assessment of each property prior to acquisitihoaersee our properties in accordance with enmiartal laws. We are not aware of any
environmental issues that are expected to haveterialampact on the operations of any of our praps.

Pursuant to the Master Lease and a Separatid Distribution Agreement between Penn and Gam} liability arising from or relating to
environmental liabilities arising from the busines&nd operations of Penn's real property holdings to the Spinoff (other than any liabilit
arising from or relating to the operation or owtngpsof the TRS Properties and except to the extesttdiscovered after the end of the term of
the Master Lease) will be retained by Penn and Rélhmdemnify GLPI (and its subsidiaries, direcspofficers, employees and agents and
certain other related parties) against any losssim@ from or relating to such environmental ligkgs. There can be no assurance that Pen
be able to fully satisfy its indemnification obligans. Moreover, even if we ultimately succeedanavering from Penn any amounts for which
we are held liable, we may be temporarily requicetear these losses while seeking recovery fronmPe

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had 866 fuld part-time employees. Substantially all of thesgloyees are employed at Hollywood
Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryvillee Company believes its relations with its empksyare good.

Some of our employees at Hollywood CasiamyRille are currently represented by labor uniditse Seafarers Entertainment and Allied
Trade Union represents 128 of our employees atyinolbd
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Casino Perryville under an agreement that expiré®bruary 2020. Additionally, Local No. 27 Unitedod and Commercial Workers and
United Industrial Service Transportation Profesaland Government Workers of North America représertain employees under collective
bargaining agreements that expire in 2020, neitherhich represents more than 50 of our employéékdywood Casino Perryville.

Available Information

For more information about us, visit ourtbsite at www.glpropinc.com. The contents of our sitsbare not part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Our electronic filings with the SEC (inding all annual reports on Form 10-K, quartedparts on Form 10-Q, and current reports
on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these repartdiiding the exhibits, are available free of cleatigrough our website as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically ilem with or furnish them to the SEC.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risk Factors Relating to Our Spin-Off from Penn
We may be unable to achieve some or all the besdfiat we expect to achieve from the Spin-Off.

We believe that, as a publicly traded comypadependent from Penn, GLPI will have the apild pursue transactions with other gaming
operators that would not pursue transactions wétinPas a current competitor, to fund acquisitioith its equity on significantly more
favorable terms than those that would be availabRenn, to diversify into different businesses/hrich Penn, as a practical matter, could not
diversify, such as hotels, entertainment faciliies office space, and to pursue certain transectitat Penn otherwise would be disadvant:
by or precluded from pursuing due to regulatorystints. However, we may not be able to achieweesor all of the benefits that we expect
to achieve as a company independent from Penreitirtte we expect, if at all.

We may be unable to make, on a timely or cost-affecbasis, the changes necessary to operate a&parate publicly traded company
primarily focused on owning a portfolio of gamingrpperties.

GLPI has no significant historical operasas an independent company and does not curtentsythe infrastructure and personnel
necessary to operate as a separate publicly taadany without relying on Penn to provide cersgrnvices on a transitional basis. Penn is
obligated to provide such transition services pamsto the terms of a Transition Services Agreertteatt GLPI entered into with Penn, to all
GLPI time, if necessary, to build the infrastruetand retain the personnel necessary to operatsesarate publicly traded company without
relying on such services. Following the expiratidrthe Transition Services Agreement, Penn willbder no obligation to provide further
assistance to GLPI. As a separate public entityargesubject to, and responsible for, regulatomp@nce, including (a) periodic public
filings with the SEC, (b) compliance with NASDAQ@entinued listing requirements, (c) compliance veifiplicable state gaming rules and
regulations and (d) compliance with generally aggilie tax and accounting rules. Because GLPI'sibasihistorically has not been operate
a separate publicly traded company, GLPI cannatragsou that it will be able to successfully impkmhthe infrastructure or retain the
personnel necessary to operate as a separatelpttaited company or that GLPI will not incur cost®excess of anticipated costs to establish
such infrastructure and retain such personnel.
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If the Spin-Off, together with certain related transactionspés not qualify as a transaction that is generati-free for U.S. federal income
tax purposes, GLPI could be subject to significaak liabilities and, in certain circumstances, GLRlould be required to indemnify Penn f
material taxes pursuant to indemnification obligaths under the Tax Matters Agreement.

Penn has received a private letter rulmgifthe IRS (substantially to the effect that, aother things, the Spin-Off, together with the
required compliance exchanges and certain rela@ddctions, will qualify as a transaction thajeserally taxfree for U.S. federal income ti
purposes under Sections 355 and/or 368(a)(1)(EheoCode (the "IRS Ruling"). The IRS Ruling does amdress certain requirements for tax-
free treatment of the Spin-Off under Section 3%i8l Benn received from its tax advisors a tax opisigbstantially to the effect that, with
respect to such requirements on which the IRSnatllrule, such requirements have been satisfied.IRS Ruling, and the tax opinions that
Penn received from its tax advisors, relied on, @gnather things, certain representations, assumgpaod undertakings, including those
relating to the past and future conduct of GLPUisibess, and the IRS Ruling and the opinions woatde valid if such representations,
assumptions and undertakings were incorrect innaaigrial respect.

Notwithstanding the IRS Ruling and the ¢ginions, the IRS could determine the Spin-Off dtidne treated as a taxable transaction for
U.S. federal income tax purposes if it determimgs @ the representations, assumptions or undegaktihat were included in the request for
the IRS Ruling are false or have been violated ibdisagrees with the conclusions in the opinitre are not covered by the IRS Ruling.

Under a Tax Matters Agreement that GLPéeed into with Penn, GLPI generally is requiredigemnify Penn against any tax resulting
from the Spin-Off to the extent that such tax resiifrom (i) an acquisition of all or a portiontbe equity securities or assets of GLPI, whethe
by merger or otherwise, (ii) other actions or feglito act by GLPI, or (iii) any of GLPI's repretions or undertakings being incorrect or
violated. GLPI's indemnification obligations to Peand its subsidiaries, officers and directors wdt be limited by any maximum amount. If
GLPI is required to indemnify Penn or such othaspas under the circumstance set forth in the Takdnls Agreement, GLPI may be subject
to substantial liabilities.

GLPI may not be able to engage in desirable strateqy capital-raising transactions following the $p-Off. In addition, GLPI could be
liable for adverse tax consequences resulting fremgaging in significant strategic or capital-raisgtransactions.

To preserve the tax-free treatment to Rérthe Spin-Off, for the two-year period followirlge Spin-Off, GLPI may be prohibited, except
in specific circumstances, from: (1) entering iaty transaction pursuant to which all or a portibGLPI's stock would be acquired, whether
by merger or otherwise, (2) issuing equity secesitieyond certain thresholds, (3) repurchasing @bRimon stock, (4) ceasing to actively
conduct the business of operating Hollywood Cagatomn Rouge or Hollywood Casino Perryville, or {&ing or failing to take any other
action that prevents the Spin-Off and related tatiens from being tax-free. These restrictions trait GLPI's ability to pursue strategic
transactions or engage in new business or othesdcdions that may maximize the value of GLPI'srimss.

The Spin-Off agreements are not the result of negtibns between unrelated third parties.

The agreements that we entered into witinRe connection with the Spin-Off, including the@@ration and Distribution Agreement,
Master Lease, Tax Matters Agreement, Employee Wsafigreement and Transition Services Agreement le@en negotiated in the contex
the Spin-Off while we were still a wholly-owned sitliary of Penn. Accordingly, during the periodwhich the terms of those agreements
were negotiated, we did not have an independentibufadirectors or a
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management team independent of Penn. As a rebhtiugh those agreements are generally intendesflect arm's-length terms, the terms of
those agreements may not reflect terms that woaNe hesulted from arm's-length negotiations betweweffiliated third parties. Accordingly,
there can be no assurance that the terms of tigeseraents will be as favorable for GLPI as wouldehgesulted from negotiations with one or
more unrelated third parties.

The historical financial information included in ths filing may not be a reliable indicator of futureesults.

The historical financial statements incldidierein include the combined historical finandata of Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. and
Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc., which were acquired Ispbsidiary of GLPI called GLP Holdings, Inc., amdich operate the TRS Properties.

The historical financial statements incldiderein do not reflect what the business, findmpmaition or results of operations of GLPI will
be in the future. Prior to the Spin-Off, the busmef GLPI was operated by Penn as part of oneocatgorganization and not operated as a
stand-alone company. Because GLPI has no signiffdatorical operations and did not acquire thé estate ownership and development
business of Penn until immediately prior to thenSpif, there are no historical financial statemdntsGLPI as it exists following the Spin-Off.
Significant changes will occur in the cost struetfinancing and business operations of GLPI &saltr of its operation as a stand-alone
company and the entry into transactions with Pamal fts subsidiaries) that have not existed hisadlgi, including the Master Lease.

The ownership by our executive officers and diregt@f common shares, options or other equity awaad$enn may create, or may create
the appearance of, conflicts of interest.

Because of their current or former posgiarith Penn, substantially all of our executivaafs, including our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, and certain directors osommon shares of Penn, options to purchase comhayasof Penn or other Penn equity
awards as well as common shares, options to purataamon shares and/or other equity awards in GLiR.individual holdings of common
shares, options to purchase common shares orexquéy awards of Penn and GLPI may be significansbme of these persons compared to
their total assets. These equity interests maytereaappear to create, conflicts of interest witerse directors and officers are faced with
decisions that could benefit or affect the equitidiers of Penn in ways that do not benefit or dfescin the same manner.

Peter M. Carlino, our Chairman and Chief Executiv@fficer, and David A. Handler, one of our directoralso serve on the Penn Board
Directors which may create conflicts of interest @or create regulatory obstacles for the Companyitsipursuit of additional properties

Peter M. Carlino serves as Chairman of Ramnththe Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ofREUnN addition, David A. Handler, one
our directors, serves as a director at Penn. Tonasdapping positions could create, or appear ¢ater, potential conflicts of interest when our
or Penn's management and directors pursue thesamerate opportunities, such as greenfield devetay opportunities, or face decisions
that could have different implications for us arehR. For example, potential conflicts of interemtld arise in connection with the negotiation
or the resolution of any dispute between us anch P@nits subsidiaries) regarding the terms ofdgeeements governing the separation and th
relationship (e.g. Master Lease) thereafter. P@teconflicts of interest could also arise if wedaPenn enter into any commercial arrangemen
with each other in the future. We have establishetechanism in our Corporate Governance Guidelmadgdress potential conflicts through
the use of an independent director but there carolassurance that this process will completelpiakte conflicts resulting from overlapping
directors. In addition to potential conflicts ofénest, the overlapping director position couldateeobstacles to engaging in
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certain transactions in close proximity to existPgnn properties and there can be no assurandiéh@bmpany will be able to overcome s
obstacles.

Potential indemnification liabilities of GLPI pursant to the Separation and Distribution Agreementutd materially adversely affect GLP

The Separation and Distribution Agreemeattieen GLPI and Penn provides for, among otheg#hithe principal corporate transactions
required to effect the separation, certain condgito the separation and provisions governingehaionship between GLPI and Penn with
respect to, and resulting from the separation.

Among other things, the Separation andribistion Agreement provides for indemnification iglations designed to make GLPI
financially responsible for substantially all liibés that may result relating to or arising ofiite business. If GLPI is required to indemnify
Penn under the circumstances set forth in the S8parand Distribution Agreement, GLPI may be sabfe substantial liabilities.

In connection with the Spi-Off, Penn will indemnify us for certain liabilitis. However, there can be no assurance that theskemnities
will be sufficient to insure us against the full aount of such liabilities, or that Penn's ability tsatisfy its indemnification obligation will not
be impaired in the future.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distributigreement, Penn has agreed to indemnify us faaiceliabilities. However, third parties could
seek to hold us responsible for any of the lidk#ithat Penn agreed to retain, and there can lsswance that Penn will be able to fully
satisfy its indemnification obligations. Moreovexen if we ultimately succeed in recovering froom®any amounts for which we are held
liable, we may be temporarily required to bear ¢hlesses while seeking recovery from Penn and seatvery could have a material adverse
impact on Penn's financial condition and abilitypty rent due under the Master Lease.

A court could deem the distribution to be a frauduit conveyance and void the transaction or imposbstantial liabilities upon us

A court could deem the distribution of GLd@mmon shares or certain internal restructuriaggactions undertaken by Penn in connectic
with the Spin-Off, or the Purging Distribution byt BlI, to be a fraudulent conveyance or transferuéiaéent conveyances or transfers are
defined to include transfers made or obligatiorsiired with the actual intent to hinder, delay efrdud current or future creditors or transfers
made or obligations incurred for less than reaslgreduivalent value when the debtor was insolventhat rendered the debtor insolvent,
inadequately capitalized or unable to pay its dabtthey become due. In such circumstances, a couid void the transactions or impose
substantial liabilities upon us, which could adetysaffect our financial condition and our resufsoperations. Among other things, the court
could require our shareholders to return to Penmesor all of the shares of our common stock issnélde distribution, to return some of the
Purging Distribution to GLPI, or require us to fuliebilities of other companies involved in thetresturing transactions for the benefit of
creditors. Whether a transaction is a fraudulentvegance or transfer will vary depending upon thésgiction whose law is being applied.

Risk Factors Relating to the Status of GLPI as a RH

If GLPI does not qualify to be taxed as a REIT, &ails to remain qualified as a REIT, GLPI will beubject to U.S. federal income tax as
regular corporation and could face a substantiabtdiability, which would reduce the amount of caglvailable for distribution to
shareholders of GLPI

GLPI currently operates, and intends tatiooe to operate, in a manner that will allow Glt®Qualify to be taxed as a REIT for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, which GLPI currentlgezts to occur commencing with its taxable yeairn@ng on January 1, 2014. GLPI
received an opinion from
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its special tax advisors, Wachtell, Lipton, RoseK&tz and KPMG LLP (collectively the "Special Taxi¥isors"), with respect to its
gualification as a REIT in connection with the SQiff. Investors should be aware, however, that iopis of advisors are not binding on the
IRS or any court. The opinions of Special Tax Advisrepresent only the view of the Special Tax Adks based on their review and analysis
of existing law and on certain representation®dadtual matters and covenants made by GLPI, dicturepresentations relating to the values
of GLPI's assets and the sources of GLPI's incdie.opinions are expressed as of the date isspedigb Tax Advisors will have no
obligation to advise GLPI or the holders of GLPimoon stock of any subsequent change in the mattated, represented or assumed or of
any subsequent change in applicable law. Furthernbamth the validity of the opinions of Special Tadvisors and GLPI's qualification as a
REIT will depend on GLPI's satisfaction of certasgset, income, organizational, distribution, shaldgr ownership and other requirements on
a continuing basis, the results of which will netrbonitored by Special Tax Advisors. GLPI's abitiysatisfy the asset tests depends upon
GLPI's analysis of the characterization and fairkeavalues of its assets, some of which are neteqtible to a precise determination, and for
which GLPI will not obtain independent appraisals.

Penn has received a private letter ruliogifthe IRS with respect to certain issues relet@@LPI's qualification as a REIT. In general,
the ruling provides, subject to the terms and dionl contained therein, that (1) certain of theetsto be held by GLPI after the Spin-Off and
(2) the methodology for calculating a certain portof rent received by GLPI pursuant to the Maktase will not adversely affect GLPI's
qualification as a REIT. Although GLPI may gengratly upon the ruling, no assurance can be gikahthe IRS will not challenge GLPI's
gualification as a REIT on the basis of other issmefacts outside the scope of the ruling.

If GLPI were to fail to qualify to be taxad a REIT in any taxable year, it would be sulijedd.S. federal income tax, including any
applicable alternative minimum tax, on its taxahblgome at regular corporate rates, and dividenastpaGLPI shareholders would not be
deductible by GLPI in computing its taxable incoray resulting corporate liability could be subdtahand would reduce the amount of cash
available for distribution to its shareholders, @hin turn could have an adverse impact on theevaftGLPI common stock. Unless GLPI w
entitled to relief under certain Code provisiongRBalso would be disqualified from mdecting to be taxed as a REIT for the four taxagelar:
following the year in which GLPI failed to qualifg be taxed as a REIT.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical ancomplex provisions of the Code.

Qualification as a REIT involves the apation of highly technical and complex Code provisidor which only limited judicial and
administrative authorities exist. Even a technarahadvertent violation could jeopardize GLPI'sIRFualification. GLPI's qualification as a
REIT will depend on its satisfaction of certainetséncome, organizational, distribution, sharekolownership and other requirements on a
continuing basis. In addition, GLPI's ability tdisty the requirements to qualify to be taxed &EAT may depend in part on the actions of
third parties over which it has no control or olihgited influence.

Legislative or other actions affecting REITs coulthve a negative effect on GLF

The rules dealing with U.S. federal incowmeation are constantly under review by personslired in the legislative process and by the
IRS and the Treasury. In particular, in June 26428l companies pursuing REIT conversions disdldisat they have been informed by the
IRS that it has formed a new internal working gréaigtudy the current legal standards the IRS tsdsfine "real estate" for purposes of the
REIT provisions of the Code. While GLPI has no ceat believe that its private letter ruling wik ladversely affected by the IRS internal
working group, changes to the tax laws or integdrens thereof by the IRS and the Treasury, wittvitnout retroactive application, could
materially and adversely affect GLPI investors &P& GLPI cannot predict how changes in the
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tax laws might affect its investors or GLPI. Newilation, Treasury regulations, administrativeeiptetations or court decisions could
significantly and negatively affect GLPI's ability qualify to be taxed as a REIT or the U.S. febim@me tax consequences to GLPI investor
and GLPI of such qualification.

GLPI could fail to qualify to be taxed as a REIT ihcome it receives from Penn or its subsidiariassniot treated as qualifying income.

Under applicable provisions of the CodePGWill not be treated as a REIT unless it satssfiarious requirements, including requirem
relating to the sources of its gross income. Rexusived or accrued by GLPI from Penn or its suls&s will not be treated as qualifying rent
for purposes of these requirements if the Mastaiseds not respected as a true lease for U.S alddepme tax purposes and is instead treate
as a service contract, joint venture or some dijpr of arrangement. If the Master Lease is nqieeted as a true lease for U.S. federal incorn
tax purposes, GLPI may fail to qualify to be taxesda REIT. Furthermore, GLPI's qualification asEARwill depend on GLPI's satisfaction of
certain asset, income, organizational, distribytglrareholder ownership and other requirementsammtinuing basis. GLPI's ability to satisfy
the asset tests depends upon GLPI's analysis chtracterization and fair market values of itessome of which are not susceptible to a
precise determination, and for which GLPI will rditain independent appraisals.

In addition, subject to certain exceptiamsits received or accrued by GLPI from Penn ogutssidiaries will not be treated as qualifying
rent for purposes of these requirements if GLRiroactual or constructive owner of 10% or more bPGstock actually or constructively ow
10% or more of the total combined voting powerlbEkasses of Penn stock entitled to vote or 10%nore of the total value of all classes of
Penn stock. GLPI's charter provides for restriction ownership and transfer of its shares of stoack,)ding restrictions on such ownership or
transfer that would cause the rents received auadcby GLPI from Penn or its subsidiaries to leatied as non-qualifying rent for purposes o
the REIT gross income requirements. Neverthelassetcan be no assurance that such restrictiohbewdffective in ensuring that rents
received or accrued by GLPI from Penn or its subsik will not be treated as qualifying rent farposes of REIT qualification requirements.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates available for some dividen

The maximum U.S. federal income tax ratgliapble to income from "qualified dividends" payaby U.S. corporations to U.S.
shareholders that are individuals, trusts and esiatcurrently 20%. Dividends payable by REITsyé&eer, generally are not eligible for the
reduced rates. Although these rules do not adweadfct the taxation of REITS, the more favorafalees applicable to regular corporate
qualified dividends could cause investors who adividuals, trusts or estates to perceive investsienREITS to be relatively less attractive
than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corponatthat pay dividends, which could adverselycftae value of the stock of REITS,
including GLPI's stock.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeGLPI's ability to execute its business ple

GLPI generally must distribute annuallyestst 90% of its REIT taxable income, determinetheuit regard to the dividends paid
deduction and excluding any net capital gains rdeofor GLPI to qualify to be taxed as a REIT (amgg that certain other requirements are
also satisfied) so that U.S. federal corporatermetax does not apply to earnings that GLPI disteb. To the extent that GLPI satisfies this
distribution requirement and qualifies for taxatama REIT but distributes less than 100% of it§TRExable income, determined without
regard to the dividends paid deduction and inclgdiny net capital gains, GLPI will be subject t&lfederal corporate income tax on its
undistributed net taxable income. In addition, Glail be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise fake actual amount that GLPI distribute:
its shareholders in a calendar year is less thmmianum
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amount specified under U.S. federal income tax |&@sPI intends to make distributions to its shatdbos to comply with the REIT
requirements of the Code.

From time to time, GLPI may generate tagabtome greater than its cash flow as a resudifffrences in timing between the recognit
of taxable income and the actual receipt of cagsh@effect of nondeductible capital expenditutiee,creation of reserves or required debt or
amortization payments. If GLPI does not have ofteds available in these situations, GLPI couladmired to borrow funds on unfavorable
terms, sell assets at disadvantageous pricestabdie amounts that would otherwise be investefdiare acquisitions to make distributions
sufficient to enable GLPI to pay out enough otdtsable income to satisfy the REIT distributionuiggment and to avoid corporate income ta
and the 4% excise tax in a particular year. Thésenatives could increase GLPI's costs or redtgcequity. Thus, compliance with the REIT
requirements may hinder GLPI's ability to grow, efhtould adversely affect the value of GLPI stdg&strictions in GLPI's indebtedness
following the Spin-Off, including restrictions onL8I's ability to incur additional indebtedness aak@a certain distributions, could preclude it
from meeting the 90% distribution requirement. Rases in funds from operations due to unfinancperitures for acquisitions of proper
or increases in the number of shares of GLPI comstock outstanding without commensurate increasésids from operations each would
adversely affect the ability of GLPI to maintairsilibutions to its shareholders. Moreover, thaufailof Penn to make rental payments unde
Master Lease would materially impair the ability@fPI to make distributions. Consequently, thene loa no assurance that GLPI will be able
to make distributions at the anticipated distribntrate or any other rate.

Even if GLPI remains qualified as a REIT, GLPI maface other tax liabilities that reduce its cash flo

Even if GLPI remains qualified for taxatias a REIT, GLPI may be subject to certain U.Sefal] state, and local taxes on its income an
assets, including taxes on any undistributed incantestate or local income, property and transbees. For example, GLPI holds certain of its
assets and conducts related activities through §iRSidiary corporations that are subject to fedstate, and local corporate-level income
taxes as regular C corporations as well as statdomal gaming taxes. In addition, GLPI may incurG®% excise tax on transactions with a
TRS if they are not conducted on an arm's-leng#isbény of these taxes would decrease cash alailabdistribution to GLPI shareholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause GLPIfiarego otherwise attractive acquisition opporturgs or liquidate otherwise attracti
investments.

To qualify to be taxed as a REIT for U &ldral income tax purposes, GLPI must ensuredh#te end of each calendar quarter, at least
75% of the value of its assets consists of cagth itams, government securities and "real estaetsis(as defined in the Code), including
certain mortgage loans and securities. The remawfd8LPI's investments (other than government stes, qualified real estate assets and
securities issued by a TRS) generally cannot ircludre than 10% of the outstanding voting secusritfeany one issuer or more than 10% of
the total value of the outstanding securities of ame issuer. In addition, in general, no more tb#nof the value of GLPI's total assets (other
than government securities, qualified real estasets and securities issued by a TRS) can corigls securities of any one issuer, and no
more than 25% of the value of GLPI's total assatshe represented by securities of one or more TIRG&PI fails to comply with these
requirements at the end of any calendar quartetudt correct the failure within 30 days after émel of the calendar quarter or qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions to avoid lositgREIT qualification and suffering adverse taxsequences. As a result, GLPI may be
required to liquidate or forego otherwise attraetivestments. These actions could have the affegeducing GLPI's income and amounts
available for distribution to GLPI shareholders.
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In addition to the asset tests set foritvabto qualify to be taxed as a REIT GLPI mustticwrally satisfy tests concerning, among other
things, the sources of its income, the amountsitidutes to GLPI shareholders and the ownershipld®| stock. GLPI may be unable to
pursue investments that would be otherwise advaniagto GLPI in order to satisfy the source-of-meoor asset-diversification requirements
for qualifying as a REIT. Thus, compliance with REIT requirements may hinder GLPI's ability to rmalertain attractive investments.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit GLPI'skality to hedge effectively and may cause GLPI tur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substalyti@hit GLPI's ability to hedge its assets andilldies. Income from certain hedging
transactions that GLPI may enter into to manadeaisnterest rate changes with respect to borrg&imade or to be made to acquire or carry
real estate assets or from transactions to maisigefrcurrency fluctuations with respect to argnitof income or gain that satisfy the REIT
gross income tests (including gain from the terrameof such a transaction) does not constitutesgincome" for purposes of the 75% or !
gross income tests that apply to REITSs, provided ¢lrtain identification requirements are mettf@extent that GLPI enters into other types
of hedging transactions or fails to properly idgnsuch transaction as a hedge, the income isylitcebe treated as non-qualifying income for
purposes of both of the gross income tests. Asultref these rules, GLPI may be required to litsituse of advantageous hedging techniques
or implement those hedges through a TRS. This doalgase the cost of GLPI's hedging activitiesaoee the TRS may be subject to tax on
gains or expose GLPI to greater risks associatéduatianges in interest rates that GLPI would otexwant to bear. In addition, losses in the
TRS will generally not provide any tax benefit, egtthat such losses could theoretically be catvaatk or forward against past or future
taxable income in the TRS.

GLPI paid the Purging Distribution in common stoc&nd cash and may pay taxable dividends on GLPI coomnstock in common stock ar
cash. GLPI's shareholders may sell shares of GLRIhemon stock to pay tax on such dividends, placirggwhward pressure on the market
price of GLPI common stock

GLPI paid the Purging Distribution in a doimation of cash and GLPI stock. Penn has receavedvate letter ruling from the IRS with
respect to certain issues relevant to GLPI's paywiethhe Purging Distribution in a combination @fsh and GLPI stock. In general, the ruling
provides, subject to the terms and conditions ¢oeththerein, that (1) the Purging Distributionveié treated as a dividend that will first
reduce GLPI's accumulated earnings and profitslétermined for U.S. federal income tax purposdsjpatable to pre-REIT years in
satisfaction of the REIT annual distribution regarent and (2) the amount of any GLPI stock recebyedny GLPI shareholder as part of the
Purging Distribution will be considered to equag timount of cash that could have been receiveeadstn the Purging Distribution, a
shareholder of GLPI common stock will be requiredeport dividend income as a result of the Purdigiribution even though GLPI
distributed no cash or only nominal amounts of dastuch shareholder.

GLPI currently intends to pay dividendsh@tthan the Purging Distribution) in cash onlyd aot in-kind. However, if for any taxable
year, GLPI has significant amounts of taxable ineamexcess of available cash flow, GLPI may dectividends i-kind in order to satisfy
the REIT annual distribution requirements. GLPI ndgstribute a portion of its dividends in the foohits stock or its debt instruments. In
either event, a shareholder of GLPI common stodkb&irequired to report dividend income as a fiesibuch distributions even though GLPI
distributed no cash or only nominal amounts of dastuch shareholder.
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The IRS has issued private letter rulingether REITs (and, with respect to the Purgingrihistion and as described above, to Penn)
treating certain distributions that are paid pairilgash and partly in stock as taxable dividehds would satisfy the REIT annual distribution
requirement and qualify for the dividends paid d=aiun for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Thadiegs may be relied upon only by
taxpayers to whom they were issued, but GLPI coedgiest a similar ruling from the IRS. GLPI canredy on the private letter ruling Penn
received from the IRS, as described above, witheetsto the payment of dividends other than thgiRgrDistribution. In addition, the IRS
previously issued a revenue procedure authorizifgig@y traded REITs to make elective cash/stockd#inds, but that revenue procedure doe
not apply to GLPI's taxable year beginning on Janta2014 and future taxable years. Accordinglys unclear whether and to what extent
GLPI will be able to make taxable dividends (ottien the Purging Distribution) payable in-kind.

If GLPI made any taxable dividend payableash and common stock, taxable shareholders/negeiuch dividends will be required to
include the full amount of the dividend as ordinangome to the extent of GLPI's current and accameal earnings and profits, as determined
for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a reshliyeholders may be required to pay income tax gpect to such dividends in excess of
cash dividends received. If a U.S. shareholdes $iell GLPI stock that it receives as a dividendrarer to pay this tax, the sales proceeds may
be less than the amount included in income witpeesto the dividend, depending on the market fdabe stock at the time of the sale.
Furthermore, with respect to certain ndrs. shareholders, GLPI may be required to withliettbral income tax with respect to such divide
including in respect of all or a portion of suckidend that is payable in GLPI stock. If, in anydhle dividend payable in cash and GLPI st
a significant number of GLPI shareholders deterningell shares of GLPI stock in order to pay taowsed on dividends, it may be viewed as
economically equivalent to a dividend reduction potildownward pressure on the market price of Git&¢k.

Even if GLPI qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, GLRbuld be subject to tax on any unrealized net k-in gains in the assets held before
electing to be treated as a REIT.

GLPI owns appreciated assets that werelhellC corporation before GLPI elected to be ¢@ats a REIT and were acquired by GLPI ir
a transaction in which the adjusted tax basis efa$sets in GLPI's hands is determined by referenitee adjusted tax basis of the assets in th
hands of the C corporation. If GLPI disposes of smgh appreciated assets during the ten-year pfafiodving GLPI's acquisition of the assets
from the C corporation (i.e., during the ten-yearigd following GLPI's qualification as a REIT), ®Lwill be subject to tax at the highest
corporate tax rates on any gain from such assebetextent of the excess of the fair market valuhe assets on the date that they were
acquired by GLPI (i.e., at the time that GLPI beeaarREIT) over the adjusted tax basis of such sassesuch date, which are referred to as
built-in gains. GLPI would be subject to this téadility even if it qualifies and maintains its &ta as a REIT. Any recognized built-in gain will
retain its character as ordinary income or cagigah and will be taken into account in determinRigIT taxable income and GLPI's distribut
requirement. Any tax on the recognized built-inngaill reduce REIT taxable income. GLPI may chooseéto sell in a taxable transaction
appreciated assets it might otherwise sell duffiiegtén-year period in which the built-in gain tgppbes in order to avoid the built-in gain tax.
However, there can be no assurances that suckabléaxansaction will not occur. If GLPI sells siagsets in a taxable transaction, the amour
of corporate tax that GLPI will pay will vary deping on the actual amount of net built-in gain@sd present in those assets as of the time
GLPI became a REIT. The amount of tax could beifogmt.
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Risk Factors Relating to Our Business following th&pin-Off

We are dependent on Penn (including its subsidiadientil we substantially diversify our portfoliand an event that has a material adverse
effect on Penn's business, financial position orsudts of operations could have a material adver$ieet on our business, financial position
or results of operations.

Immediately following the Spin-Off, a suthisiry of Penn became the lessee of substantidltf aur properties pursuant to the Master
Lease and accounts for a significant portion ofrevenues. Additionally, because the Master Lessetiiple-net lease, we depend on Penn to
pay all insurance, taxes, utilities and maintenaratrepair expenses in connection with these digas®erties and to indemnify, defend and
hold us harmless from and against various claiitigation and liabilities arising in connection Witts business. There can be no assurance tf
Penn will have sufficient assets, income and acimesancing to enable it to satisfy its paymebligations under the Master Lease. The
inability or unwillingness of Penn to meet its sidiigry's rent obligations and other obligations enthe Master Lease could materially
adversely affect our business, financial positionesults of operations, including our ability taypdividends to our shareholders as required t
maintain our status as a REIT. For these reasbRsnin were to experience a material adverse afeits gaming business, financial position
or results of operations, our business, finanaaiton or results of operations could also be niwte adversely affected.

Due to our dependence on rental paymeaits fenn and its tenant subsidiary as our main safreevenues, we may be limited in our
ability to enforce our rights under the Master leeasto terminate the lease with respect to aqadati property. Failure by Penn's tenant
subsidiary to comply with the terms of the Masteae or to comply with the gaming regulations tictvithe leased properties are subject
could require us to find another lessee for suakdd property and there could be a decrease atioesef rental payments by Penn. In such
event, we may be unable to locate a suitable lests&ienilar rental rates or at all, which would bakie effect of reducing our rental revenues.

We are dependent on the gaming industry and maysbsceptible to the risks associated with it, whiuld materially adversely affect our
business, financial position or results of operatie.

As the owner of gaming facilities, we amgacted by the risks associated with the gamingsitrg. Therefore, our success is to some
degree dependent on the gaming industry, whichddoaladversely affected by economic conditionseimegal, changes in consumer trends
preferences and other factors over which we andemamts have no control. As we are subject tariskerent in substantial investments in a
single industry, a decrease in the gaming busiwestd likely have a greater adverse effect on emenues than if we owned a more
diversified real estate portfolio, particularly bese a component of the rent under the Master liedssed, over time, on the performance of
the gaming facilities operated by Penn on our prttgse

The gaming industry is characterized bynaneasingly high degree of competition among gdarumber of participants, including
riverboat casinos, dockside casinos, land-basedasvideo lottery, sweepstakes and poker machioekcated in casinos, Native American
gaming and other forms of gaming in the U.S. Furtftee, competition from internet lotteries, sweakss, and other internet wagering gar
services, which allow their customers to wager evide variety of sporting events and play Las Vegigte casino games from home or in non
casino settings, could divert customers from oopprties and thus adversely affect our businessh Silernet wagering services are often
illegal under federal law but operate from overdeaations, and are nevertheless sometimes actessilomestic gamblers. Currently, there
are proposals that would legalize internet poker@her varieties of internet gaming in a numbestafes and at the federal level. Several
states, including Nevada, New Jersey and Delawang enacted legislation authorizing intrastaterirgt gaming and internet gaming
operations have begun in these states. Expansioteofiet gaming in other
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jurisdictions (both legal and illegal) could furtr@mpete with our traditional operations, whichilcbhave an adverse impact on our busi
and result of operations.

The operations of our facilities are subjealisruptions or reduced patronage as a refskwere weather conditions, natural disasters at
other casualty events. Because many of our fasliire located on or adjacent to bodies of watey, are subject to risks in addition to those
associated with land-based facilities, includingslof service due to casualty, forces of naturehaeical failure, extended or extraordinary
maintenance, flood, hurricane or other severe vegatbnditions. A component of the rent under thestdiaLease is based, over time, on the
performance of the gaming facilities operated bgrPen our properties; consequently, a casualtyl¢izats to the loss of use of a casino facility
subject to the Master Lease for an extended penayg negatively impact our revenues.

We face extensive regulation from gaming and othiegulatory authorities.

The ownership, operation, and managemegaafing and racing facilities are subject to pemeasegulation. These regulations impact
both our ownership and operation of the TRS Pragee#nd the operations of our gaming tenants. @mecship and operation of the TRS
Properties subject GLPI and its officers and divesto the jurisdiction of the gaming regulatorgagies in Louisiana and Maryland. Further,
many gaming and racing regulatory agencies inutisdictions in which Penn operates require GLRI is affiliates to maintain a license as a
key business entity or supplier of Penn becaus& &fl's status as landlord.

In many jurisdictions, gaming laws can riegjgertain of our shareholders to file an applaatbe investigated, and qualify or have his,
her or its suitability determined by gaming authies. Gaming authorities have very broad discretiotietermining whether an applicant
should be deemed suitable. Subject to certain ddtrative proceeding requirements, the gaming egus have the authority to deny any
application or limit, condition, restrict, revoke suspend any license, registration, finding ofetility or approval, or fine any person licensed
registered or found suitable or approved, for eanyse deemed reasonable by the gaming authorities.

Many jurisdictions also require any persdro acquires beneficial ownership of more thanrtagepercentage of voting securities of a
gaming company and, in some jurisdictions, nonaggecurities, typically 5%, to report the acqiositto gaming authorities, and gaming
authorities may require such holders to apply fmalification or a finding of suitability, subjeat timited exceptions for "institutional investo
that hold a company's voting securities for invesihhpurposes only. Some jurisdictions may alsctlitré number of gaming licenses in which
a person may hold an ownership or a controllingrixt.

Additionally, substantially all materialdos, leases, sales of securities and similar fingrtcansactions by GLPI and its subsidiaries mus
be reported to and in some cases approved by gaamthgrities. Neither GLPI nor any of its subsigiarmay make a public offering of
securities without the prior approval of certaimmijag authorities. Changes in control through mergensolidation, stock or asset acquisitions
management or consulting agreements, or otherwéssudject to receipt of prior approval of gamingharities. Entities seeking to acquire
control of GLPI or one of its subsidiaries musisfgtgaming authorities with respect to a varietywingent standards prior to assuming
control.

Required regulatory approvals can delay or prohibiinsfers of our gaming properties, which coulds@t in periods in which we are unab
to receive rent for such properties.

The tenants of our gaming properties aeraiprs of gaming facilities, which operators msticensed under applicable state law. Prior
to the transfer of gaming facilities, the new op@rgenerally must become licensed under statellathe event that the Master Lease or any
future lease agreement we will enter into is teated or expires and a new tenant is found, therdatays in the
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new tenant receiving regulatory approvals fromapplicable state government agencies, or the ibatil receive such approvals, may prolc
the period during which we are unable to colleetapplicable rent.

Our pursuit of investments in, and acquisitions development of, additional properties may be unsegsful or fail to meet our expectatior

We operate in a highly competitive industnd face competition from other REITs, investnm@rhpanies, private equity and hedge fund
investors, sovereign funds, lenders, gaming congsasmd other investors, some of whom are significdarger and have greater resources
lower costs of capital. Increased competition wiike it more challenging to identify and succedgftdpitalize on acquisition opportunities
that meet our investment objectives. If we candentify and purchase a sufficient quantity of gagmpmoperties and other properties at
favorable prices or if we are unable to financeuggitions on commercially favorable terms, our bess, financial position or results of
operations could be materially adversely affectattitionally, the fact that we must distribute 9@¥wur net taxable income in order to
maintain our qualification as a REIT may limit ability to rely upon rental payments from our lehpeoperties or subsequently acquired
properties in order to finance acquisitions. Agsultt, if debt or equity financing is not available acceptable terms, further acquisitions migh
be limited or curtailed.

Investments in and acquisitions of gamirmpprties and other properties we might seek toieegntail risks associated with real estate
investments generally, including that the investrsgrerformance will fail to meet expectations e cost estimates for necessary property
improvements will prove inaccurate or that the tepaperator or manager will underperform. Reahtestievelopment projects present other
risks, including construction delays or cost ovesrthat increase expenses, the inability to obtaired zoning, occupancy and other
governmental approvals and permits on a timelyshasid the incurrence of significant developmestsprior to completion of the project.

Our charter restricts the ownership and transfer ofir outstanding stock, which may have the effe€delaying, deferring or preventing a
transaction or change of control of our company.

In order for GLPI to qualify to be taxeda&EIT, not more than 50% in value of its outstagahares of stock may be owned, actually o
constructively, by five or fewer individuals at atimme during the last half of each taxable yeagratie first year for which GLPI elects to
qualify to be taxed as a REIT. Additionally, atde400 persons must beneficially own GLPI stockrdpat least 335 days of a taxable year
(other than the first taxable year for which GLRos to be taxed as a REIT). GLPI's charter, wéhain exceptions, authorizes the Board of
Directors to take such actions as are necessargesichble to preserve GLPI's qualification as ATRELPI's charter also provides that,
subject to certain exceptions with respect to aertreembers of the Carlino family and affiliateskafrtress and unless exempted by the Boa
Directors, no person may beneficially or constral§i own more than 7% in value or in number, whigrds more restrictive, of GLPI's
outstanding shares of all classes and series cf.site constructive ownership rules are complekraay cause shares of stock owned dire
or constructively by a group of related individuatsentities to be constructively owned by onevrtlial or entity. These ownership limits
could delay or prevent a transaction or a changeitrol of GLPI that might involve a premium prif shares of GLPI stock or otherwise be
in the best interests of GLPI shareholders. Theiattpn of less than 7% of our outstanding stogkah individual or entity could cause that
individual or entity to own beneficially or consttively in excess of 7% in value of our outstandstock, and thus violate our charter's
ownership limit. Our charter prohibits any persoomni owning shares of our stock that would resutiun being "closely held" under
Section 856(h) of the Code. Any attempt to owrrangfer shares of our stock in violation of thesstrictions may result in the transfer being
automatically void. GLPI's charter also providestth
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shares of GLPI's capital stock acquired or helekicess of the ownership limit will be transferredattrust for the benefit of a designated
charitable beneficiary, and that any person whaiseg shares of GLPI's capital stock in violatidrth® ownership limit will not be entitled to
any dividends on the shares or be entitled to th@eshares or receive any proceeds from the subsegale of the shares in excess of the le

of the market price on the day the shares weresfieared to the trust or the amount realized froenghle. GLPI or its designee will have the
right to purchase the shares from the trusteeist#iculated price as well. A transfer of share&bPI's capital stock in violation of the limit
may be void under certain circumstances. GLPI'©oWership limitation may have the effect of delayideferring or preventing a change in
control of GLPI, including an extraordinary transae (such as a merger, tender offer or sale adradlubstantially all of our assets) that might
provide a premium price for GLPI's shareholdersa$sist GLPI in complying with applicable gaming/$éa our charter also provides that
capital stock of GLPI that is owned or controllgddm unsuitable person or an affiliate of an ursdué person will be transferred to a trust for
the benefit of a designated charitable beneficiang that any such unsuitable person or affiliatenst be entitled to any dividends on the
shares or be entitled to vote the shares or reegiygroceeds from the subsequent sale of theshmaexcess of the lesser of the price paid by
the unsuitable person or affiliate for the shamethe amount realized from the sale, in each aas®d discount in a percentage (up to 100%) t
be determined by our Board of Directors in its sold absolute discretion. The shares shall addifybe redeemable by GLPI, out of funds
legally available for that redemption, to the extesguired by the gaming authorities making theedaination of unsuitability or to the extent
determined to be necessary or advisable by ourdBa&a redemption price equal to the lesser ah@)market price on the date of the
redemption notice, (ii) the market price on theeragtion date, or (iii) the actual amount paid fog shares by the owner thereof, in each case
less a discount in a percentage (up to 100%) tebermined by our Board of Directors in its sold absolute discretion.

Pennsylvania law and provisions in our charter afxylaws may delay or prevent takeover attempts lirgltharties and therefore inhibi
GLPI's shareholders from realizing a premium on thiestock.

GLPI's charter and bylaws contain, and Bglwania law contains, provisions that are intentbedeter coercive takeover practices and
inadequate takeover bids and to encourage prospextguirors to negotiate with GLPI's Board of Biogs rather than to attempt a hostile
takeover. GLPI's charter and bylaws, among othiag$h(i) permit the Board of Directors, without thuer action of the shareholders, to issue
and fix the terms of preferred stock, which mayeneghts senior to those of the common stocke@tpblish certain advance notice procedure
for shareholder proposals, and require all directordidates to be recommended by the nominatingrittee of the Board of Directors;

(iii) classify our Board of Directors into threepserate classes with staggered terms; (iv) provided director may only be removed by
shareholders for cause and upon the vote of 758teafhares entitled to vote; (v) not permit diremmination by shareholders of nominees for
election to the Board of Directors, but insteachieshareholders to recommend potential nomineéise@ompensation and governance
committee; (vi) require shareholders to have beradly owned at least 1% of the outstanding GLRhomon stock in order to recommend a
person for nomination for election to the Boardtmpresent a shareholder proposal, for actionshtaaecholders meeting; and (vii) provide for
supermajority approval requirements for amendingepealing certain provisions in our charter andriher to approve an amendment or repe:
of any provision of our bylaws that has not beesppsed by our Board of Directors.

In addition, specific antakeover provisions in Pennsylvania law could miakeore difficult for a third party to attempt a $tde takeovel
These provisions require (i) approval of certaamiactions by a majority of the voting stock otiian that held by the potential acquirer;
(ii) the acquisition at "fair value" of all the @tanding shares not held by an acquirer of 20%ayen(iii) a five-year moratorium on certain
"business combination" transactions with an "indtxd shareholder;" (iv) the
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loss by interested shareholders of their votingtagver "control shares;" (v) the disgorgemenrofits realized by an interested shareholder
from certain dispositions of GLPI shares; and ¢@yerance payments for certain employees and fitiobiltermination of certain labor
contracts.

GLPI's believes these provisions will pobtiés shareholders from coercive or otherwise unékeover tactics by requiring potential
acquirers to negotiate with GLPI's Board of Direstand by providing GLPI's Board of Directors witlore time to assess any acquisition
proposal. These provisions are not intended to n&kel immune from takeovers. However, these prowvisiwill apply even if the offer may
be considered beneficial by some shareholders aund delay or prevent an acquisition that GLPI'aRloof Directors determines is not in the
best interests of GLPI. These provisions may atsggnt or discourage attempts to remove and ret@cenbent directors.

Our management team, including chairman and chiefexutive officer (Peter M. Carlino) and chief finasial officer (William J. Clifford),
has limited experience operating a REIT.

The requirements for qualifying as a RE#& highly technical and complex. Our managememhtéacluding chairman and chief
executive officer (Peter M. Carlino) and chief fical officer (William J. Clifford), has limited grerience in complying with the income, asset
and other limitations imposed by the REIT provisiaf the Code. Any failure to comply with thoseysions in a timely manner could prev
GLPI from qualifying as a REIT or could force GLfBlpay unexpected taxes and penalties. In such,e8&RI's net income would be reduced
and GLPI could incur a loss, which could materi&i&rm its business, financial position or resuftsperations. In addition, there is no
assurance that their past experience with the sitigm, development and disposition of gaming fes will be sufficient to enable them to
successfully manage GLPI's portfolio of propertisgequired by its business plan or the REIT piongsof the Code.

If we lose our key management personnel, we maymable to successfully manage our business aruiee our objectives

Our success depends in large part upotedtership and performance of our executive manageteam, particularly Peter M. Carlino,
our chief executive officer, and William J. Clifhrour chief financial officer. If we lose the sies of Messrs. Carlino or Clifford, we may not
be able to successfully manage our business ogwaeliur business objectives. Furthermore, the Cogngaes not have any employment
agreements in place with its executive managenaam tat this time.

We may experience uninsured or underinsured losselich could result in a significant loss of the pdal we have invested in a property,
decrease anticipated future revenues or cause umtoir unanticipated expense.

While the Master Lease requires, and nasdegreements are expected to require, that chermiee insurance and hazard insurance b
maintained by the tenants, there are certain tgpexsses, generally of a catastrophic nature, sisobarthquakes, hurricanes and floods, that
may be uninsurable or not economically insuralsisutance coverage may not be sufficient to payutheurrent market value or current
replacement cost of a loss. Inflation, changesiitding codes and ordinances, environmental conaitbans, and other factors also might make
it infeasible to use insurance proceeds to replae@roperty after such property has been damagedéestroyed. Under such circumstances, th
insurance proceeds received might not be adequaéstore the economic position with respect thqroperty.

If we experience a loss that is uninsunethat exceeds our policy coverage limits, we cdofe the capital invested in the damaged
properties as well as the anticipated future chshsffrom those properties. In addition, if the @ayad properties were subject to recourse
indebtedness, we could continue to be liable feritidebtedness even if these properties were abpadamaged.

31




Table of Contents

In addition, even if damage to our propexis covered by insurance, a disruption of ouimeiss caused by a casualty event may result ir
the loss of business or tenants. The businessuptasn insurance we carry may not fully compenssstéor the loss of business or tenants due
to an interruption caused by a casualty eventhiéurif one of our tenants has insurance but i®tingured, that tenant may be unable to s
its payment obligations under its lease with us.

A disruption in the financial markets magke it more difficult to evaluate the stability tr@essets and capitalization of insurance
companies and any insurer's ability to meet itsrclaayment obligations. A failure of an insurancenpany to make payments to us upon an
event of loss covered by an insurance policy cadhkersely affect our business, financial conditiad results of operations.

The price of our common stock may fluctuate sigintly.

Our stock price may fluctuate in resporsa humber of events and factors, such as varmtioaperating results, change in market
interest rates, actions by various regulatory aigsrend legislatures, operating competition, mapketeptions, progress with respect to
potential acquisitions, changes in financial esteeand recommendations by securities analystgdtiens of rating agencies, the operating
and stock price performance of other companiesitivastors may deem comparable to us, and newstsegdating to trends in our markets or
general economic conditions.

Environmental compliance costs and liabilities assated with real estate properties owned by us mmaterially impair the value of thos
investments.

As an owner of real property, we are sultfiewarious federal, state and local environmeaita health and safety laws and regulations.
Although we will not operate or manage most of praperty, we may be held primarily or jointly arelerally liable for costs relating to the
investigation and clean-up of any property fromahhthere has been a release or threatened releasegulated material as well as other
affected properties, regardless of whether we koleor caused the release.

In addition to these costs, which are tgftycnot limited by law or regulation and could exrcl the property's value, we could be liable for
certain other costs, including governmental fined imjuries to persons, property or natural resesir&urther, some environmental laws create
a lien on the contaminated site in favor of theagament for damages and the costs the governmamtsiin connection with such
contamination.

Although we intend to require our operatmd tenants to undertake to indemnify us for @egavironmental liabilities, including
environmental liabilities they cause, the amourdwath liabilities could exceed the financial alibif the tenant or operator to indemnify us.
The presence of contamination or the failure toagiate contamination may adversely affect our ighiiti sell or lease the real estate or to
borrow using the real estate as collateral.

Risks Related to Our Capital Structure
We may have future capital needs and may not be=dblobtain additional financing on acceptable tesm

We currently have indebtedness of $2.3®hilwith an additional $700 million available fborrowing under our revolving credit facili
We transferred most of the proceeds from this itetliess to Penn or one of its affiliates in conpaawith the internal reorganization. We
may incur additional indebtedness in the futuresfamnance our existing indebtedness or to finareelyracquired properties. Any significant
additional indebtedness could require a substandigion of our cash flow to make interest and gpal payments due on our indebtedness.
Greater demands on our cash resources may redut® dwailable to us to pay dividends, make capikpenditures and acquisitions, or carry
out other aspects of our business strategy. Inedeiaslebtedness can also limit our ability to adjapidly to changing market conditions, mi
us more vulnerable to general adverse
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economic and industry conditions and create conmpetilisadvantages for us compared to other corepanith relatively lower debt levels.
Increased future debt service obligations may louit operational flexibility, including our abilityp acquire properties, finance or refinance
properties, contribute properties to joint venturesell properties as needed.

Moreover, our ability to obtain additioffelancing and satisfy our financial obligations enthdebtedness outstanding from time to time
will depend upon our future operating performarndeaich is subject to then prevailing general ecorwand credit market conditions, includi
interest rate levels and the availability of creginerally, and financial, business and other factnany of which are beyond our control. The
prolonged continuation or worsening of current @retarket conditions would have a material advef§ect on our ability to obtain financing
on favorable terms, if at all.

We may be unable to obtain additional feiag or financing on favorable terms or our opergittash flow may be insufficient to satisfy
our financial obligations under indebtedness outliteg from time to time (if any). Among other thiyghe absence of an investment grade
credit rating or any credit rating downgrade caalttease our financing costs and could limit owress to financing sources. If financing is no
available when needed, or is available on unfavereims, we may be unable to develop new or erthancexisting properties, complete
acquisitions or otherwise take advantage of businpportunities or respond to competitive pressueg of which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Our ability to engage in significant equigguances will be limited or restricted after &pin-Off from Penn in order to preserve the tax-
free nature of the Spin-Off. If and when additiohalds are raised through the issuance of equityrg&s, our shareholders may experience
significant dilution. Additionally, sales of subst&l amounts of our common stock in the public keafollowing the Spin-Off, or the
perception that such sales could occur, could agWeaffect the market price of our common stocy make it more difficult for our
shareholders to sell their GLPI common stock &ha and price that they deem appropriate and doybdir our future ability to raise capital
through an offering of our equity securities.

Covenants in our debt agreements may limit our oggmnal flexibility, and a covenant breach or deféticould materially adversely affect
our business, financial position or results of oions.

The agreements governing our indebtedna#sin customary covenants, including restrictionur ability to grant liens on our assets,
incur indebtedness, sell assets, make investmamggge in acquisitions, mergers or consolidatiowspay certain dividends and other
restricted payments. We have to comply with theofeing financial covenants: a maximum total debtdial asset value ratio of 60% (subject
to increase to 65% for specified periods in cornpaawith certain acquisitions), a minimum fixed cofpa coverage ratio of 2 to 1, a maximum
senior secured debt to total asset value rati®®§ 4nd a maximum unsecured debt to unencumberethadae ratio of 60%. These
restrictions may limit our operational flexibilitfCovenants that limit our operational flexibilitg aell as defaults under our debt instruments
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfa®ncial position or results of operations.

An increase in market interest rates could increasér interest costs on existing and future debt acoluld adversely affect our stock pric

If interest rates increase, so could oterast costs for any new debt and our variabledel obligations. This increased cost could make
the financing of any acquisition more costly, adlas lower our current period earnings. Risingisst rates could limit our ability to refinar
existing debt when it matures or cause us to pglgeriinterest rates upon refinancing. In additamincrease in interest rates could decrease
the access third parties have to credit, therebyedsing the amount they
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are willing to pay for our assets and consequdimtiifing our ability to reposition our portfolio pmptly in response to changes in economic o
other conditions.

Further, the dividend yield on our commutock, as a percentage of the price of such comrmak swill influence the price of such
common stock. Thus, an increase in market inteates may lead prospective purchasers of our constomk to expect a higher dividend
yield, which would adversely affect the market praf our common stocl

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Rental Properties

As of December 31, 2013, all but the TR&pprties were leased to a subsidiary of Penn uhddviaster Lease, a "triple-net" operating
lease with an initial term of 15 years with no fhase option, followed by four 5-year renewal opgi¢exercisable by Penn) on the same term:
and conditions.

In addition, see Item 1 for further inforoa pertaining to our properties.
Properties Under Development
Hollywood Gaming at Dayton Racew

We own 119 acres in Dayton, Ohio, whereaveedeveloping a new integrated racing and gananijjtf/, which we anticipate completing
in the fall of 2014 at which time it will be leasteglPenn.

Hollywood Gaming at Mahoning Valley Race Col

We own 193 acres in Youngstown, Ohio, wiveeeare developing a new integrated racing and iggufisicility, which we anticipate
completing in the fall of 2014 at which time it Wile leased to Penn.

TRS Properties
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouy

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge is a four-gtdockside riverboat casino located on approxinga2él acres, which we own, on the east
bank of the Mississippi River in the East Baton g@Downtown Development District. The property sigeves as the dockside embarkation
for Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and features as$teoy building. We also own 4.8 acres of land #rat used primarily for offices,
warehousing, and parking. We own 4 acres of adjdead which features a railroad underpass thatiges unimpeded access to the casino
property.

Hollywood Casino Perryvilli
We own approximately 36 acres of land imyRalle, Maryland, where Hollywood Casino Pernygiis located.
Corporate Office

Pursuant to our Transition Services Agregmgth Penn, we currently occupy office space émi®s corporate office buildings in
Wyomissing, Pennsylvania.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to a Separation and Distributigne&ment between Penn and GLPI, any liability mgigfom or relating to legal proceedings
involving the businesses and operations of Peralgproperty holdings prior to the Spin-Off (otllean any liability arising from or relating to
legal proceedings where the dispute arises fronopleeation or ownership of the TRS Properties) béllretained by Penn and that Penn will
indemnify GLPI (and its subsidiaries, directordjaars, employees and agents and certain othdecefzarties) against any losses it may incur
arising from or relating to such legal proceedingsere can be no assurance that Penn will be alfigly satisfy its indemnification
obligations. Moreover, even if we ultimately suat@e recovering from Penn any amounts for whichaneheld liable, we may be temporarily
required to bear these losses.

The Company is subject to various legal athahinistrative proceedings relating to personjirias, employment matters, commercial
transactions and other matters arising in the nbcmarse of business. The Company does not beffatehe final outcome of these matters
will have a material adverse effect on the Compmaoghsolidated financial position or results ofrggpiens. In addition, the Company mainte
what it believes is adequate insurance coverafgttoer mitigate the risks of such proceedings. deer, such proceedings can be costly, time
consuming and unpredictable and, therefore, naasse can be given that the final outcome of suohgedings may not materially impact
Company's consolidated financial condition or rssaf operations. Further, no assurance can b ginag the amount or scope of existing
insurance coverage will be sufficient to cover éssarising from such matters.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is quoted on the NASDA@MKal Select Market under the symbol "GLPI." Thestig sale price per share of our
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select MarkeMarch 17, 2014, was $36.84. As of March 17, 20tdre were approximately 542
holders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

GLPI will pay distributions in cash in amaunt equal to approximately 80% of GLPI's Adjusteshds From Operations ("Adjusted
FFQO"), excluding dividends related to cash paymentsinvested GLPI options, for each quarterly mksiobsequent to January 1, 2014 but in
no event will the annual dividend be less than @3%LPI's REIT taxable income on an annual bagtemined without regard to the
dividends paid deduction and excluding any nettahgains. U.S. federal income tax law generaltyuiees that a REIT distribute annually at
least 90% of its REIT taxable income, without retar the deduction for dividends paid and excludisgcapital gains, and that it pay regular
corporate rates to the extent that it annuallyrithstes less than 100% of its taxable income. kopgses of determining its cash distributions,
GLPI's Adjusted FFO will be calculated by startimigh The National Association of Real Estate Inmestt Trusts' ("NAREIT") definition of
"funds from operations," which is net income (congolin accordance with generally accepted accogiptimciples ("GAAP")), excluding
gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus estdte depreciation. The NAREIT definition wilethbe adjusted to exclude the effect of stocl
based compensation
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expense, debt issuance costs amortization and déipeeciation expense reduced by maintenance tagjanditures.

Initially, cash available for distributida GLPI shareholders will be derived solely frore tlental payments under the Master Lease and
the income of the TRS Properties. All distributiavii be made by GLPI at the discretion of its Boaif Directors and will depend on the
financial position, results of operations, cashwvBocapital requirements, debt covenants, appkckay and other factors as the Board of
Directors of GLPI deems relevant.

On February 18, 2014, GLPI made the Pur@isgribution, which totaled $1.05 billion and wesmprised of cash and GLPI common
stock, to distribute the accumulated earnings aofitp related to the real property assets anibattible to any pre-REIT years, including any
earnings and profits allocated to GLPI in connattigth the Spin-Off. In addition, on February 1812, the Company's Board of Directors
declared its first quarterly dividend. Shareholdsfreecord on March 7, 2014 will receive $0.52 pemmon share, payable on March 28, 2014
See Note 15 for further details.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On February 13, 2013, in connection withioitial capitalization, we issued 1,000 sharesaf common stock to CRC Holdings, Inc., a
wholly owned subsidiary of Penn for an aggregatelpase price of $10. These shares were transfeyiédnn on October 29, 2013 in
connection with the Spin-Off.

On October 28, 2013, we issued 44,490,560es of our common stock to CRC Holdings, Inevhally owned subsidiary of Penn, in
exchange for certain real property assets contitbby CRC Holdings, Inc. These shares were traresféo Penn on October 29, 2013 in
connection with the Spin-Off.

On October 30, 2013, we issued 44,529, bé4des of our common stock to Penn, in exchangeefdmproperty assets contributed by Penn
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated finaheind operating data for the five-year period endecember 31, 2013 is derived from our
consolidated financial statements. The selectedamated financial and operating data should b ie conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements
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and notes thereto, "Management's Discussion anty#isaf Financial Condition and Results of Oparas” and the other financial informat
included herein.

Year Ended December 31
2013(1)(2) 2012(2) 2011 2010(3) 2009(3)
(in thousands, except per share date

Income statement data:

Net revenue $ 242,12¢ $ 210,64: $ 231,88 $ 143,19¢ $ 122,99
Total operating expens 181,54 166,97! 179,37: 112,06 83,97¢
Income from operatior 60,58: 43,66¢ 52,51 31,13 39,01t
Total other expense (23,45¢6) (6,31¢) (6,959 (4,879 (5,637%)
Income from operations before

income taxe: 37,12¢ 37,35( 45,55¢ 26,257 33,38:
Taxes on incom 17,29¢ 14,43 18,87¢ 10,92% 13,39
Net income $ 1983 $ 2291¢ $ 26,68 $ 1533( $ 19,98¢
Per share data:
Basic earnings per common sh  $ 0.1¢ $ 021 $ 024 $ 014 $ 0.1¢
Diluted earnings per common

share $ 0.17 $ 0.2C $ 0.2: % 0.1 $ 0.17
Weighted shares outstanding—

Basic(4) 110,61 110,58: 110,58: 110,58: 110,58.
Weighted shares outstanding—

Diluted(4) 115,86! 115,60 115,60 115,60: 115,60:
Other data:
Net cash provided by operatil

activities $ 8063 $ 26,74« $ 56,84( $ 29,080 $ 25,04
Net cash used in investit

activities (16,274 (4,810 (8,17 (58,98 (34,489
Net cash provided by (used |

financing activities 206,30: (24,519 (50,43¢) 41,86¢ 9,52¢
Depreciatior 28,92: 14,09( 14,56¢ 10,80¢ 9,15¢
Interest expens 19,25¢ — — — —

Interest expense on debt obligat
to Penn National Gaming, Inc

(5) — — — 588 1,94¢
Capital expenditure 16,42¢ 5,19( 8,28¢ 59,05¢ 25,68
Balance sheet dat
Cash and cash equivale $ 28522 $ 1456: $ 17,14¢ $ 1891 $ 6,95]
Total asset 2,609,23! 267,07! 261,34: 254,20t 181,95t
Total debt 2,350,001 — — — —
Intercompany note with Penn

National Gaming, Inc(& — — — 90C 21,65(
Shareholders' equi 142,42¢ 236,33( 219,91: 215,38t 138,85

Q) GLPI was spun-off from Penn on November 1, 2012. ISete 1 for additional details. For 2012 throu§02, the
selected historical financial data sets forth tistonical operations of Louisiana Casino Cruisas, bnd Penn Cecil
Maryland, Inc., which was acquired by a subsid@r&LPI as part of the Spin-Off.

(2) Hollywood Casino Perryville faced increased contatiand its results have been negatively impabtethe opening of
a casino complex at the Arundel Mills mall in Anundel, Maryland. The Anne Arundel casino openedone 6, 201
with approximately 3,200 slot machines and sigaifity increased its slot machine offerings by mept®&mber 2012 to
approximately 4,750 slot machines. In additiongw miverboat casino and hotel in Baton Rouge, Lianis opened on
September 1, 2012. The opening of this riverbosincehas had an adverse effect on the financialtsesf Hollywood
Casino Baton Roug:
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®3)

(4)

®)

The higher level of capital expenditures in 2018 2609 were primarily due to the construction ofl{Amood Casino
Perryville which opened to the public on Septen#h&r2010.

Basic and diluted earnings per common share andvwli&ge number of common shares outstanding Beadmber 31,
2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were retrospectivelatedtto equal the number of GLPI basic and dilsteres outstandir
at the Spin-Off. The share counts were also adjusteeflect the impact of the shares issued asgbaine Purging
Distribution. See Note 1 in the Notes to the Coidsdéd Financial Statements for further details.

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge had an intercompartg from Penn due to Penn's acquisition of the ptgpl Januan
2011, Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge fully repaidthbligation to Penn. Interest expense was assessihis note
based on Penn's estimated incremental borrowintg.cdls interest expense was incurred and settieaugh
intercompany charges from Penn on a continuingst
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Our Operations

On November 15, 2012, Penn announcedtth@ended to pursue a plan to separate the majofrits operating assets and real property
assets into two publicly traded companies includingperating entity, and, through a tax-free spfrof its real estate assets to holders of its
common and preferred stock, a newly formed publicigded REIT.

The Company was incorporated in PennsyévaniFebruary 13, 2013, as a wholly-owned subsiditPenn. In connection with the Spin-
Off, which was completed on November 1, 2013, Reamtributed to GLPI through a series of internapowoate restructurings substantially all
of the assets and liabilities associated with Reraal property interests and real estate developmsesiness, as well as the assets and liabilitie
of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Cadgierryville, which are referred to as the "TRSgerties," in a tax-free distribution.
We intend to elect on our U.S. federal income &xnn for our taxable year beginning on Janua014 to be treated as a REIT and we,
together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiafythe Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to fbjirelect to treat each of GLP
Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. Bedn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsyd effective on the first day of the first
taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. As a result of $ipin-Off, GLPI owns substantially all of Penn'srfar real property assets and leases back
most of those assets to Penn for use by its sabsdj under the Master Lease, and GLPI also owd®perates the TRS Properties through it
TRS. The assets and liabilities of GLPI were reedrdt their respective historical carrying valuetha time of the Spin-Off.

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn endereo a Separation and Distribution Agreementsgtiorth the mechanics of the Spin-Off,
certain organizational matters and other ongoirigyations of Penn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or thespective subsidiaries, as applicable,
also entered into a number of other agreements farithe Spin-Off to provide a framework for thatreicturing and for the relationships
between GLPI and Penn.

GLPI's primary business consists of acggirfinancing and owning real estate property téelbsed to gaming operators in "triple net"
lease arrangements. As of December 31, 2013, Gh&itfolio consisted of 21 gaming and related faes, including the TRS Properties and
the real property associated with 19 gaming aratedlfacilities (including two properties under dipment in Dayton, Ohio and Mahoning
Valley, Ohio) that are geographically diversifiect@ss 13 states.

We expect to grow our portfolio by aggreesi pursuing opportunities to acquire additionairgng facilities to lease to gaming operators
under prudent terms, which may or may not includer? We believe that a number of gaming operatorgddiike to de-lever or are seeking
liquidity while continuing to generate the benefifscontinued operations, which may present sigaift expansion opportunities for us to
pursue. Of particular significance, we believe thatumber of gaming operators would be willing htee into transactions designed to mone
their real estate assets (i.e., gaming faciliies)ugh saldeaseback transactions with an unrelated partpeateived to be a competitor. Thi
gaming operators could use the proceeds from teeo$those assets to repay debt and rebalanaectygital structures, while maintaining the
use of the sold gaming facilities through long téeases. Additionally, we believe we have the gbib leverage the expertise our manager
team has developed over the years to secure athlis@enues for growth beyond the gaming indugtcgordingly, we anticipate we will be
able to effect strategic acquisitions unrelatethtogaming industry as well as other acquisititnag tnay prove complementary to GLPI's
gaming facilities.
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In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn alted its accumulated earnings and profits (as uted for U.S. federal income tax purposes)
for periods prior to the consummation of the Spiifiti@tween Penn and GLPI. In connection with itscgbn to be taxed as a REIT for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, GLPI declared a dindde its shareholders to distribute any accumdlatgnings and profits relating to the real
property assets and attributable to any pre-REHBrgéncluding any earnings and profits allocate@LPI in connection with the Spin-Off, to
comply with certain REIT qualification requirement$he Purging Distribution, which was paid on Febyul8, 2014, totaled $1.05 billion and
was comprised of cash and GLPI common stock. Seée Nofor further details.

As of December 31, 2013, our earnings la@ead¢sult of the rental revenue from the leaseuopooperties to a subsidiary of Penn pursuan
to the Master Lease. The Master Lease is a "tript8-operating lease with an initial term of 15 rgeavith no purchase option, followed by fi
5 year renewal options (exercisable by Penn) osdinee terms and conditions. The rent structureruhdeMaster Lease includes a fixed
component, a portion of which is subject to an @h2%6 escalator if certain rent coverage ratioghodds are met, and a component that is
based on the performance of the facilities, whichdjusted, subject to certain floors (i) everyeang by an amount equal to 4% of the average
change to net revenues of all facilities underMlaster Lease (other than Hollywood Casino Columdng Hollywood Casino Toledo) during
the preceding five years, and (i) monthly by aroant equal to 20% of the change in net revenuétotfwood Casino Columbus and
Hollywood Casino Toledo during the preceding moithaddition to rent, the tenant is required to gayfollowing: (1) all facility
maintenance, (2) all insurance required in connaatiith the leased properties and the businessumted on the leased properties, (3) taxes
levied on or with respect to the leased propeftéiser than taxes on the income of the lessor)dhdll utilities and other services necessar
appropriate for the leased properties and the basinonducted on the leased properties. Additigriallaccordance with ASC 605, "Revenue
Recognition" ("ASC 605"), the Company records rexefor the real estate taxes paid by its tenathemeased properties under the Master
Lease with an offsetting expense in general andradirative expense within the consolidated statgméincome as the Company believes it
is the primary obligor.

Gaming revenue for our TRS properties i$vée primarily from gaming on slot machines anatlesser extent, table game and poker
revenue, which is highly dependent upon the volam spending levels of customers at our TRS Priege®ther TRS revenues are derived
from our dining, retail, and certain other ancijlactivities.

Our Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strémgwill contribute significantly to our success:
Geographically Diverse Property Portfolio

As of December 31, 2013, our portfolio detssof 21 gaming and related facilities (includimg properties under development in Day
OH and Mahoning Valley, OH). Our portfolio compigsapproximately 6.6 million property square footagd approximately 3,200 acres of
owned and leased land and is broadly diversifietbbgtion across 13 states. Our geographic diveasibn will limit the effect of a decline in
any one regional market on our overall performance.

Financially Secure Tenan

As of December 31, 2013, substantiallypohthe Company's real estate properties were le@sadvholly-owned subsidiary of Penn, and
all of the Company's rental revenues were deriveih the Master Lease. Penn is a leading, divedsifirulti-jurisdictional owner and manager
of gaming and pari-mutuel properties, and an eistadd gaming provider with strong financial perfamoe. Penn is a
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publicly traded company that is subject to the iinfational filing requirements of the Securities Eange Act of 1934, as amended, and is
required to file periodic reports on Form 10-K dratm 10-Q with the Securities and Exchange Comuis$?enn's net revenues were
$2.9 billion for the years ended December 31, 28182012.

Long-Term, Triple-Net Lease Structure

Our real estate properties are leased uhdevlaster Lease, a "triple-net" operating leasaranteed by the tenant with a term of 15 years
(in addition to four 5 year renewals at the tersamption), pursuant to which the tenant is resgmador all facility maintenance, insurance
required in connection with the leased propertiestae business conducted on the leased propesgies levied on or with respect to the
leased properties and all utilities and other sewinecessary or appropriate for the leased prepentd the business conducted on the leased
properties.

Flexible UPREIT Structur

We have the flexibility to operate throumthumbrella partnership, commonly referred to a8 BREIT structure, in which substantially
of our properties and assets are held by GLP Qapitay subsidiaries of GLP Capital. Conductingibass through GLP Capital allows us
flexibility in the manner in which we structure aadquire properties. In particular, an UPREIT gtite enables us to acquire additional
properties from sellers in exchange for limitedtparship units, which provides property ownersdapportunity to defer the tax consequences
that would otherwise arise from a sale of theit peaperties and other assets to us. As a residtstructure potentially may facilitate our
acquisition of assets in a more efficient mannek may allow us to acquire assets that the ownetdvatherwise be unwilling to sell because
of tax considerations. We believe that this flelitipiwill provide us an advantage in seeking futacguisitions.

Experienced and Committed Management T

Although our management team has limitgqueeience in operating a REIT, it has extensive ggnaind real estate experience. Peter M.
Carlino, chief executive officer of GLPI, has mahan 30 years of experience in the acquisitiondewelopment of gaming facilities and other
real estate projects. William J. Clifford, chiefidincial officer of GLPI, is a finance professionéth more than 30 years of experience in the
gaming industry including four years of gaming regory experience, sixteen years of casino propgpgrations, and twelve years of corpo
experience. Through years of public company expegeour management team also has extensive enperdecessing both debt and equity
capital markets to fund growth and maintain a fiéxicapital structure.

Ability to Identify Attractive Real Estate Investitg

As a result of our management team's oipgrakperience, network of relationships and induistsight, we expect to be able to identify
attractive real estate investments within the ggnmidustry. We will seek operators for these rath investments who possess local market
knowledge, demonstrate hands-on management andohawen track records. We believe our management'tseexperience gives us a key
competitive advantage in objectively evaluatingogrrator's financial position and operating efficig in order for us to make prudent real
estate investments.

Segment Information

Consistent with how our Chief Operating B&m Maker reviews and assesses our financiabpednce, we have two reportable
segments, GLP Capital and the TRS Properties. T Gapital reportable segment consists of the tkesal property and represents the
majority of our
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business. The TRS Properties reportable segmesistef Hollywood Casino Perryville and HollywoG@sino Baton Rouge.
Executive Summary

Financial Highlights

We reported net revenues and income froamains of $242.1 million and $60.6 million, respeely, for the year ended December 31,
2013, compared to $210.6 million and $43.7 milli;espectively, for the corresponding period ingher year. The major factors affecting our
results for the year ended December 31, 2013, mpaed to the year ended December 31, 2012, were:

. Rental revenue associated with the Master Leasehvldecame effective on November 1, 2013, of $7dlbon for the year
ended December 31, 2013.

. Legal, consulting and other fees related to the-§)if transaction of $13.5 million for the year eddDecember 31, 2013.

. Increased depreciation expense of $14.8 mifiwrthe year ended December 31, 2013, compardtetodrresponding period in
the prior year, primarily due to the real propesgets transferred to GLPI as part of the &}fin-as well as associated real es
taxes of $7.6 million for the year ended Decemier2®13.

. Interest expense of $19.3 million for the year enDecember 31, 2013 related to our fixed and véiedte borrowings entered
into in connection with the Spin-Off.

. Additional competition which negatively impactedIieood Casino Perryville and Hollywood Casino Bateouge, namely
the partial opening of a casino complex at the AaiMills mall in Maryland in June 2012 and its sed phase opening in mid-
September 2012 and the opening of a new riverkasihe and hotel in Baton Rouge, Louisiana on Sejpderh, 2012,
respectively. This competition was the primary cgallollywood Casino Perryville and Hollywood CasiBaton Rouge's net
revenues and income from operations declined byl$#ilion and $17.4 million, respectively, for thear ended December 31,
2013, compared to the corresponding period in thee pear.

. Net income decreased by $3.1 million for therysaded December 31, 2013, as compared to thespomding period in the
prior year, primarily due to the variances expldiadove and an increase in income taxes.

Segment Developments
The following are recent developments tiate had or will have an impact on us by segments:
GLP Capital

. On November 1, 2013, the Spin-Off of GLPI from Pevas completed. As a result of the Spin-Off, GLRhe substantially all
of Penn's former real property assets and leas#srbast of those assets to Penn for use by itddiabies, under a "triple net"
15 year Master Lease agreement. Additional infoionategarding the Master Lease is discussed inldetde section entitled
"Our Operations" above.

. In June 2012, Penn announced that it had filediegtmns with the Ohio Lottery Commission for Videottery Sales Agent
Licenses for its Ohio racetracks, Raceway ParkBmdah Park, and with the Ohio State Racing Conions®r permission to
relocate the racetracks to Dayton and Austintoespectively. On May 1, 2013, Penn received apprioeai the Ohio Racing
Commission for its relocation plans. Constructitarted in late May 2013 for the new
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Hollywood-themed facility in Austintown, featuring a new thaghbred racetrack and approximately 850 videenptterminals
as well as various restaurants, bars and otheritiesemhe new Austintown facility will be locatexh 193 acres in Austintown's
Centrepointe Business Park near the intersectidmtefstate 80 and Ohio Route 46. For Dayton, ¢ansbn started in late May
2013 for the new Hollywood-themed facility, feahgia new standardbred racetrack and approximatef0lideo lottery
terminals, as well as various restaurants, bar#ret amenities. The Dayton facility will be loedton 119 acres on the site of
an abandoned Delphi Automotive plant near Wagned Bod Needmore roads in North Dayton. Penn expeapen these
facilities in the fall of 2014 at which time thetseo facilities will be added to the Master Leas&RBs share of the budget for
these two projects is limited solely to real estatestruction costs which are budgeted at $100ldbmand $89.5 million for th
Austintown and Dayton facilities, respectively vafich $25.9 million and $26.1 million have beendred through

December 31, 2013.

. In lowa, each gaming license is issued jointly taaning operator and a local charitable organinatiQSO"). The agreement
between a subsidiary of our tenant, Penn's ganpegator subsidiary in lowa, Belle of Sioux CityPL ("Belle"), and its local
QSO, Missouri River Historical Development, IndiRHD"), expired in early July 2012. An extensionregment with MRHD
through March 2015 was signed by both parties; wewehe validity of this agreement is currentlg gubject of litigation.
Furthermore, in April 2013, the lowa Racing and GegrCommission ("IRGC") awarded a new gaming lieettsoperate a
land-based casino in Woodbury County to Sioux Eityertainment ("SCE") and SCE is currently congingca Hard Rock
branded casino. Belle is challenging the denidlsodaming license renewal, however, if Belle'stlise is revoked, it will
necessitate the eventual closure of Argosy CasimaxSCity. The IRGC has indicated that it intendgermit Penn to continue
operations at its Sioux City facility until sucimi& as the new casino opens to the public or ur@ibppeals from the IRGC's
decision are exhausted, but not beyond. If Argoagitb Sioux City closes, the rental income duestéram Penn would be
reduced in accordance with the terms of the Mdstase.

. On December 9, 2013, GLPI announced that itdrddred into an agreement to acquire the realeassets associated with the
Casino Queen in East St. Louis, lllinois. The cagind adjacent land cover approximately 78 acrdsrasiude a 157 room hotel
and a 38,000 square foot casino. The transactasedlin January 2014. See Note 15 for further ldetai

TRS Properties

. Hollywood Casino Perryville faced increased cefitpn and its results have been negatively imgably the opening of a
casino complex, Maryland Live!, at the Arundel Mithall in Anne Arundel, Maryland. The casino openadune 6, 2012 with
approximately 3,200 slot machines and significambreased its slot machine offerings by mid-Seen2012 to
approximately 4,750 slot machines. In addition,Amae Arundel facility opened table games on Apfi| 2013, and opened a
table poker room in late August 2013. Finally, siddial competition is expected for Hollywood CaskPerryville with the
planned mid 2014 opening of a new $400 million magacility in Baltimore City County.

. In November 2012, voters approved legislation atitirgy a sixth casino in Prince George's County tedability to add table
games to Maryland's five existing and planned aasifihe new law also changes the tax rate casie@atps pay the state,
varying from casino to casino, allows all casino$/iaryland to be open 24 hours per day for theenpgar, and permits casinos
to directly purchase slot machines in exchanggéoning tax reductions. For our Hollywood Casinorfpélle facility, table
games were opened on March 5, 2013 and the tawithttecrease upon the opening of the Prince Geogsino from
67 percent to 61 percent with
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an option for an additional 5 percent reductioanfindependent commission agrees. In December 2@ 8cense for the sixth
casino in Prince George's County was granted. Toyggsed $925 million casino, which can not opeitil the earlier of July
2016 or 30 months after the casino being builtaftiBiore opens, will adversely impact Hollywood @asPerryville's financial
results.

. A new riverboat casino and hotel in Baton Rougmrjisiana opened on September 1, 2012. The ope@iitigs riverboat casino
has and will continue to have an adverse effe¢herfinancial results of Hollywood Casino Baton geu

Critical Accounting Estimates

We make certain judgments and use cersimates and assumptions when applying accountingiples in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. The nature @Eftimates and assumptions are material due teweks of subjectivity and judgment
necessary to account for highly uncertain factorthe susceptibility of such factors to change. Wdee identified the accounting for income
taxes, real estate investments, and goodwill ahérantangible assets as critical accounting esémas they are the most important to our
financial statement presentation and require difficsubjective and complex judgments.

We believe the current assumptions andratbiesiderations used to estimate amounts refleéntedr consolidated financial statements
appropriate. However, if actual experience diffeosn the assumptions and other considerations usestimating amounts reflected in our
consolidated financial statements, the resultirgngles could have a material adverse effect onangatidated results of operations and, in
certain situations, could have a material adveffeetson our consolidated financial condition.

The development and selection of the @itaccounting estimates, and the related disclesti@ve been reviewed with the Audit
Committee of our Board of Directors.

Income Taxe

We intend to elect on our U.S. federal medax return for our taxable year beginning orudan 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT and we
together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiarfythe Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., intend to fbirelect to treat each of GLP
Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. Betan Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsyd effective on the first day of the first
taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. We intend to cargito be organized and to operate in a mannewiligiermit us to qualify as a REIT. To
qualify as a REIT, we must meet certain organizati@nd operational requirements, including a nexpént to distribute at least 90% of our
annual REIT taxable income to shareholders deteuimvithout regard to the dividends paid deductiot @xcluding any net capital gain, meet
the various other requirements imposed by the Celd#ing to matters such as operating resultst asdeings, distribution levels, and divers
of stock ownership. As a REIT, we generally wilthe subject to federal income tax on income thathigtribute as dividends to our
shareholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT irydaxable year, we will be subject to U.S. fedémabme tax, including any applicable
alternative minimum tax, on our taxable incomeegfular corporate income tax rates, and dividendstpaour shareholders would not be
deductible by us in computing taxable income. Aesulting corporate liability could be substantiadiaould materially and adversely affect
our net income and net cash available for distidouto shareholders. Unless we were entitled iefrahder certain Code provisions, we also
would be disqualified from re-electing to be taxeda REIT for the four taxable years following ytear in which we failed to qualify to be
taxed as a REIT. It is not possible to state whéthall circumstances we would be entitled to stetutory relief.
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Our TRS Properties are able to engagetiviis resulting in income that would be not gfyahg income for a REIT. As a result, certain
activities of the Company which occur within our §Rroperties are subject to federal and state indaxres.

Real Estate Investmer

Our real estate investments that we redgiveonnection with the Spin-Off were contributedus at Penn's historical carrying amount.
We record the acquisition of real estate at castuding acquisition and closing costs. The cogiroperties developed by GLPI include costs
of construction, property taxes, interest and othiscellaneous costs incurred during the developmeriod until the project is substantially
complete and available for occupancy. We consitkeiperiod of future benefit of the asset to deteenthe appropriate useful lives.
Depreciation is computed using a straight-line métbver the estimated useful lives of the buildiagd building improvements.

We continually monitor events and circumsts that could indicate that the carrying amo@iouo real estate investments may not be
recoverable or realized. When indicators of potimnpairment suggest that the carrying value af estate investments may not be
recoverable, we assess the recoverability by estimavhether we will recover the carrying valueooir real estate investments through its
undiscounted future cash flows and the eventuglodition of the investment. In assessing the re@ility of the carrying value of property
and equipment, we must make assumptions regardingefcash flows and other factors. If these edémar the related assumptions change i
the future, we may be required to record an impairnhoss.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2013, we had $75.5 milliogoodwill and $9.6 million in other intangiblessts within our consolidated balance sheet,
resulting from the contribution of Hollywood CasiBaton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville froenR in connection with the SpDff.

Goodwill is tested annually, or more fregiheif indicators of impairment exist, for impaient by comparing the fair value of the
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge reporting unit tociéssrying amount. If the carrying amount exceed$aitsvalue in step 1 of the impairment
test, then step 2 of the impairment test is peréatito determine the implied value of goodwill.Hétimplied value of goodwill is less than the
goodwill allocated, an impairment loss is recogdize

In accordance with ASC 350, "Intangibles—e@will and Other," the Company considers its Holbpal Casino Perryville gaming license
as an indefinite-life intangible asset that doetsraquire amortization based on the Company's éutxpectations to operate this casino
indefinitely as well as the gaming industry's higtal experience in renewing these intangible asaeminimal cost with various state gaming
commissions. Rather, the Company's gaming licesitested annually, or more frequently if indicatofgmpairment exist, for impairment by
comparing the fair value of the recorded assdstoarrying amount. If the carrying amount of thédfinite-life intangible asset exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized.

The evaluation of goodwill and indefiniielintangible assets requires the use of estinatiest future operating results to determine the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit anditidefinite-lived intangible assets. We must makeots assumptions and estimates in
performing our impairment testing. The implied fa#ue includes estimates of future cash flows éinatbased on reasonable and supportable
assumptions which represent our best estimatdgeafash flows expected to result from the useeftsets including their eventual
disposition. Changes in estimates, increases ircastrof capital, reductions in transaction muéifplchanges in operating and capital
expenditure assumptions or application of altemeatissumptions and definitions could produce dicanitly different results. Future cash flow
estimates are, by their nature, subjective andahotsults may differ materially from our estimatéur ongoing estimates of future cash
flows are not met, we may have to record
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additional impairment charges in future accounpegods. Our estimates of cash flows are baseti@uourrent regulatory and economic
climates, as well as recent operating informatiod lbudgets. These estimates could be negativelsgdteg by changes in federal, state or loca
regulations, economic downturns, or other events.

Forecasted cash flows (based on our aropeahting plan as determined in the fourth quacdan) be significantly impacted by the local
economy in which our reporting unit operates. Bameple, increases in unemployment rates can riesdéicreased customer visitations and/o
lower customer spend per visit. In addition, negidkation which approves gaming in nearby jurisdias or further expands gaming in
jurisdictions has the impact of increasing compmetifor our property which generally will have agagive effect on its profitability onc
competitors become established as a certain Ié\a@rmibalization occurs absent an overall incréaseistomer visitations. Lastly, increase
gaming taxes approved by state regulatory bodiesiegatively impact forecasted cash flows.

Assumptions and estimates about future tashlevels and multiples are complex and subyjextiThey are sensitive to changes in
underlying assumptions and can be affected byiatyaof factors, including external factors, sushirrdustry, geopolitical and economic
trends, and internal factors, such as changesribuginess strategy, which may reallocate capitdlrasources to different or new opportun
which management believes will enhance our overdlle but may be to the detriment of our reporting.

The Company's annual goodwill and otheefimite-life intangible assets impairment testésfprmed on October % of each year.
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casierorfille faced a significant increase in competitin 2012 which has negatively
impacted their operations. The Company has incatpdrinto its current year projections its TRS [Rréps' recent operating trends as well as
an estimate of the impact of additional gaming esjn in Maryland that is expected to commenceioh2014 in Baltimore City County and
in mid 2016 in Prince George's County. After comsédion of these factors, no impairment chargenegsired for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

Results of Operations
The following are the most important fastand trends that contribute to our operating perémce:

. The fact that a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pentheslessee of substantially all of our propertiesspant to the Master Lease
and accounts for a significant portion of our raxes We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuingangpunities to acquire
additional gaming facilities to lease to gamingrapers under prudent terms, which may or may nduie Penn.

. The fact that the rules dealing with U.S. fedemabime taxation are constantly under review by persovolved in the legislati
process and by the IRS and the Treasury. Changhe tax laws or interpretations thereof, with dgthwut retroactive
application, could materially and adversely affétt| investors or GLPI.

. The successful execution of the development andtaggtion activities currently underway at the t@bio properties, as well as
the risks associated with the costs, regulatoryagb and the timing of these activities.

. The risks related to economic conditions and tfiecebf such conditions on consumer spending fisute and gaming activitie
which may negatively impact our gaming tenants @petators.
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The consolidated results of operationgHeryears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 26Xklamarized below:

Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
Revenues
Rental $ 68,95 $ — —
Real estate taxes paid by ten 7,60z — —
Total rental revenu 76,557 — —
Gaming 159,35: 202,58: 223,30:
Food, beverage and ott 12,351 15,63t 16,39¢
Total Revenue 248,26¢ 218,21t 239,69¢
Less promotional allowanci (6,139 (7,579 (7,814
Net revenue 242,12¢ 210,64. 231,88
Operating expense
Gaming 89,36 113,11: 124,97:
Food, beverage and ott 10,77¢ 13,11« 13,66¢
Real estate taxe 9,22( 1,59: 1,36
General and administrati\ 43,26 25,06¢ 24,80¢
Depreciatior 28,92 14,09( 14,56¢
Total operating expens 181,54° 166,97! 179,37:
Income from operatior $ 60,58. $ 43,66¢ $ 52,51

Certain information regarding our result®perations by segment for the years ended Decegihe2013, 2012 and 2011 is summarized
below:

Net Revenues Income from Operations
Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
GLP Capital $ 76,55 $ — % — $34,33: $ — $ —
TRS Propertie 165,57. 210,64: 231,88: 26,24¢ 43,66¢ 5251
Total $242,12¢ $210,64: $231,88 $60,58: $43,66¢ $52,51

Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO

Adjusted EBITDA, Funds From Operations (Ffrand Adjusted Funds From Operations ("AFFO")ased by the Company as
performance measures for benchmarking againstdingp@ny's peers and as internal measures of busipessting performance. The
Company believes Adjusted EBITDA, FFO, and AFFOvite a meaningful perspective of the underlyingrapieg performance of the
Company's current business. This is especiallysiee these measures exclude real estate depye@atd we believe that real estate values
fluctuate based on market conditions rather thamedgating in value ratably on a straight-line basrer time. AFFO is considered a
supplemental measure for the real estate industhaasupplement to GAAP measures.

NAREIT defines FFO as net income (compurtealccordance with GAAP), excluding gains (or I&deom sales of property, plus real
estate depreciation. We have defined AFFO as FE®gibck based compensation expense, debt issoasitseamortization and other
depreciation expense reduced by maintenance cagjpehditures. Finally, we have defined AdjustedTHBA as income from operations,
excluding the impact of stock based compensatigerse, depreciation, and gains or loss on dispdsesets.
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Adjusted EBITDA, FFO, and AFFO are not gaized terms under GAAP. Because certain compaluiemt calculate Adjusted EBITD
FFO and AFFO in the same way and certain other emiep may not perform such calculation, those nreasas used by other companies |
not be consistent with the way the Company caleslatich measures and should not be consideregtastiye measures of operating profi
net income. The Company's presentation of thessunes does not replace the presentation of the @ayrgfinancial results in accordance
with GAAP.

The reconciliation of the Company's nebme per GAAP to Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO foe tyears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Net income $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢ $ 26,68
Real estate depreciatit 14,89¢ — —
Gain on sale of fixed asse (39 (14z2) (75)
Funds from operations $ 34,68° $ 22,777 $ 26,60¢
Other depreciatio 14,027 14,09( 14,56¢
Debt issuance cost amortizati 70C — —
Stock based compensati 1,56¢€ — —
Maintenance CAPE’ (4,230) (3,260) (3,157%)
Adjusted funds from operations $ 46,75( $ 33,600 $ 38,02
Interest, ne 19,25: 2 4
Management fee 4,20z 6,32( 6,95¢
Taxes on incom 17,29¢ 14,43: 18,87¢
Maintenance CAPE’ 4,23( 3,26( 3,15
Debt issuance cost amortizati (700 — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 91,03 $ 57,61¢ $ 67,00¢
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The reconciliation of each segment's netiime per GAAP to FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA fioe years ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011 was as follows:

GLP Capital(1) TRS Properties
Year Ended December 31 2013 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Net income $ 6,612 $ 13,21¢ $ 22,91¢ $ 26,68¢
Real estate depreciatit 14,89¢ — — —
Gain on sale of fixed asse — (39) (142) (75)
Funds from operations $ 21,50¢ $ 13,17¢ $ 22,777 $ 26,60¢
Other depreciatio — 14,027 14,09( 14,56¢
Debt issuance costs

amortization 70C — — —
Stock based compensati 1,56¢€ — — —
Maintenance CAPE’ — (4,230 (3,260) (3,15%)
Adjusted funds from

operations $ 23,77¢ $ 22,97¢ $ 33,607 $ 38,02
Interest, ne 19,25 (0] 2 4
Management fee — 4,20z 6,32( 6,95¢
Taxes on incom 8,46 8,82¢ 14,43: 18,87¢
Maintenance CAPE} — 4,23( 3,26( 3,157
Debt issuance costs

amortization (700 — — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 50,79 $ 40,23 $ 57,61¢ $ 67,00¢

(1) GLP Capital operations commenced November 1, 20t8mnection with the Sg-Off.
2013 Compared with 2012

Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO for our GLRygtal segment was $50.8 million, $21.5 million &28.8 million, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 2013 due to the-Off, which occurred on November 1, 2013.

Adjusted EBITDA for our TRS Properties segrndecreased by $17.4 million for the year endedenber 31, 2013, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due totedil competition which negatively impacted Hollyad Casino Perryville and Hollywo
Casino Baton Rouge, namely the partial openinga#sino complex at the Arundel Mills mall in Mamythain June 2012 and its second phase
opening in mid-September 2012 and the openingn&variverboat casino and hotel in Baton Rouge, siana on September 1, 2012,
respectively. FFO for our TRS Properties segmeatedesed by $9.6 million for the year ended DecerBtheR013, as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to the dserén adjusted EBITDA described previously pdstiaffset by reduced income taxes
primarily due to reduced earnings as well as rediucanagement fees primarily due to reduced nentevand the management agreement
with Penn terminating on November 1, 2013 in cotinacvith the Spinoff. AFFO for our TRS Properties segment decredase$l10.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2013, as comparthe tyear ended December 31, 2012, primarily duke decrease in FFO described
previously and increased maintenance capital experd.
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2012 Compared with 2011

Adjusted EBITDA for our TRS Properties segindecreased by $9.4 million for the year endeckbwer 31, 2012, as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2011, primarily due tgthgiously mentioned additional competition whiaygatively impacted Hollywood Casil
Perryville and Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge. FF@ afrFO for our TRS Properties segment decreasekBt8/million and $4.4 million,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 284 2pmpared to the year ended December 31, 2@dfariy due to the decrease in adju
EBITDA described previously partially offset by texbd income taxes primarily due to reduced earnings

Revenues

Revenues for the years ended December(@B, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Precentage
Year ended December 31 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Total rental revenu $ 76,551 $ — $ 76,557 N/A
Gaming 159,35 202,58: (43,229 (21.9%
Food, beverage and ott 12,35 15,63¢ (3,27¢) (21.0%
Revenue: 248,26t 218,21¢ 30,05( 13.&%
Less promotional allowanci (6,137%) (7,579 1,43¢ 19.(%
Net revenue $ 242,12¢ $ 210,64. $ 31,48¢ 14.9%

Percentage
Year ended December 31 2012 2011 Variance Variance
Gaming $ 202,58: $ 223,30: $ (20,72) (9.3%
Food, beverage and ott 15,63¢ 16,39¢ (7617) (4.6)%
Revenue:! 218,21¢ 239,69¢ (21,487 (9.0%
Less promotional allowanci (7,579 (7,814 241 3.1%
Net revenue $ 210,64: $ 231,88 $ (21,24) (9.2%

Total rental revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2013, Irerttame associated with the Master Lease, whidaime effective on November 1, 2013,
$76.6 million for our GLP Capital segment, whickluded $7.6 million of revenue for the real estatees paid by our tenant on the leased
properties under the Master Lease. In accordanteABC 605, the Company is required to show thkasiate taxes paid by its tenants on the
leased properties under the Master Lease as revégtiuan offsetting expense as the Company beligvsghe primary obligor.

Gaming revenue
2013 Compared with 2012

Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties segmiecreased by $43.2 million, or 21.3%, to $1%8ilion in 2013, primarily due to
decreased gaming revenue at Hollywood Casino BRtarge primarily due to the opening of a new rivathzasino and hotel in Baton Rouge,
Louisiana on September 1, 2012, as well as toszitesxtent decreased gaming revenue at HollywoathG#erryville primarily due to the
impact from the partial opening of a casino comgethe Arundel Mills mall in Maryland in June 204@d its second phase opening in mid-
September 2012, which was partially offset by titeoduction of table games at the property in M&0h3.
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2012 Compared with 2011

Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties segmecreased by $20.7 million, or 9.3%, to $202iion in 2012, primarily due to
decreased gaming revenue at Hollywood Casino Piéerprimarily due to the impact from the openinigaocasino complex at the Arundel
Mills mall in Maryland in June 2012, as well asattesser extent a decrease in gaming revenue bwdald Casino Baton Rouge primarily d
to the opening of a new riverboat casino and hntBlaton Rouge, Louisiana on September 1, 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the years endedrbleee31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (inghods):

Precentage
Year ended December 31 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Gaming $ 89,367 $ 113,11: $ (23,749 (21.0%
Food, beverage and ott 10,77¢ 13,11« (2,339 (17.89%
Real estate taxe 9,22( 1,597 7,62¢ 479.1%
General and administrati 43,26: 25,06¢ 18,19« 72.€%
Depreciatior 28,92 14,09( 14,83: 105.2%
Total operating expens $ 181,54 $ 166,97' $ 14,57: 8.7%

Percentage
Year ended December 31 2012 2011 Variance Variance
Gaming $ 113,11 $ 124,97. $ (11,860 (9.5%
Food, beverage and ott 13,11« 13,66¢ (550 (4.0%
Real estate taxe 1,59 1,362 23C 16.9%
General and administrati 25,06¢ 24,80¢ 262 1.1%
Depreciatior 14,09( 14,56¢ (47¢) (3-39%
Total operating expens $ 166,97' $ 179,37 $ (12,39¢) (6.9%

Gaming expense
2013 Compared with 2012

Gaming expense for our TRS Properties sagdecreased by $23.7 million, or 21.0%, to $89ilian in 2013, primarily due to an
overall decrease in gaming taxes resulting fromelesed taxable gaming revenue mentioned abovellgindod Casino Baton Rouge and
Hollywood Casino Perryville. Additionally, HollywabCasino Baton Rouge had, to a lesser extent, asedepayroll and marketing costs due
to realignment of costs associated with lower bessrdemand.

2012 Compared with 2011

Gaming expense for our TRS Properties sagdecreased by $11.9 million, or 9.5%, to $113illian in 2012, primarily due to an
overall decrease in gaming taxes resulting fromelesed taxable gaming revenue mentioned abovellgindod Casino Perryville and
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge, as well as decreasatteting expenses at Hollywood Casino Perrywilan attempt to realign our costs
subsequent with the opening of the casino compiéxeaArundel Mills mall in Maryland in June 2012.
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Real estate taxes

Real estate taxes increased by $7.6 milbod79.1%, to $9.2 million in 2013, primarily dteethe real estate taxes paid by our tenant on
the leased properties under the Master Lease iGbBrCapital segment. Although this amount is fmicdur tenant, we are required to presen
this amount in both revenues and expense for finhreporting purposes under ASC 605.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative costs includm# such as compensation costs (including stocdbasmpensation awards), professional
services, office costs, rent expense and costgiasso with development activities. In additionnRerovides GLPI with certain administrative
and support services on a transitional basis patgoahe Transition Services Agreement. The féesged to GLPI for Transition Services
furnished pursuant to this agreement are deternbasdd on fixed percentages of Penn's internad edsth percentages are intended to
approximate the actual cost incurred by Penn inighog the Transition Services to GLPI for the xelat period. Under the Transition Services
Agreement, Penn will provide these services foerog of up to two years, unless terminated sobgeBLPI.

2013 Compared with 2012

General and administrative expenses inecehg $18.2 million, or 72.6%, to $43.3 million2013, primarily due to general and
administrative expenses for our GLP Capital segroe1.9.7 million for the year ended December 311, 2primarily due to legal, consulting
and other fees related to the Spin-Off transaatfci13.5 million for the year ended December 31,2 @&s well as compensation expense,
including stock based compensation charges foathertization of unrecognized compensation on Peuityeawards held by GLPI employe
at the time of the Spin-Off, of $4.7 million, remtpense for those leases assigned to GLPI asfithe 8pin-Off for $0.4 million (see Note 7),
and transition services fees of $0.3 million faz trear ended December 31, 2013.

Depreciation expense
2013 Compared with 2012

Depreciation expense increased by $14.8omjlor 105.3%, to $28.9 million in 2013, primgriflue to the real property assets transferrec
to GLPI as part of the Spin-Off in our GLP Capgefjment.

Other income (expenses)

Other income (expenses) for the years ebdmgmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are as follawth@usands):

Percentage
Year ended December 31 2013 2012 Variance Variance
Interest expens $ (19,259 $ — $ (19,259 N/A
Interest income 1 2 (@D} (50.0%
Management fe (4,207) (6,320) 2,117 33.5%
Total other expenst¢ $ (23,450 $ (6,318 $ (17,139 (271.9%
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Percentage
Year ended December 31 2012 2011 Variance Variance
Interest incom $ 2 3 4 % (2 (50.0%
Management fe (6,320 (6,95%) 63€ 9.2%
Total other expens $ (6,319 $ (6,959 63€ 9.1%

Interest expense

For the year ended December 31, 2013 a@st@xpense was $19.3 million related to our fiaed variable rate borrowings entered into in
connection with the Spin-Off in our GLP Capital semt.

Management fee

Management fees decreased by $2.1 mikin83.5%, to $4.2 million in 2013, primarily duereduced net revenue at Hollywood Casino
Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville for ylear ended December 31, 2013, as compared t@thesponding period in the prior
year, as well as the management agreement with teemmating on November 1, 2013 in connection i Spil-Off.

Taxes

Our effective tax rate (income taxes asmgntage of income from operations before incares) increased to 46.6% for the year ende
December 31, 2013, as compared to 38.6% for thegraed December 31, 2012, primarily due to the @ incurring non-deductible Spin-
Off costs for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Our projected annual effective tax rate eary from period to period depending on, amongnpfhctors, the geographic and business mi
of our earnings and the level of our tax creditstt@n of these and other factors, including ostdry of pre-tax earnings, are taken into
account in assessing our ability to realize ourdaéérred tax assets. We intend to elect to bedtagea REIT for our taxable year beginning on
January 1, 2014. As a REIT, we will no longer bguieed to pay corporate level tax on income ofRidT that is distributed to our
shareholders. We will continue to be required tp fealeral and state corporate income taxes onrggsruf our TRS Properties.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity and capisources are cash flow from operations, borrg&iflom banks and proceeds from the
issuance of debt and equity securities.

Net cash provided by operating activities80.6 million, $26.7 million, and $56.8 millifor the years ended December 31, 2013, 201
and 2011, respectively. The increase in net casbiged by operating activities of $53.9 million fibre year ended December 31, 2013
compared to the corresponding period in the pré@arycomprised primarily of an increase in cashipteérom customers/tenant of
$30.4 million, a decrease in cash paid to suppiedsvendors of $12.9 million, a decrease in casth {o employees of $1.9 million, a decreas
in cash paid for taxes of $1.2 million, and a daseesof $8.3 million related to management feesiaiedcompany federal and state income tax
transfers with Penn by our TRS Properties prigchtoSpin-Off (see Notes 13 and 14), all of whichreyeartially offset by an increase in cash
paid for interest of $0.8 million. The increasecash receipts collected from our customers/terarthe year ended December 31, 2013
compared to the corresponding period in the pré@ryvas primarily due to two months of rental ineoumder the Master Lease of
$76.6 million partially offset by a decrease of $#4fillion in our TRS properties' net revenues tluthe impact of new competition previously
mentioned in their respective markets. The decrigasash paid for operating expenses for the yrde@ December 31, 2013 compared to the
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corresponding period in the prior year was prinyatilie to lower operating expenses for our TRS Rti@separtially offset by higher operating
expenses at GLPI mainly due to Spin-Off costs.

Net cash used in investing activities ®da$16.3 million, $4.8 million, and $8.2 millionrfthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ar
2011, respectively. Net cash used in investing/diets for the year ended December 31, 2013 prignarcluded expenditures for property and
equipment, net of reimbursements totaling $16.4ionil The increase in net cash used in investiniyides of $11.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the correspondingdierthe prior year was primarily due to incredsspenditures for property and
equipment of $11.2 million as a result of expenditusubsequent to the Spin-Off at the two facilitiader development in Ohio as well as a
final payment for an airplane which was placedarviee in 2013 (previous payments were made by Redrcontributed as part of the Spin-
Off).

Net cash provided by (used in) financingivéges totaled $206.3 million, $(24.5) millionnd $(50.4) million for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelychi#t provided by financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 included
proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, hissaance costs of $2,301.9 million partially effey the cash distribution to Penn in
connection with the Spin-Off of $2,090.0 million.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures are accounted foiithsrecapital project or capital maintenance (repfaent) expenditures. Capital project
expenditures are for fixed asset additions thagedpan existing facility or create a new facili@apital maintenance expenditures are
expenditures to replace existing fixed assets witiseful life greater than one year that are obsobeorn out or no longer cost effective to
repair.

Capital expenditures totaled $12.2 millfonthe year ended December 31, 2013 and primesihsisted of $2.6 million and $4.8 million
for the real estate related construction costs #fte Spin-Off of the Austintown facility and theaiXon facility, respectively.

In June 2012, Penn announced that it hed &ipplications with the Ohio Lottery Commissian Yideo Lottery Sales Agent Licenses for
its Ohio racetracks, Raceway Park and Beulah Rakwith the Ohio State Racing Commission for pesion to relocate the racetracks to
Dayton and Austintown, respectively. On May 1, 20R8nn received approval from the Ohio Racing Casion for its relocation plans.
Construction started in late May 2013 for the nesliyaivood-themed facility in Austintown, featuringnew thoroughbred racetrack and
approximately 850 video lottery terminals, as vealivarious restaurants, bars and other amenitiesné&w Austintown facility will be located
on 193 acres in Austintown's Centrepointe Busiies& near the intersection of Interstate 80 ane ®uiute 46. For Dayton, construction
started in late May 2013 for the new Hollywood-tleehfacility, featuring a new standardbred racetia@ut approximately 1,000 video lottery
terminals, as well as various restaurants, bar#ret amenities. The Dayton facility will be loedton 119 acres on the site of an abandonec
Delphi Automotive plant near Wagner Ford and Needmmoads in North Dayton. As part of the Spin-@t,PI is responsible for certain real
estate related construction costs for the Austintéaeility and the Dayton facility. Cumulative cansction costs contributed to GLPI at the
time of the Spin-Off were $23.3 million and $21.8lion for the Austintown facility and the Daytomdility, respectively. We expect our total
funding commitment for these projects to total appnately $137.4 million in 2014 which we anticipdtinding via our revolving credit
facility and free cash flow. Penn expects to opmse facilities in the fall of 2014 at which tinhese two facilities will be added to the Master
Lease. GLPI's share of the budget for these twgi®is limited solely to real estate constructiosts which are budgeted at $100.0 million
and $89.5 million, respectively, for the Austintoand Dayton facilities.
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During the year ended December 31, 2013%peait approximately $4.2 million for capital maimance expenditures. The majority of the
capital maintenance expenditures were for slot ma&shand slot machine equipment as well as tahlgstent at our TRS properties. Our
tenants are responsible for capital maintenanceredifures at the properties owned by GLPI.

Debt

On October 28, 2013, GLP Capital enteréal &nnew five year senior unsecured credit fac{lie "Credit Facility"), consisting of a
$700 million revolving credit facility and a $300lhon Term Loan A facility. The interest rates fahle on the loans are, at our option, equ
either a LIBOR rate or a base rate plus an apgécatargin, which ranges from 1.0% to 2.0% per anfomi.IBOR loans and 0.0% to 1.0%
per annum for base rate loans, in each case, dieygenid the credit ratings assigned to the Crediilfsa At December 31, 2013, the applica
margin was 1.75% for LIBOR loans and 0.75% for lrase loans, which was reduced to 1.50% and 0.588pectively, in the first quarter of
2014. See Note 15 for further details. In addititve, Company is required to pay a commitment fetherunused portion of the commitments
under the revolving facility at a rate that ranffesn 0.15% to 0.35% per annum, depending on thditcratings assigned to the Credit Facility.
At December 31, 2013, the commitment fee rate waB%, which was reduced to 0.25% in the first qgranf 2014. GLP Capital is not
required to repay any loans under the Credit Raglior to maturity on October 28, 2018. GLP Capihay prepay all or any portion of the
loans under the Credit Facility prior to maturitithout premium or penalty, subject to reimbursenafrany LIBOR breakage costs of the
lenders. The Credit Facility is guaranteed by GLPI.

The Company's Credit Facility had a grasstanding balance of $300 million at December2®1,3, consisting of the $300 million Term
Loan A facility. No balances were outstanding om tvolving credit facility at December 31, 2013.

The Credit Facility contains customary aosets that, among other things, restrict, subfecettain exceptions, the ability of GLPI and its
subsidiaries, to grant liens on their assets, inmebtedness, sell assets, make investments, efgagquisitions, mergers or consolidations o
pay certain dividends and other restricted paym@8iiits Credit Facility contains the following finaaktcovenants, which are measured
quarterly on a trailing four-quarter basis: a maximtotal debt to total asset value ratio, a maxinsemior secured debt to total asset value
ratio, a maximum ratio of certain recourse dehirtencumbered asset value and a minimum fixed clwnggrage ratio. In addition, GLPI is
required to maintain a minimum tangible net wo@h.PI is required to maintain its status as a REiTand after the effective date of its
election to be treated as a REIT, which electioiPGhtends to make on its U.S. federal income &urn for its first full fiscal year following
the Spin-Off. GLPI is permitted to pay dividendst®shareholders as may be required in order iataia REIT status, subject to the absence
of payment or bankruptcy defaults. GLPI is alsong#ed to make other dividends and distributionsjsct to pro forma compliance with the
financial covenants and the absence of defaults.Aredit Facility also contains certain customdfiyraative covenants and events of default.
Such events of default include the occurrencealfamge of control and termination of the Masterdee@ubject to certain replacement rights).
The occurrence and continuance of an event of ttafader the Credit Facility will enable the lengemder the Credit Facility to accelerate the
loans, and terminate the commitments, thereunder.

On October 30 and 31, 2013, the Companypteted offerings of $2,050 million aggregate prpatiamount of three series of new senior
notes issued by two of GLPI's wholly-owned subsidi(the "Issuers"): $550 million of 4.375% Seri\mtes due 2018 (the "2018 Notes");
$1,000 million of 4.875% Senior Notes due 2020 (2&20 Notes"); and $500 million of 5.375% Seniatds due 2023 (the "2023 Notes," |
collectively with the 2018 Notes and the 2020 Npthes "Notes"). The 2018 Notes mature on Novemb@018 and bear interest at a rate of
4.375% per year. The 2020 Notes mature on Novehk#d20 and bear interest at a rate of 4.875% @ar. The 2023 Notes mature
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on November 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rabe3356% per year. Interest on the Notes is payablglay 1 and November 1 of each year,
beginning on May 1, 2014.

The Company may redeem the Notes of angssat any time, and from time to time, at a redigongprice of 100% of the principal
amount of the Notes redeemed, plus a "makele" redemption premium described in the indenfywverning the Notes, together with accr
and unpaid interest to, but not including, the region date, except that if Notes of a series edeemed 90 or fewer days prior to their
maturity, the redemption price will be 100% of gréncipal amount of the Notes redeemed, togethdr adcrued and unpaid interest to, but
including, the redemption date. If GLPI experienaahange of control accompanied by a declineerctldit rating of the Notes of a particL
series, the Company will be required to give hadsrthe Notes of such series the opportunity Halseir Notes of such series at a price equal
to 101% of the principal amount of the Notes offsseries, together with accrued and unpaid intéoesiut not including, the repurchase date.
The Notes also are subject to mandatory redempiguirements imposed by gaming laws and regulations

The Notes are guaranteed on a senior uretbasis by GLPI. The Notes are the Issuers' sengecured obligations and raodri passu
in right of payment with all of the Issuers' senimebtedness, including the Credit Facility, aadisr in right of payment to all of the Issuers'
subordinated indebtedness, without giving effeatditateral arrangements.

The Notes contain covenants limiting theubss' ability to: incur additional debt and usartiassets to secure debt; merge or consolidate
with another company; and make certain amendmeritetMaster Lease. The Notes also require thelsga maintain a specified ratio of
unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. These otsvana subject to a number of important and sicanit limitations, qualifications and
exceptions.

GLPI used the proceeds of the 2018 Notddlam 2023 Notes, together with borrowings underGhedit Facility, to make distributions
directly or indirectly, to Penn in partial excharfge the contribution of real property assets toREIn connection with the Spin-Off and to pay
related fees and expenses. A portion of the netgaas from the 2020 Notes was used to repay cemaiunts drawn under the revolving
portion of the Credit Facility and the remaining peoceeds were used to fund the Purging Distripuly GLPI of accumulated earnings and
profits on its real property assets in order to plymvith certain REIT qualification requirementshd proceeds of additional revolving loans
under the Credit Facility will be used for workingpital, to fund permitted dividends, distributicaared acquisitions, for general corporate
purposes and for any other purpose not prohibijetth® documentation governing the Credit Facility.

At December 31, 2013, the Company was mpl@mnce with all required financial covenants.
Outlook

Based on our current level of operatiors amticipated earnings, we believe that cash gestefeom operations and cash on hand,
together with amounts available under our seniseauared credit facility, will be adequate to meat anticipated debt service requirements,
capital expenditures (primarily related to the depment of the Austintown and Dayton, Ohio faodl#t), working capital needs and dividend
requirements. In addition, we expect a majoritpof future growth to come from acquisitions of gagnand other properties at reasonable
valuations to lease to third parties. If we conswtesignificant acquisitions in the future, ourttasquirements may increase significantly anc
we would likely need to raise additional proceddstigh a combination of either common equity andédt offerings. Our future operating
performance and our ability to service or refinaoae debt will be subject to future economic coietis and to financial, business and other
factors, many of which are beyond our control. $&8iek Factors—Risks Related to Our Capital Strugtwf this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for a discussion of the risk related to our capstalicture.
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Commitments and Contingencies
Contractual Cash Obligations
The following table presents our contractesh obligations at December 31, 2013:

Payments Due By Perioc
Total 2014 2015- 2016 2017- 2018 2019 and After
(in thousands)

Senior unsecured credit

facility

Principal $ 300,000 $ — 3 — $ 300,000 $ —

Interest(1) 61,95 11,32¢ 25,76¢ 24,86 —
4.375% senior subordinated

notes

Principal 550,00( — — 550,00( —

Interest 120,44¢ 24,19¢ 48,12t 48,12¢ —
4.875% senior subordinate

notes

Principal 1,000,001 — — — 1,000,001

Interest 341,38! 48,88¢ 97,50( 97,50( 97,50(
5.375% senior subordinated

notes

Principal 500,00 — — — 500,00

Interest 268,89 27,02« 53,75( 53,75( 134,37!
Purchase obligatior 1,37t 1,067 23¢ 70 —
Capital expenditure

commitments(2 34,48’ 34,48 — — —
Operating lease 46,45’ 1,01z 61€ 65C 44,17¢
Other liabilities reflected in

the Company's

consolidated balance

sheets(3 1,121 1,121 — — —

Total $ 3,226,12° $ 149,12 $ 225,99 $ 1,074,95 $ 1,776,05

(1) The interest rates associated with the variabkegamponents of our senior unsecured credit fadlié estimated,
reflected of forward LIBOR curves plus the spreadrd_IBOR of 150 basis points which became effexiivthe first
quarter of 2014. The contractual amounts to be paidur variable rate obligations are affected fgnges in market
interest rates and changes in our spreads whidbaaed on our leverage ratios. Future changeshrstios will impact
the contractual amounts to be paid.

(2)  The Company's current construction program for 2€dlis for capital expenditures of approximatel834 million, of
which the Company was contractually committed tenspapproximately $34.5 million at December 31,20#&lated to
the two Ohio racetracks scheduled to be opendukiffiat] of 2014.

) Primarily represents liabilities associatethwieward programs at our TRS Properties that earetbeemed for cash, free
play or services

Additionally, as part of the Spin-Off, GLBIcommitted to fund certain projects in developtre Penn, including a new gaming and
entertainment destination in Philadelphia, PA améhtegrated racing and gaming facility in Lawre@aunty, near Pittsburgh (the last of the
Category 1 sites in Pennsylvania). If Penn is setefor both projects, GLPI would provide real ésténancing in the form of a loan or lease
to $418.5 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had no off-balance sheet arrangement$ @ecember 31, 2013 and 2012.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We face market risk exposure in the fornmtdrest rate risk. These market risks arise fomdebt obligations. We have no international
operations. Our exposure to foreign currency flattns is not significant to our financial conditior results of operations.

GLPI's primary market risk exposure is it rate risk with respect to its indebtedness20850.0 million at December 31, 2013.
Furthermore, $2,050.0 million of our obligatione &ne Notes that have fixed interest rates withunirag dates ranging from five to ten years.
An increase in interest rates could make the fimgnof any acquisition by GLPI more costly as wasdlincrease the costs of its variable rate
debt obligations. Rising interest rates could &teit GLPI's ability to refinance its debt whemitatures or cause GLPI to pay higher interest
rates upon refinancing and increase interest expensefinanced indebtedness. GLPI may managesdgd) interest rate risks related to its
borrowings by means of interest rate swap agreesné&htP| also expects to manage its exposure teeisiteate risk by maintaining a mix of
fixed and variable rates for its indebtedness. Harethe REIT provisions of the Code substantiihit GLPI's ability to hedge its assets and
liabilities.

The table below provides information at Baber 31, 2013 about our financial instruments @natsensitive to changes in interest rates.
For debt obligations, the table presents notiomadunts maturing during the year and the relatedjinetd-average interest rates by maturity
dates. Notional amounts are used to calculatedhtractual payments to be exchanged by maturity aiatl the weighted-average interest rate
are based on implied forward LIBOR rates at Decar3tte2013.

Fair Value
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total 12/31/13

(in thousands)

Long-
term
debt:
Fixed
rate $ — $ — $ — $ — $550,00( $1,500,001 $2,050,001 $2,058,75!
Average
intere
rate 4.38% 5.04%

Variable

rate $ — $§ — $ — $ — $300,00( $ — $ 300,000 $ 294,75(
Average

intere

rate

() 5.02%

Q) Estimated rate, reflective of forward LIBOR plug tspread over LIBOR applicable to varierate borrowing

58




Table of Contents
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarie

We have audited the accompanying conselitlbilance sheets of Gaming and Leisure Propdriesand Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdasedl statements of income, changes in sharehoddprisy, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, ZDdBaudits also included the financial statemehedale listed in the index at Iltem 15(a).
These financial statements and schedule are thensthility of the Company's management. Our resjility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule basedraudiis.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éudbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform a @fuithe Company's internal Control over finangigborting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contra@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnixiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting thetents and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlebars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaiddecember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consadidasults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegioded December 31, 2013, in conformity with d&herally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial staternschedule, when considered in relation to tharfaial statements taken as a whole, present:
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

/SIERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 25, 2014
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

December 31

2013 2012

Assets
Real Estate Investments, 1 $ 2,010,30: $ —
Property and equipment, used in operations 139,12: 118,95«
Cash and cash equivalel 285,22: 14,56:
Prepaid expenst 5,98: 1,141
Deferred income taxe 2,22¢ 2,85¢
Other current asse 17,36° 1,00¢
Receivable from Penn National Gaming, It — 43,31¢
Goodwill 75,52: 75,52
Other intangible asse 9,571 9,571
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortizafi®1,270 at

December 31, 201 46,87 —

Other asset 17,04: 134
Total assets $ 2,609,23! $ 267,07!
Liabilities

Accounts payabl $ 2139 $ 251

Accrued expense 13,78 5,78

Accrued interes 18,05¢ —

Accrued salaries and wag 10,337 3,507

Gaming, property, and other tax 18,78¢ 1,13¢

Income taxe: 17,25¢ 11,53¢

Other current liabilitie: 12,91: 10¢

Long-term debt 2,350,001 —

Deferred income taxe 4,28 8,41

Total liabilities 2,466,81 30,74¢

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)
Shareholders' equity

Common stock ($.01 par value, 550,000,000 shartz®ared,

88,659,448 shares issued at December 31, : 887 —
Additional paic-in capital 3,651 71,35¢
Retained earning 137,89: 164,97:

Total shareholders' equi 142,42! 236,33(

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,609,233 $ 267,07!

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig

Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31
Revenues
Rental
Real estate taxes paid by tene
Total rental revenu
Gaming
Food, beverage and otr
Total revenue
Less promotional allowanci
Net revenue
Operating expense:
Gaming
Food, beverage and otF
Real estate taxe
General and administratiy
Depreciatior
Total operating expens
Income from operatior
Other income (expenses)
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Management fe
Total other expense
Income from operations before income taxe
Income tax provisiol
Net income
Earnings per common share:

Basic earnings per common sh
Diluted earnings per common shi

2013 2012 2011
$ 68,95 $ — 3 —
7,60: — —
76,55, — —
159,35.  202,58:  223,30:
12,35’ 15,63t 16,39¢
248,26(  218,21( 239,69
(6,13) (7,579 (7,819
242,12¢ _ 210,64: _ 231,88«
89,367 113,11 124,97
10,77¢ 13,11+ 13,66+
9,22( 1,59: 1,367
4326  2506¢  24,80¢
28,92: 14,09( 14,56¢
181,54 _ 166,97! _ 179,37
60,58:  43,66f 52,51
(19,25/) — —
1 2 4
(4,209 (6,320 (6,959
(23,450 (6,319 (6,959
37,12¢ ~ 37,35( 45 55¢
17,29¢ 14,43: 18,87¢
$ 1983( $ 2291¢ $ 26,68
$ 016 $ 021 $ 0.4
$ 017 $ 020 $ 027

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholdetsguity

(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock Ag(zj:tlitclflr;al Retained Sha:v—a%tgllders'
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Equity
Balance, December 31, 20 — 3 — $ 100,01 $ 115,37: $ 215,38
Cash contribution to pare — — (22,167 — (22,167
Net income — — — 26,68 26,68
Balance, December 31, 20 — — 77,85¢ 142,05! 219,91:
Cash contribution to pare — — (6,500 — (6,500
Net income — — — 22,91¢ 22,91¢
Balance, December 31, 20 — — 71,35¢ 164,97 236,33(

Contributions to Penn Nation:

Gaming, Inc., prior to spin-

off — — (3,387) (46,917 (50,300
Real estate assets and liabilit

contributed to GLPI from

Penn National Gaming, Inc

(See Note 1 88,601,63 88¢ 2,022,68 — 2,023,57.
Cash distribution to Penn

National Gaming, Inc. in

connection with Spi-Off — — (2,090,001 — (2,090,001
Stock option activity 57,81 1 2,621 — 2,622
Restricted stock activit — — 374 — 374
Net income — — — 19,83( 19,83(

Balance, December 31, 20 88,659,44 $ 887 $ 3,651 $ 137,89: $ 142,42¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteiements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
Operating activities
Net income $ 19,83( $ 22,91¢ $ 26,68«
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal
by operating activities
Depreciatior 28,92 14,09( 14,56¢
Amortization of debt issuance co. 1,27(C — —
Gain on sale of fixed asse (39 (142) (75)
Deferred income taxe (5,646 (88) (6,519
Charge for stoc-based compensatic 1,56¢ — —
(Increase) decreas
Prepaid expenses and other current a: (88%) 1,51: (1,249
Other asset (662) — 2
Increase (decreast
Accounts payabl 2,63¢ (260) (28¢)
Accrued expense 7,99¢ (45€) (180)
Accrued interes 17,21¢ — (4)
Accrued salaries and wag 2,131 (399 31z
Gaming, property and other tax @) (250) 14€
Income taxe: 5,71¢ (10,167) 23,39¢
Other current and noncurrent liabiliti 58¢ (2€) 44
Net cash provided by operating activit 80,63: 26,74« 56,84(
Investing activities
Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursem (12,199 (1,930 (5,13))
Capital maintenance expenditu (4,230 (3,260) (3,157
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 15z 38C 117
Net cash used in investing activiti (16,27%) (4,810) (8,177
Financing activities
Net advances to Penn National Gaming, | (3,59 (18,019 (27,379
Cash contributions to Penn National Gaming, | (3,389 (6,500 (22,16))
Cash distribution to Penn National Gaming, Inc. in
connection with Spi-Off (2,090,00) — —
Principal payments on debt obligation to Penn Neio
Gaming, Inc. — — (900
Proceeds from exercise of optic 1,431 — —
Proceeds from issuance of lotegm debt, net of issuan
costs 2,301,85: — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 206,30: (24,518 (50,436
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake 270,65¢ (2,589 (1,767
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 14,56 17,14¢ 18,91:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 28522 $ 1456: $ 17,14¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Business and Basis of Presentation

On November 15, 2012, Penn National Gamimg,("Penn") announced that it intended to puiEydan to separate the majority of its
operating assets and real property assets int@ptlicly traded companies including an operatingtgrand, through a tax-free spin-off of its
real estate assets to holders of its common arfdrped stock, a newly formed publicly traded restbée investment trust ("REIT"), Gaming
and Leisure Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") (the "SpinfQf

GLPI and subsidiaries (the "Company") wamiporated on February 13, 2013, as a wholly-ovauiidiary of Penn. In connection with
the Spin-Off, which was completed on November 1,2@®Penn contributed to GLPI through a series t&frival corporate restructurings
substantially all of the assets and liabilitiesoagsted with Penn's real property interests anbestate development business, as well as the
assets and liabilities of Hollywood Casino Batorug® and Hollywood Casino Perryville, which are redd to as the "TRS Properties," in a
tax-free distribution. The Company intends to etatits United States ("U.S.") federal income teturn for its taxable year beginning on
January 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT and the@ayntogether with an indirectly wholly-owned sidliery of the Company, GLP
Holdings, Inc., intend to jointly elect to treatthaof GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruidaes, and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a
"taxable REIT subsidiary” (a "TRS") effective oretfirst day of the first taxable year of GLPI aBRIT. As a result of the Spin-Off, GLPI
owns substantially all of Penn's former real propassets and leases back most of those assetand@t use by its subsidiaries, under a
master lease, a "triple-net" operating lease witindial term of 15 years with no purchase optifmiiowed by four 5 year renewal options
(exercisable by Penn) on the same terms and congifthe "Master Lease"), and GLPI also owns ardaips the TRS Properties through its
TRS.

Prior to the Spin-Off, GLPI and Penn endereo a Separation and Distribution Agreementsgtiorth the mechanics of the Spin-Off,
certain organizational matters and other ongoirigations of Penn and GLPI. Penn and GLPI or thespective subsidiaries, as applicable,
also entered into a number of other agreements farithe Spin-Off to provide a framework for thaetreicturing and for the relationships
between GLPI and Penn.

GLPI's primary business consists of acqgirfinancing, and owning real estate propertyedeased to gaming operators in "triple net"
lease arrangements. As of December 31, 2013, Gh&itfolio consisted of 21 gaming and related faes, including the TRS Properties and
the real property associated with 19 gaming aratedlIfacilities (including two properties under di®pment in Dayton, Ohio and Mahoning
Valley, Ohio) that are geographically diversifiezt@ss 13 states. GLPI expects to grow its portfioligpursuing opportunities to acquire
additional gaming facilities to lease to gamingrapers under prudent terms, which may or may nduie Penn.

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn alted its accumulated earnings and profits (as ihéted for U.S. federal income tax purposes)
for periods prior to the consummation of the Spiifiti@tween Penn and GLPI. In connection with itcgbn to be taxed as a REIT for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, GLPI declared a dindde its shareholders to distribute any accumdlatenings and profits relating to the real
property assets and attributable to any pre-REBFrs;ancluding any earnings and profits allocate@LPI in connection with the Spin-Off, to
comply with certain REIT qualification requiremeitise "Purging Distribution™). The Purging Distriiimn, which was paid on February 18,
2014, totaled $1.05 billion and was comprised shcand GLPI common stock. See Note 15 for furtle¢sits.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
1. Business and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The assets and liabilities of GLPI wereorded at their respective historical carrying valaethe time of the Spin-Off in accordance with
the provisions of Financial Accounting StandardsaiBlo"FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("9 505-60, "Spinoffs and Reverse
Spinoffs." The assets and liabilities contributedst_PI from Penn were as follows (in thousands):

Prepaid expenst $ 2,76¢€
Current deferred income tax ass 4,35¢
Property and equipment, r 2,024,57.
Other asset 16,24"
Accrued expense (5,65€)
Other current liabilitie! (12,219
Deferred income tax liabilitie (6,499

Net contributior $ 2,023,57.

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with generally accepted accounting piples requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities and disclosuieafingent assets and liabilities at the da
the financial statements, and the reported amafisvenue and expenses for the reporting periddsial results could differ from those
estimates.

2. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of GLPI and its subsidiaries. iggthi§icant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all cash balancesmhdly-liquid investments with original maturitied three months or less to be cash and cas
equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risks arise whetumber of operators, tenants, or obligors reladdtie Company's investments are engaged in
similar business activities, or activities in tlarge geographic region, or have similar economitufea that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations, including those to the @amy, to be similarly affected by changes in ecoraunditions. As of December 31, 2013,
substantially all of the Company's real estate grigs were leased to Penn, and all of the Compaastal revenues were derived from a
master lease defined below. Penn is a publiclyetlasbmpany that is subject to the informationatdilrequirements of the Securities Exchang
Act of 1934, as amended, and is required to filéopléc reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-Q with Securities and Exchange Commission.
Penn's net revenues were $2.9 billion for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012. Other thandh®ény's tenant concentration,
management believes the Company's portfolio wasoresbly diversified by geographical location andi bt contain any other significant
concentration of credit risks. As of December 3112 the Company's portfolio of 19 leased propemias diversified by location across 11
states.
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Financial instruments that subject the Canypto credit risk consist of cash and cash egeintaland accounts receivable.

The Company's policy is to limit the amoahtredit exposure to any one financial institatiand place investments with financial
institutions evaluated as being creditworthy, oshort-term money market and tax-free bond fundshvare exposed to minimal interest rate
and credit risk. At times, the Company has banlodip and overnight repurchase agreements thaedxederally-insured limits.

Accounts are written off when managemetgmeines that an account is uncollectible. Recegeoi accounts previously written off are
recorded when received. An allowance for doubtégioaints is determined to reduce the Company'svagieis to their carrying value, which
approximates fair value. The allowance is estimategkd on historical collection experience, specéview of individual customer accounts,
and current economic and business conditions.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets

Prepaid expenses consist of expendituregdods (other than inventories) or services bettoeegoods are used or the services are
received. These amounts are deferred and charggzbtations as the benefits are realized and piyn@msist of prepayments for insurance
and other contracts that will be expensed duriegstibsequent year. It also consists of admissiesmdad property taxes that were paid in
advance. Other current assets are items expectesirealized within twelve months of the balanoeesidate. Other current assets primarily
include accounts receivable and food and beveragmtory. Other assets are all items that are teng-in nature and primarily include
deferred compensation assets (see Note 7 for fulldtails) and a deposit for certain real estatédfallywood Casino Baton Rouge that should
close in 2014.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions aez=luo estimate the fair value of each class afiiiial instruments for which it is practicable
to estimate:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of the Company's cash arsth @guivalents approximates the carrying valub®iQompany's cash and cash equivalents,
due to the short maturity of the cash equivalefite Company maintained a higher level of cash ol fzd December 31, 2013 in order to func
the cash portion of its Purging Distribution. SemtéN15 for additional details.

Long-term Debt

The fair value of the senior notes and@emnsecured credit facility is estimated basedjwoted prices in active markets and as such is
Level 1 measurement as defined under ASC 820 YFaire Measurements and Disclosures."
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The estimated fair values of the Compafiyancial instruments are as follows (in thousands)

2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
December 31 Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivaler $ 285,22: $ 285,22 $ 14,56: $ 14,56.
Financial liabilities:
Long-term debt
Senior unsecured cred
facility 300,00t 294,75( — —
Senior note! 2,050,001 2,058,75I — —

Real Estate Investments

The Company records the acquisition of estte at cost, including acquisition and closiogts. The cost of properties developed by the
Company include costs of construction, propertgsainterest and other miscellaneous costs incalwedg the development period until the
project is substantially complete and availabledocupancy. The Company considers the period afdutenefit of the asset to determine the
appropriate useful lives. Depreciation is computsithg a straight-line method over the estimateduliiges of the buildings and building
improvements which are generally between 8 yeadd tgears.

The Company continually monitors events eincumstances that could indicate that the cagrgimount of the Company's real estate
investments may not be recoverable or realized.nNtigicators of potential impairment suggest that¢arrying value of real estate
investments may not be recoverable, the Compargsass the recoverability by estimating whetheiilitrecover the carrying value of its real
estate investments through its undiscounted futasé flows and the eventual disposition of the stment. In assessing the recoverability of
the carrying value, the Company must make assumgptiggarding future cash flows and other factdrthdse estimates or the related
assumptions change in the future, the Company raagdpired to record an impairment loss. The Comgaoups its Real Estate Investments
by tenant in evaluating impairment. If the Compaeyermines the carrying amount is not recoverafeguld recognize an impairment cha
equivalent to the amount required to adjust theyoag amount to its estimated fair value, calcudateaccordance with current GAAP fair
value provisions.

Property and Equipment used in operations

Property and equipment are stated at t¥sst,accumulated depreciation and represent assisy the Company's TRS operations and
certain corporate assets. Maintenance and repaitsiéither add materially to the value of the eseeappreciably prolong its useful life are
charged to expense as incurred. Gains or loss#®eatisposal of property and equipment are includete determination of income.
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Depreciation of property and equipmeneiorded using the straight-line method over thiefdhg estimated useful lives:

Land improvement 5to 15 yeal
Building and improvement 5 to 40 yeat
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 3 to 31 yeat

Leasehold improvements are depreciated thheeshorter of the estimated useful life of th@iavement or the related lease term.
The estimated useful lives are determireskt on the nature of the assets as well as th@&wors current operating strategy.

The Company reviews the carrying valug®property and equipment for possible impairmemémever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying valuenchsset may not be recoverable based on undiscbestienated future cash flows expected tc
result from its use and eventual disposition. Tdwdrs considered by the Company in performingabgessment include current operating
results, market and other applicable trends ariduakvalues, as well as the effect of obsolesceprseand, competition and other factors. In
estimating expected future cash flows for deterngnivhether an asset is impaired, assets are graipkd individual property level. In
assessing the recoverability of the carrying valgroperty and equipment, the Company must magenagtions regarding future cash flows
and other factors. If these estimates or the rlassumptions change in the future, the Companylreagquired to record an impairment loss
for these assets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2013, the Company had $#Bll#n in goodwill and $9.6 million in other intgible assets within its consolidated
balance sheet, resulting from the contribution oflyivood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood CasinmRéle from Penn in connection
with the Spin-Off.

Goodwill is tested annually, or more fregiheif indicators of impairment exist, for impaient by comparing the fair value of the
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge reporting unit tociéssrying amount. If the carrying amount exceed$aitsvalue in step 1 of the impairment
test, then step 2 of the impairment test is peréatito determine the implied value of goodwill.Hétimplied value of goodwill is less than the
goodwill allocated, an impairment loss is recogdize

In accordance with ASC 350, "Intangibles—e@will and Other," the Company considers its Holbpal Casino Perryville gaming license
as an indefinite-life intangible asset that doetsraquire amortization based on the Company's éutxpectations to operate this casino
indefinitely as well as the gaming industry's higtal experience in renewing these intangible asaeminimal cost with various state gaming
commissions. Rather, the Company's gaming licesytested annually, or more frequently if indicatofgmpairment exist, for impairment by
comparing the fair value of the recorded assdstoarrying amount. If the carrying amount of thédfinite-life intangible asset exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized.

The evaluation of goodwill and indefiniiéelintangible assets requires the use of estinatiest future operating results to determine the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit anditidefinite-lived intangible assets. The Company inmigke various assumptions and estimates
in performing its impairment testing. The impliedrfvalue includes estimates of future cash fldvet tire based on
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reasonable and supportable assumptions which esgree Company's best estimates of the cash #apscted to result from the use of the
assets including their eventual disposition. Charigeestimates, increases in the Company's castpfal, reductions in transaction multiples,
changes in operating and capital expenditure assomnspor application of alternative assumptions definitions could produce significantly
different results. Future cash flow estimates yetheir nature, subjective and actual results difigr materially from the Company's
estimates. If the Company's ongoing estimatestafdéucash flows are not met, the Company may havedord additional impairment charges
in future accounting periods. The Company's estémaf cash flows are based on the current regylatwd economic climates, as well as
recent operating information and budgets. Thesmasts could be negatively impacted by changesderfl, state or local regulations,
economic downturns, or other events.

Forecasted cash flows (based on the Con'ganyual operating plan as determined in the iogwarter) can be significantly impacted by
the local economy in which the Company's reportingj operates. For example, increases in unemployna¢es can result in decreased
customer visitations and/or lower customer spend/isé. In addition, new legislation which appr@vgaming in nearby jurisdictions or further
expands gaming in jurisdictions has the impachofgéasing competition for the property which geteraill have a negative effect on its
profitability once competitors become established @&ertain level of cannibalization occurs absantverall increase in customer visitations.
Lastly, increases in gaming taxes approved by stgpalatory bodies can negatively impact forecasteth flows.

Assumptions and estimates about future tashlevels and multiples are complex and subjextiThey are sensitive to changes in
underlying assumptions and can be affected byiatyaof factors, including external factors, sushirrdustry, geopolitical and economic
trends, and internal factors, such as changesribuginess strategy, which may reallocate capitdlrasources to different or new opportun
which management believes will enhance the Compawgrall value but may be to the detriment ofé{sorting unit.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs that are incurred &yCibmpany in connection with the issuance of debtiaferred and amortized to interest exp
using the effective interest method over the catiid term of the underlying indebtedness.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes net inconteadinther non-owner changes in shareholderstgduring a period, including but not
limited to, unrealized gains and losses on equtusties classified as available-for-sale and aliwed fair value adjustments on certain
derivative instruments. Since the Company did meehany non-owner changes in shareholders' equityé years ended December 31, 2013
2012 and 2011, comprehensive income for the yeatsdeDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was equivaleet income for those time
periods.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes ao@ance with ASC 740, "Income Taxes" ("ASC 7400der ASC 740, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the diffees
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between the financial statement carrying amountisth@ tax bases of existing assets and liabil#resare measured at the prevailing enacted
tax rates that will be in effect when these differes are settled or realized. ASC 740 also reqthegsdeferred tax assets be reduced by a
valuation allowance if it is more likely than nbit some portion or all of the deferred tax assétsiot be realized. The realizability of the
deferred tax assets is evaluated by assessin@lhation allowance and by adjusting the amounhefdllowance, if any, as necessary. The
factors used to assess the likelihood of realinadie the forecast of future taxable income.

ASC 740 also creates a single model toedduncertainty in tax positions, and clarifiesabeounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an enterprise's financial statemieyntsrescribing the minimum recognition thresholdva position is required to meet before
being recognized in an enterprise's financial statés. It also provides guidance on derecognititeasurement, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesamd transition. The Company did not have anymaicetax positions for 2013, 2012 and
2011.

The Company is required under ASC 740 soldse its accounting policy for classifying intgrand penalties, the amount of interest and
penalties charged to expense each period, as svéleacumulative amounts recorded in the combirdahice sheets. If and when they occur,
the Company will classify any income tax-relatedglées and interest accrued related to unrecodniebenefits in taxes on income within
the consolidated statements of income. During #a@s/ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, tm@&ty did not recognized any intel
and penalties, net of deferred taxes.

The Company intends to elect on its U.8efal income tax return for its taxable year beigigron January 1, 2014 to be treated as a |
and the Company, together with an indirectly whallyned subsidiary of the Company, GLP Holdings,,limtend to jointly elect to treat each
of GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana Casino Cruises, land Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable RE&lsidiary" effective on the first day of
the first taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. The Compiatends to continue to be organized and to dpénsa manner that will permit the
Company to qualify as a REIT. To qualify as a RERE Company must meet certain organizational gedational requirements, including a
requirement to distribute at least 90% of its ahRET taxable income to shareholders. As a REi€,Eompany generally will not be subject
to federal income tax on income that it distribuasgividends to its shareholders. If the Compaiig fo qualify as a REIT in any taxable year,
it will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, imting any applicable alternative minimum tax, antétxable income at regular corporate inc
tax rates, and dividends paid to its shareholdenddwnot be deductible by the Company in computingble income. Any resulting corporate
liability could be substantial and could materialyd adversely affect the Company's net incomenahdash available for distribution to
shareholders. Unless the Company was entitleditg tander certain Internal Revenue Code provisjdins Company also would be
disqualified from re-electing to be taxed as a RfélTthe four taxable years following the year ihigh it failed to qualify to be taxed as a
REIT.

The TRS Properties are able to engagetivitis resulting in income that would be not dgfyahg income for a REIT. As a result, certain
activities of the Company which occur within its $Rroperties are subject to federal and state indames.
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Revenue Recognition and Promotional Allowances

The Company recognizes rental revenue tmmants, including rental abatements, lease incenind contractual fixed increases
attributable to operating leases, on a straigliasis over the term of the related leases whigectability is reasonably assured. Contingent
rental income is recognized once the lessee achibeespecified target. Recognition of rental ineaommences when control of the facility
has been given to the tenant.

As of December 31, 2013, all but two of @@mpany's properties were leased to a subsidfaPgion under the Master Lease. The
obligations under the Master Lease are guarantg&ehbn and by all Penn subsidiaries that occupyoaedate the facilities leased under the
Master Lease, or that own a gaming license, otbense or other material asset necessary to opamgtportion of the facilities. A default by
Penn or its subsidiaries with regard to any faciltll cause a default with regard to the entiretfwdio.

The rent structure under the Master Leatie Renn includes a fixed component, a portion bicl is subject to an annual 2% escalator if
certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are metaacmwmponent that is based on the performancesdfttilities, which is adjusted, subject to
certain floors (i) every 5 years by an amount equdl% of the average change to net revenues tdalities under the Master Lease (other
than Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casiiotedo) during the preceding five years, andnignthly by an amount equal to 20%
of the change in net revenues of Hollywood Casintu@bus and Hollywood Casino Toledo during the pdéimg month. In addition to rent, .
properties under the Master Lease with Penn atgrestjto pay the following: (1) all facility maimance, (2) all insurance required in
connection with the leased properties and the lessitonducted on the leased properties, (3) taxesilon or with respect to the leased
properties (other than taxes on the income ofdhsedr) and (4) all utilities and other servicesessary or appropriate for the leased properties
and the business conducted on the leased properties

As of December 31, 2013, the future minimmemtal income from the Company's properties undercancelable operating leases was a:
follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31

2014 $ 375,60:
2015 375,60:
2016 375,60:
2017 376,10:
2018 368,31:
Thereaftel 3,240,76!
Total $ 5,111,97

For the year ended December 31, 2013, Gdignized $6.7 million in contingent rental incofream Hollywood Casino Columbus and
Hollywood Casino Toledo related to clause (ii) he fparagraph above.

Additionally, in accordance with ASC 60Revenue Recognition," the Company records revenuehé real estate taxes paid by its
tenants on the leased properties under the Mastsd with an
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offsetting expense in real estate taxes withircthresolidated statement of income as the Compangdraduded it is the primary obligor under
the Master Lease.

Gaming revenue mainly consists of videtelgtgaming revenue as well as to a lesser exabie game and poker revenue. Video lottery
gaming revenue is the aggregate net differencedsmtwyaming wins and losses, with liabilities reénegah for funds deposited by customers
before gaming play occurs, for "ticket-in, tickeitbcoupons in the customers' possession, ancctouals related to the anticipated payout of
progressive jackpots. Progressive slot machineghadontain base jackpots that increase at a pssiye rate based on the number of coins
played, are charged to revenue as the amount gdi¢kpots increases. Table game gaming revente iaggregate of table drop adjusted for
the change in aggregate table chip inventory. Tdime is the total dollar amount of the currenayins, chips, tokens, outstanding counter
checks (markers), front money that are removed fitmrlive gaming tables. Additionally, food and beage revenue is recognized as services
are performed.

The following table discloses the comporaitgaming revenue within the consolidated statemef income for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

(in thousands)
Video lottery, net of cash incentiv $ 138,80: $ 189,80¢ $ 210,34
Table game 18,09¢ 11,89: 12,33
Poker 2,45:¢ 882 62C
Total gaming revenu $ 159,35. $ 202,58: $ 223,30:

Gaming revenue is recognized net of cealas incentives in accordance with ASC 605-5@yv&Rue Recognition—Customer Payment
and Incentives." The Company records certain satentives and points earned in point-loyalty pesgs as a reduction of revenue.

The retail value of food and beverage ahermservices furnished to guests without chargecisided in gross revenues and then deducte
as promotional allowances. The amounts includgat@motional allowances for the years ended Dece®bg2013, 2012 and 2011 are as
follows:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Food and beverag $ 597C $ 6,80¢€ $ 6,971

Other 167 767 842

Total promotional allowance $ 6,137 $ 757 $ 7,81«

The estimated cost of providing such complitary services, which is primarily included imdp beverage, and other expense, for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 &véomes:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Food and beverac $ 2,907 $ 3,31¢ $ 3,19¢

Other 86 384 40¢

Total cost of complimentary servic $ 2,99 $ 3,70 $ 3,60
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Gaming and Admission Taxes

For the TRS Properties, the Company isestltp gaming and admission taxes based on grassgaevenues in the jurisdictions in
which it operates. The Company primarily recognigasiing tax expense based on the statutorily redyiercentage of revenue that is reqt
to be paid to state and local jurisdictions in stetes where or in which wagering occurs. At Hothpa Casino Baton Rouge, the gaming
admission tax is based on graduated tax ratesCohgpany records gaming and admission taxes atdhg@&ny's estimated effective gaming
tax rate for the year, considering estimated taxghiming revenue and the applicable rates. Suirthatst are adjusted each interim period. If
gaming tax rate changes during the year, such esasag applied prospectively in the determinatiogaming tax expense in future interim
periods. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 29d 2011, these expenses, which are recordethwgéiming expense in the combined
statements of income, totaled $71.6 million, $94iBion and $105.4 million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates earnings per stBRS") in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings Paar8H Basic EPS is computed by
dividing net income applicable to common stock iy weighted-average number of common shares odistaduring the period, excluding
net income attributable to participating securifi@ststanding restricted stock awards). Diluted E€flects the additional dilution for all
potentiallydilutive securities such as stock options and uleeesestricted shares. Basic and diluted EPS foyé#ars ended December 31, 2
and 2011 were retroactively restated for the nunob&LPI basic and diluted shares outstanding imatety following the Spin-Off. The
Company's share counts were also retroactivelgtegsto include the shares issued as part of trgeMistribution.

The following table reconciles the weightagtrage common shares outstanding used in thelatdn of basic EPS to the weighted-
average common shares outstanding used in thelatadeuof diluted EPS for the years ended Decertie2013, 2012 and 2011 (in
thousands):

2013 2012 2011

Determination of share
Weighte-average common shares outstanc 110,61° 110,58: 110,58:
Assumed conversion of dilutive employee

stock-based award 4,92¢ 4,702 4,702
Assumed conversion of restricted st 324 31¢ 31¢
Diluted weighted-average common shares

outstanding 115,86! 115,60. 115,60:
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The following table presents the calculati basic and diluted EPS for the Company's comstock for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands, expect per share date

Calculation of basic EPS:

Net income $ 19,83( $ 2291¢ $ 26,68/
Less: Net income allocated to participating sems (75) (86) (107)
Net income attributable to common sharehol $ 19,75t $ 22,83: $ 26,58:
Weighte-average common shares outstant 110,61 110,58: 110,58:
Basic EPS $ 0.1¢ $ 021 $ 0.24
Calculation of diluted EPS:

Net income $ 19,83 $ 2291¢ $ 26,68
Diluted weighte-average common shares outstanc 115,86! 115,60: 115,60:
Diluted EPS $ 017 $ 0.2C $ 0.2:

There were no outstanding options to pwsetshares of common stock during the years endeeniiter 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 that
were not included in the computation of diluted BieBause they were antidilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

In connection with the Spin-Off, each oaitgting option and cash settled stock appreciatgtt ('SAR") with respect to Penn common
stock outstanding on the distribution date was eded into two awards, an adjusted Penn optiorea@dP| option, or, in the case of the
SARs, an adjusted Penn SAR and a GLPI SAR. Thesad@gnt preserved the aggregate intrinsic valubebptions and SARs. Additionally,
connection with the Spin-Off, holders of outstamgiastricted stock and phantom stock units ("PSW&h respect to Penn common stock
became entitled to an additional share of resttisteck or PSU with respect to GLPI common stoclefich share of Penn restricted stock or
PSU held.

The adjusted options and SARs, as welhaséstricted stock and PSUs, otherwise remairestity) their original terms, except that for
purposes of the adjusted Penn awards (includimigiarmining exercisability and the post-terminaoercise period), continued service with
GLPI following the distribution date shall be deehwontinued service with Penn; and for purposab®GLPI awards (including in
determining exercisability and the pdstmination exercise period), continued servicénwienn following the distribution date shall berded
continued service with GLPI.

The Company accounts for stock compensatimmter ASC 718, "Compensation-Stock Compensatishith requires the Company to
expense the cost of employee services receivexcimage for an award of equity instruments basethegrant-date fair value of the award.
This expense is recognized ratably over the retgussirvice period following the date of grant. Taie value for stock options is estimated at
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes optiaoipy model. There were no stock option grants dedrin 2013.

Additionally, the cash-settled PSUs engthaployees to receive cash based on the fair wdltree Company's common stock on the
vesting date. These PSUs are accounted for abtliabvards and
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are re-measured at fair value each reporting penntitithey become vested with compensation expbes®g recognized over the requisite
service period in accordance with ASC 718-30, "Cengation-Stock Compensation, Awards Classifiedialilities."

In addition, the Company's SARs are accedifir as liability awards since they will be sadtin cash. The fair value of these awards is
calculated during each reporting period and esgohasing the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

See Note 10 for further information relatedhe treatment of the unrecognized compensatipense at the time of the Sy related tc
awards held by GLPI employees.

Segment Information

Consistent with how the Company's Chief @pieg Decision Maker reviews and assesses the @oyrgpfinancial performance, the
Company has two reportable segments, GLP Capital,(a wholly-owned subsidiary of GLPI through whi@LPI owns substantially all of its
assets) ("GLP Capital") and the TRS Properties.GhE Capital reportable segment consists of thecl@aeal property and represents the
majority of the Company's business. The TRS Pragseréportable segment consists of Hollywood CaBiewyville and Hollywood Casino
Baton Rouge. See Note 11 for further informatiothwespect to the Company's segments.

Statements of Cash Flows

The Company has presented the consolidddéeiments of cash flows using the indirect methddgch involves the reconciliation of net
income to net cash flow from operating activities.

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is dependent on Penn (incluttingubsidiaries), who is the lessee of substiyal of the Company's properties pursuant
to the Master Lease and accounts for a signifipartion of its revenues. The inability or unwillingss of Penn to meet its subsidiary's rent
obligations and other obligations under the Maktase could materially adversely affect the Comfsalysiness, financial position or results
of operations, including the Company's ability symlividends to its shareholders as required totag its status as a REIT. For these reas
if Penn were to experience a material adverse teffe@s gaming business, financial position outessof operations, the Company's business,
financial position or results of operations coulsbebe materially adversely affected.

The Company's operations are also depermfeits continued licensing by state gaming comiwissof its gaming tenants and operators.
The loss of a license could have an adverse effeé@ture results of operations. Additionally, iempany is dependent on the local market ir
which its gaming tenants and operators operata &gnificant number of its patrons and revenuescdnomic conditions in these areas
deteriorate or additional gaming licenses are aedid these markets, the Company's results of tpasacould be adversely affected.
Furthermore, the Company is dependent upon a gjalohéng tax structure in the locations that its g@ntenants and operators operate in. An!
change in the tax structure could have an advéfset ®n future results of operations.
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4. Real Estate Investments

Real estate investments, net, represemstiments in 19 properties and is summarized &sifs]

December 31 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Land and improvemen $ 38258 $ —
Building and improvement 2,050,53. —
Construction in progres 61,67 —

Total property and equipme 2,494,79. —
Less accumulated depreciati (484,489 —
Property and equipment, r $ 2,010,30: $ —

In connection with the Spin-Off, Penn cdnited $1.96 billion of real estate investmentd,afeccumulated depreciation which was
recorded at Penn's historical carrying value. Gorsbn in progress primarily represents two depaient projects which the Company is
responsible for the real estate construction costisiely Hollywood at Dayton Raceway and Hollywoo#lahoning Valley Race Track which
Penn anticipates opening in the fall of 2014.

5. Property and Equipment used in operations

Property and equipment used in operatioet,consists of the following:

December 31 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Land and improvemen $ 27,58t $ 28,19!
Building and improvement 115,88t 109,24t
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 101,28t 76,08¢
Construction in progres 203 87

Total property and equipme 244,96! 213,61¢
Less accumulated depreciati (105,84:) (94,66:)
Property and equipment, r $ 139,12: $ 118,95:

6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt is as follows:

December 31 2013
(in thousands)
Senior unsecured credit facili $ 300,00t
$550 million 4.375% senior notes due November Z 550,00t
$1,000 million 4.875% senior notes due NovembelO: 1,000,00i!
$500 million 5.375% senior notes due November 2 500,00
$ 2,350,00!
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The following is a schedule of future minim repayments of long-term debt as of Decembe2@13 (in thousands):

2014 $ —
2015 —
2016 —
2017 —
2018 850,00(
Thereafte! 1,500,001
Total minimum payment $ 2,350,001

On October 28, 2013, GLP Capital enteréa énnew five year senior unsecured credit fac(litye "Credit Facility"), consisting of a
$700 million revolving credit facility and a $300Ilon Term Loan A facility. The interest rates @dyte on the loans are, at our option, equ
either a LIBOR rate or a base rate plus an apgkcaiargin, which ranges from 1.0% to 2.0% per anfemi.IBOR loans and 0.0% to 1.0%
per annum for base rate loans, in each case, dieygemdl the credit ratings assigned to the Crediflfa At December 31, 2013, the applica
margin was 1.75% for LIBOR loans and 0.75% for lrase loans, which was reduced to 1.50% and 0.588pectively, in the first quarter of
2014. See Note 15 for further details. In addititve, Company is required to pay a commitment fetherunused portion of the commitments
under the revolving facility at a rate that ranfresn 0.15% to 0.35% per annum, depending on thditoratings assigned to the Credit Facility.
At December 31, 2013, the commitment fee rate wa@%, which was reduced to 0.25% in the first qeraof 2014. GLP Capital is not
required to repay any loans under the Credit Rgi@liior to maturity on October 28, 2018. GLP Cabihay prepay all or any portion of the
loans under the Credit Facility prior to maturitithwut premium or penalty, subject to reimbursenafrany LIBOR breakage costs of the
lenders. The Credit Facility is guaranteed by GLPI.

The Company's Credit Facility had a gragstanding balance of $300 million at December281.,3, consisting of the $300 million Term
Loan A facility. No balances were outstanding om tvolving credit facility at December 31, 2013.

The Credit Facility contains customary aosets that, among other things, restrict, subjecettain exceptions, the ability of GLPI and its
subsidiaries, to grant liens on their assets, inmegbtedness, sell assets, make investments, emgagquisitions, mergers or consolidations o
pay certain dividends and other restricted paymdrtte Credit Facility contains the following finaakccovenants, which are measured
quarterly on a trailing four-quarter basis: a maximtotal debt to total asset value ratio, a maxinsemior secured debt to total asset value
ratio, a maximum ratio of certain recourse dehirtencumbered asset value and a minimum fixed cleargerage ratio. In addition, GLPI is
required to maintain a minimum tangible net wo@h.PI is required to maintain its status as a REiTand after the effective date of its
election to be treated as a REIT, which electiorPGibtends to make on its U.S. federal income &wrn for its first full fiscal year following
the Spin-Off. GLPI is permitted to pay dividendst®shareholders as may be required in order iataia REIT status, subject to the absence
of payment or bankruptcy defaults. GLPI is alsawyitted to make other dividends and distributionisjsct to pro forma compliance with the
financial covenants and the absence of defaults.dredit Facility also contains certain customdfiyraative covenants and events of default.
Such events of default include the occurrencedfange of control and termination
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of the Master Lease (subject to certain replacemghts). The occurrence and continuance of antesfediefault under the Credit Facility will
enable the lenders under the Credit Facility teelrate the loans, and terminate the commitmemtsetnder.

On October 30 and 31, 2013, the Companypteted offerings of $2,050 million aggregate prpatiamount of three series of new senior
notes issued by two of GLPI's wholly-owned subsidi(the "Issuers"): $550 million of 4.375% Seriimtes due 2018 (the "2018 Notes");
$1,000 million of 4.875% Senior Notes due 2020 (2&20 Notes"); and $500 million of 5.375% Seniatds due 2023 (the "2023 Notes," |
collectively with the 2018 Notes and the 2020 Nptls "Notes"). The 2018 Notes mature on Novemb@018 and bear interest at a rate of
4.375% per year. The 2020 Notes mature on Novethli#20 and bear interest at a rate of 4.875% @ar. fhe 2023 Notes mature on
November 1, 2023 and bear interest at a rate @58Bper year. Interest on the Notes is payable ap Mand November 1 of each ye
beginning on May 1, 2014.

The Company may redeem the Notes of angssat any time, and from time to time, at a redigongprice of 100% of the principal
amount of the Notes redeemed, plus a "makele" redemption premium described in the indemntwverning the Notes, together with accr
and unpaid interest to, but not including, the repgon date, except that if Notes of a series edeemed 90 or fewer days prior to their
maturity, the redemption price will be 100% of gréncipal amount of the Notes redeemed, togeth#r adcrued and unpaid interest to, but
including, the redemption date. If GLPI experienaahange of control accompanied by a declineerctldit rating of the Notes of a partict
series, the Company will be required to give hadsrthe Notes of such series the opportunity Halseir Notes of such series at a price equal
to 101% of the principal amount of the Notes ofteseries, together with accrued and unpaid intéoestut not including, the repurchase date.
The Notes also are subject to mandatory redempgiguirements imposed by gaming laws and regulations

The Notes are guaranteed on a senior urestbasis by GLPI. The Notes are the Issuers' senigecured obligations and rapéri passu
in right of payment with all of the Issuers' senimiebtedness, including the Credit Facility, aadisr in right of payment to all of the Issuers'
subordinated indebtedness, without giving effeatditateral arrangements.

The Notes contain covenants limiting theubss' ability to: incur additional debt and ussartiassets to secure debt; merge or consolidate
with another company; and make certain amendmentetMaster Lease. The Notes also require theldsga maintain a specified ratio of
unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. These atsvana subject to a number of important and dicanit limitations, qualifications and
exceptions.

GLPI used the proceeds of the 2018 Notdstlam 2023 Notes, together with borrowings underGhedit Facility, to make distributions
directly or indirectly, to Penn in partial excharfge the contribution of real property assets toREIn connection with the Spin-Off and to pay
related fees and expenses. A portion of the netgaas from the 2020 Notes was used to repay cemadunts drawn under the revolving
portion of the Credit Facility and the remainind peoceeds were used to fund the Purging Distriloutily GLPI of accumulated earnings and
profits on its real property assets in order to ptymvith certain REIT qualification requirementshd& proceeds of additional revolving loans
under the Credit Facility will be used for workingpital, to fund permitted dividends, distributicared acquisitions, for general corporate
purposes and for any other purpose not prohibijetth® documentation governing the Credit Facility.
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At December 31, 2013, the Company was mpl@mnce with all required financial covenants.
7. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

Pursuant to a Separation and Distributigne&@ment between Penn and GLPI, any liability mgi$tom or relating to legal proceedings
involving the businesses and operations of Peealsproperty holdings prior to the Spin-Off (othlean any liability arising from or relating to
legal proceedings where the dispute arises fronopleeation or ownership of the TRS Properties) éllretained by Penn and Penn will
indemnify GLPI (and its subsidiaries, directordjaars, employees and agents and certain othdecefzarties) against any losses it may incur
arising from or relating to such legal proceedings.

The Company is subject to various legal athahinistrative proceedings relating to personjirias, employment matters, commercial
transactions, and other matters arising in the aboourse of business. The Company does not betietehe final outcome of these matters
will have a material adverse effect on the Compmaoghsolidated financial position or results ofrggpiens. In addition, the Company mainte
what it believes is adequate insurance coverafgttoer mitigate the risks of such proceedings. deer, such proceedings can be costly, time
consuming, and unpredictable and, therefore, narasse can be given that the final outcome of swobeedings may not materially impact
the Company's financial condition or results ofragiens. Further, no assurance can be given thairtount or scope of existing insurance
coverage will be sufficient to cover losses aridimgn such matters.

Operating Lease Commitments

As part of the Spin-Off, Penn assigned k&Gvarious leases on the property acquired in eotion with the Spin-Off. The following is a
description of some of the more significant leasetiacts that Penn assigned to GLPI. Total rexiaéese under these agreements was
$0.4 million for the year ended December 31, 20#3i¢h covers the period subsequent to the Spird@xi).

One of Penn's subsidiaries entered ine@mad agreement for the land utilized in connedtiitim the operations of a casino in Biloxi,
Mississippi. The lease commenced March 3, 1994isafat a term of 99 years. The annual rental paymare increased every 5 years by
fifteen percent and will be $0.2 million for 20IPhe next reset period is in March 2014.

One of Penn's subsidiaries entered int@mad agreement for the land utilized in connedtitim the operations of a casino in Tunica,
Mississippi. The lease commenced on October 113 8t a five year initial term and nine five yeanewals at the tenant's option. The least
agreement has an annual fixed rent provision, disase@n annual revenue-sharing provisions, whsatgual to the result obtained by
subtracting the fixed rent provision from 4% of ggaevenues.

One of Penn's subsidiaries has an operktasg with the City of Bangor which covers thenpement casino facility that opened on July 1
2008. Under the lease agreement, there is a fixetprovision which GLPI is responsible for whicltals $0.1 million per year. The final term
of the lease, which commenced with the openingpefiermanent facility, is for an initial term oftéien years, with three ten-year renewal
options.
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The future minimum lease commitments retatd the base lease rent portion of noncancetgideating leases at December 31, 2013 ar
as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31

2014 $ 1,01
2015 314
2016 30z
2017 31¢
2018 334
Thereaftel 44,17¢
Total $ 46,45

In addition, for the TRS Properties, thar@any is liable under numerous operating leasesdoipment and other miscellaneous assets,
which expire at various dates through 2015. Taatal expense under these agreements was $1.dm#tl.6 million and $1.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctasge.

Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Company's current construction progf@an2014 calls for capital expenditures of approaiaety $137.4 million, of which the
Company was contractually committed to spend apprately $34.5 million at December 31, 2013, reldtethe two Ohio racetracks
scheduled to be opened in the fall of 2014.

Additionally, as part of the Spin-Off, GLBIcommitted to fund certain projects in developtrat Penn, including a new gaming and
entertainment destination in Philadelphia, PA amihtegrated racing and gaming facility in Lawre@zunty, near Pittsburgh (the last of the
Category 1 sites in Pennsylvania). If Penn is setefor both of these projects, GLPI would providel estate financing in the form of a loat
lease up to $418.5 million for these two projects.

Purchase obligations

The Company has obligations to purchasewamgoods and services totaling $1.4 million at&eber 31, 2013, of which $1.1 million
will be incurred in 2014.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a profit-sharing plader the provisions of Section 401(k) of the in& Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
which covers all eligible employees. The plan eaalparticipating employees to defer a portion efrthalary in a retirement fund to be
administered by the Company. The Company makescaationary match contribution of 50% of employedsttive salary deferrals, up to a
maximum of 6% of eligible employee compensatione Titatching contributions for the profit-sharingrpfar all years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 were $0.2 million.

The Company maintains a non-qualified defitcompensation plan that covers most managemdrtdther highly-compensated
employees. The plan allows the participants torjefe a pre-tax basis,
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a portion of their base annual salary and/or taeitual bonus, and earn tax-deferred earnings ce teferrals. The plan also provides for
matching Company contributions that vest over e¥igar period. The Company has established a Tnudtfransfers to the Trust, on a peric
basis, an amount necessary to provide for its otisgefuture liabilities with respect to particigaseferral and Company contribution amounts.
The Company's matching contributions for the qodified deferred compensation plan for the yesded December 31, 2013, 2012 and :
were $0.3 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 milliorespectively. The Company's deferred compensatidnility, which was included in other
current liabilities within the consolidated balarsteset, was $12.8 million at December 31, 201 3ralades primarily to balances contributed to
use as part of the Spin-Off related to our exeeutifficers that were previously employed by Penn.

Labor Agreements

Some of Hollywood Casino Perryville's eny@es are currently represented by labor unions.SHagarers Entertainment and Allied Tr
Union represents 128 of Hollywood Casino Perry\glleEmployees under an agreement that expires inu&ghb2020. Additionally, Local No. :
United Food and Commercial Workers and United ltrialsService Transportation Professional and Goewemt Workers of North America
represent certain employees under collective bairgaagreements that expire in 2020, neither otWiépresents more than 50 of Hollywood
Casino Perryville's employees. If the Company failsenew or modify existing agreements on satisfgaerms, this failure could have a
material adverse effect on Hollywood Casino Petlg/gi business, financial condition and resultsgdrations. There can be no assurance tha
Hollywood Casino Perryville will be able to maimahese agreements.

8. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arevigied for the effects of temporary differences kew the tax basis of an asset or liability and its
reported amount in the consolidated balance shE&ktse temporary differences result in taxablesnludtible amounts in future years. The
components of the Company's deferred tax assethadnilities are as follows:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Accrued expense $ 2,228 $ 2,85¢

Net deferred tax asse 2,22¢ 2,85¢
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme (3,459 (7,840

Intangibles (823) (577)

Net deferred tax liabilitie (4,287) (8,417%)
Net: $ (2,059 $ (5,559
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The provision for income taxes chargedgerations for years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2@11 was as follows:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Current tax expens

Federal $ 19,42¢ $ 12,21¢ $ 21,04¢

State 3,61 2,30z 4,341
Total curren 22,94: 14,51¢ 25,38¢
Deferred tax (benefit) expen

Federal (7,629 64 (6,780

State 1,97¢ (152) 26€
Total deferrec (5,64¢) (88) (6,519
Total provision $ 17,29¢ $ 14,43. $ 18,87¢

The following tables reconcile the statytfederal income tax rate to the actual effectn@ime tax rate for the years ended December 3

2013, 2012 and 2011:

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011

Percent of pretax incon
U.S. federal statutory income tax ri 35.(% 35.% 35.(%
State and local income tax 10.4£% 3.C% 6.€%
Nondeductible transaction co: 7.5% 0.C% 0.C%
REIT conversion benef (5.9% 0.C% 0.C%
Other permanent differenc 0.% 0.1% 0.2%
Other miscellaneous iten (0.2% 0.52% (0.9%

46.6% 38.€% 41.{%

Year ended December 31 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Amount based upon pretax incol

U.S. federal statutory income t $ 12,99« $ 13,07¢ $ 15,94¢
State and local income tax 3,84( 1,12¢ 3,01¢
Nondeductible transaction co: 2,79:¢ — —
REIT conversion benef (1,959 — —
Permanent difference (26¢) 30 72
Other miscellaneous iten (104) 202 (15¢)

$ 17,29t $ 14,43. $ 18,87¢

9. Dividends

On February 18, 2014, GLPI made the Pur@isgribution of $1.05 billion, of which approximey $210.0 million was made in cash with

the remainder in GLPI common stock to distribute
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the accumulated earnings and profits related toahkproperty assets and attributable to anyR¥EF years, including any earnings and prc
allocated to GLPI in connection with the Spin-Off.addition, on February 18, 2014, the CompanyarBof Directors declared its first
quarterly dividend. Shareholders of record on MatcB014 will receive $0.52 per common share, pyab March 28, 2014. See Note 15 for
further details.

10. Stock-Based Compensation

The Company can issue up to 5,147,059 sleir€ommon Stock under the 2013 Long Term Incenffempensation Plan (the "2013
Plan") that was approved by shareholders on Oct2®e2013. The 2013 Plan provides for the Comparigsue stock options (incentive anc
non-qualified), stock appreciation rights, resetstock awards, phantom stock units and othetyequcash based awards to employees. Any
director, employee or consultant shall be eligtbleeceive such awards. No awards were grantedruhe@013 Plan as of December 31, 2013

In connection with the Spibff of GLPI, employee stock options and cash sgtleck appreciation rights of Penn were convetttealugh
the issuance of GLPI employee stock options andi@hBh settled stock appreciation rights and anstidient to the exercise prices of their
Penn awards. The number of options and cash settield appreciation rights, subject to and the @sgerprice of each converted award was
adjusted to preserve the same intrinsic value®fthards that existed immediately prior to the Spifi These awards are not counted against
the 2013 Plan limit mentioned above.

Holders of outstanding restricted stock msand cash settled phantom stock unit awardsvestan additional share of restricted stoc
cash settled phantom stock unit awards in GLPI comstock at the Spin-Off so that the intrinsic eatf these awards were equivalent to
those that existed immediately prior to the Spif-Of

The unrecognized compensation at the tifitkeoSpin-Off related to both Penn and GLPI'sIstmations and restricted stock awards held
by GLPI employees will be amortized to expense dherawards' remaining vesting periods. As of Ddmamn31, 2013, there was $6.8 million
and $4.7 million of total unrecognized compensatiost for stock options and restricted stock awalspectively, that will be recognized o
the grants remaining weighted average vesting gafid..68 years and 3.05 years, respectively. f®@year ended December 31, 2013, the
Company recognized $1.6 million of compensationeeige associated with these awards.

The following tables contain information stock options issued and outstanding for the gaded December 31, 2013 as well as
restricted shares:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic Value
Option Shares Price Term (in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( — 3 —
Options transferred on Sj-Off date 10,396,88 24 3¢
Exercisec (57,81) 24.7¢
Cancelec (625) 20.8¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 10,338,45 $ 24.3¢ 3.15 % 270,22:

83




Table of Contents

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)

10. Stock-Based Compensation (Continued)

Exercise Price Range Total
$9.32 to $22.90 to $29.19 to $9.32 to
$22.41 $29.10 $47.40 $47.40
Outstanding options
Number outstandin 4,049,44. 3,555,57 2,733,43 10,338,45
Weightedaverage remaining contracti
life (years) 1.9¢ 3.6¢ 4.1¢€ 3.1t
Weightec-average exercise pris $ 19.5¢ $ 25.1¢ $ 30.41 $ 24.3¢
Exercisable options
Number outstandin 3,621,04! 2,805,38. 1,504,711 7,931,13i
Weighte-average exercise pril $ 19.3¢ $ 24.6¢ $ 31.3¢ $ 23.5:
Number of
Award
__Shares
Outstanding at December 31, 2( —
Amounts transferred in connection with S-Off 419,06
Releasel —
Cancelec —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 419,06°

The Company had 7,931,136 stock optionswieae exercisable at December 31, 2013 with altethaverage exercise price of $23.53
which had an intrinsic value of $213.8 million. Thggregate intrinsic value of stock options exextiduring 2013 was $1.3 million. The

Company issues new authorized common shares sfysstibck option exercises and plans to do the Samestricted stock lapses once they
occur.

Additionally, there was $9.4 million of &htunrecognized compensation cost at December@1R, 2vhich will be recognized over the
awards remaining weighted average vesting peridds# years, for Penn and GLPI PSUs held by GLRileyees that will be cash-settled by
GLPI. For the year ended December 31, 2013, thepaagnrecognized $1.2 million of compensation expassociated with these awards.

In addition, there was $0.5 million of tot@mrecognized compensation cost at December 313,2¢hich will be recognized over the gre
remaining weighted average vesting period of 1&dry, for Penn and GLPI SARs held by GLPI employeatswill be cash-settled by GLPI.
For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Comemaognized $0.2 million of compensation expensedatal with these awards.

See Note 15 for a discussion on the imphtiie Purging Distribution on the Company's congagion awards.
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11. Segment Information

The following tables present certain infatian with respect to the Company's segments.detgnent revenues between the Company's

segments were not material in any of the periodsemted below.

GLP TRS
Capital(1) Properties Total
(in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 20
Net revenue 76,557 $ 165,57 $ 242,12
Income from operatior 34,33 26,24¢ 60,58:
Interest expens 19,25« — 19,25«
Income from operations before incom

taxes 15,07¢ 22,04° 37,12¢
Income tax provisiol 8,461 8,82¢ 17,29¢
Net income 6,61- 13,21¢ 19,83(
Depreciatior 14,89¢ 14,027 28,92
Capital expenditure 13,04: 3,38¢ 16,42¢
For the year ended December 31, 20
Net revenue — $ 210,64: $ 210,64
Income from operatior — 43,66¢ 43,66¢
Interest expens — — —
Income from operations before incom

taxes — 37,35( 37,35(
Income tax provisiol — 14,43 14,43:
Net income — 22,91¢ 22,91¢
Depreciatior — 14,09( 14,09(
Capital expenditure — 5,19( 5,19(
For the year ended December 31, 20
Net revenue — $ 231,88 $ 231,88«
Income from operatior — 52,51 52,51
Interest expens — — —
Income from operations before incom

taxes — 45,55¢ 45,55¢
Income tax provisiol — 18,87¢ 18,87t
Net income — 26,68 26,68
Depreciatior — 14,56¢ 14,56¢
Capital expenditure — 8,28¢ 8,28¢
Balance sheet at December 31, 2013
Total asset 2,379,24. 229,99t 2,609,23!
Balance sheet at December 31, 2012
Total asset — 267,07! 267,07!

(1) GLP Capital operations commenced November 1, 20t®mnection with the Spin-Off. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, all revenues in the GLP Cap&ginent were attributable from Penn under the tefrtise
Master Lease. Results included transaction costscaged with the Sp-Off of $13.5 million.
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The following table summarizes the quayteelsults of operations for the years ended Deceibe?013 and 2012:

Fiscal Quarter
First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share date

2013

Net revenue $ 42,64¢ $ 46,07: $ 39,630 $ 113,77¢
Income from operatior 6,811 9,09( 5,66¢ 39,01¢
Net income 3,21¢ 4,69¢ 2,681 9,23¢

Earnings per common sha
Basic earnings per common

share $ 00¢£ $ 00 $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per common
share $ 00 $ 00 $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢
2012
Net revenue $ 66,90¢ $ 60,25: $ 45,82 $ 37,65¢
Income from operatior 16,50° 14,47 8,15¢ 4,53¢
Net income 8,66¢ 7,61¢ 4,53( 2,10¢

Earnings per common sha
Basic earnings per common

share $ 008 $ 007 $ 0.0 8 0.0z
Diluted earnings per common
share $ 007 $ 007 $ 00 8 0.0z

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Camyp had rental revenue related to the Master Ledseh became effective November 1, 20
of $76.6 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Camp incurred transaction costs of $13.5 millionoassted with the Spin-Off.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Camp incurred depreciation expense of $14.8 millielated to the real property assets
transferred to GLPI as part of the Spin-Off.

In October 2013, GLP Capital entered inteew five year senior unsecured credit facility aochpleted offerings of $2,050 million
aggregate principal amount of new senior notesirguhe fourth quarter of 2013, the Company inadiirderest expense of $19.3 million
related to its new borrowings.

13. Pre-Spin Transactions with Penn

Before the Spin-Off, Hollywood Casino BatRouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville had a coapmpverhead assessment with Penn,
whereby Penn provided various management servicesrisideration of a management fee equal to 3febfevenues. The Company incur
and paid management fees of $4.2 million, $6.3ioniland $7.0 million for the years ended Decemle2B13 (before the Spidif), 2012 anc
2011, respectively. In connection with the completof the Spin-Off, the management fee agreemegttgden Penn and Hollywood Casino
Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville werenfaated.

Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywdgakino Perryville had cumulative net advances 8t&#illion at December 31, 2012.
The advances were the result of operating castsfigemerated by
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Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casirorfille in excess of intercompany allocationstsas the management fee agreen
As part of the Spin-Off, these amounts were fongive

14. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informaiin

Prior to the Spin-Off, the Company's Holbwd Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Pdteypaid no federal income taxes
directly to tax authorities and instead settledra#rcompany balances with Penn. These settlenreeitgled, among other things, the share of
the income taxes allocated by Penn to Hollywoodr@eBaton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryvillee ®mounts paid to Penn for
Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casierorf/ille's allocated share of federal income taxas $9.4 million, $13.2 million and
$15.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2032 and 2011, respectively. Their first fedémabme taxes payment directly to tax
authorities will occur in early 2014. Hollywood @as Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino Perryville mathte income tax payments directly
to the state authorities of $1.6 million, $2.8 ioitl and $3.3 million for the years ended Decemiegr2813, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Cash
paid for interest was $0.8 million for the year eddecember 31, 2013 and no interest was paithéoyeéars ended December 31, 2012 and
2011.

15. Subsequent Events

In January 2014, the Company completectygiisition of the real estate assets associatithd Casino Queen in East St. Louis,
lllinois for $140 million. Simultaneously with trecquisition, GLPI also provided Casino Queen wi##a million, five year term loan at 7%
interest, pre-payable at any time, which, togethién the sale proceeds, completely refinanced aticed all of Casino Queen's outstanding
long-term debt obligations. GLPI leased the prgpbeck to Casino Queen on a triple net basis fpr@apmately $14 million in rent per year.
The initial lease term is 15 years, with an optiomenew for four successive five year terms.

Upon the declaration of the Purging Disttibn, GLPI options and GLPI SARs were adjusted manner that preserved both the pre-
distribution intrinsic value of the options and S&\&nd the pre-distribution ratio of the stock ptizexercise price that existed immediately
before the Purging Distribution. Additionally, updaclaration of the Purging Distribution, holdef$ad.PI PSUs were credited with the spe:
dividend, which will accrue and be paid, if appbts on the vesting date of the related PSU. HaldéGLPI restricted stock will be entitled to
receive the special dividend with respect to sedtricted stock on the same date or dates thaipigial dividend is payable on GLPI common
stock to shareholders of GLPI generally.

On February 18, 2014, GLPI made the Pur@isgribution, which totaled $1.05 billion and wesmprised of cash and GLPI common
stock, to distribute the accumulated earnings aafitp related to the real property assets anibatable to any pre-REIT years, including any
earnings and profits allocated to GLPI in connettigth the Spin-Off. Shareholders were given theawpto elect either an all-cash or atbck
dividend, subject to a total cash limitation of $21illion. Of the 88,691,827 shares of common stoatstanding on the record date,
approximately 54.3% elected the cash distributioth @proximately 45.7% elected a stock distribubomade no election. Shareholders
electing cash received $4.358049 plus 0.19574tiaddl GLPI shares per common share held on therdettate. Shareholders electing stock
received 0.309784 additional GLPI shares per comshane held on the record date. Stock dividends waid based on the volume weighted
average price for the
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiarig
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
15. Subsequent Events (Continued)

three trading days ended February 13, 2014 of $82.per share. Approximately 22.0 million sharesenssued in connection with this
dividend payment.

Additionally, on February 18, 2014, the Gmany's Board of Directors declared its first qudytdividend of $0.52 per common share
payable on March 28, 2014 to shareholders of regoriflarch 7, 2014.

In the first quarter of 2014, the appli@biargin for LIBOR loans and base rate loans waisaed to 1.50% and 0.50%, respectively, anc
the commitment fee rate on the unused portion@ttdmmitments under the revolving facility was regtlito 0.25%.
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SCHEDULE IlI
REAL ESTATE ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31, 2013
(in thousands)

Gross Amount at which Carried at

Initial Cost to Company Cost Close of Period
Capitalized

Ownership Subsequen Accumulated
Building/ to Building/
Description Location  Percentage Land Improvements Total Acquisition Land Improvements Total(1) Depreciation

Original
Date of

Construction /
Renovation Acquired

Date

Life on
which
Depreciation

in Latest
Income
Statement i<

Computed
@

Hollywood

Casino Lawrenceburg

Lawrenceb' IN 100%$ 15,25. $ 342,39!$ 357,64« $ —$ 1525 % 342,39!$ 357,64 $ 71,97¢
Hollywood

Casino

Aurora Aurora, IL 10C% 4,937 98,37¢ 103,31t — 4,937 98,37¢ 103,31t 44,79¢ 1993/2002/201 11/1/201:

Hollywood
Casino

Joliet Joliet, IL 100% 19,21« 101,10- 120,31t — 19,21« 101,10- 120,31t 33,38(1992/2003/201 11/1/201:

Argosy

Casino

Alton Alton, IL 10C% — 6,46: 6,462 — — 6,462 6,462 3,411
Hollywood

Casino

Toledo Toledo, OH 10C% 12,00 144,09: 156,09° — 12,00¢ 144,09 156,09° 8,44(
Hollywood

Casino

Columbus Columbus, OF 10C% 38,24( 188,54: 226,78 62 38,26¢ 188,57¢ 226,84! 8,62¢
Hollywood

Casino at

Charles Charles Town

Town Race WV 10(% 35,10: 233,06¢ 268,17: — 35,10 233,06¢ 268,17: 84,89°
Hollywood

Casino at

Penn

National

Race

Course Grantville, PA 10C% 25,50( 161,81(  187,31( —  25,50( 161,81(  187,31( 41,29¢
M Resort Henderson, N' 10(% 66,10« 126,68¢ 192,79: — 66,10« 126,68¢ 192,79: 11,70¢
Hollywood

Casino

Bangor Bangor, ME 10(% 12,88: 84,257 97,14( — 12,88 84,257 97,14( 16,62
Zia Park

Casina Hobbs, NM 10%  9,31% 38,947 48,26( —  9,31: 38,947 48,26( 11,14
Hollywood

Casino Bay Bay St. Louis,

St. Louis  MS 10(% 59,38t 87,35:  146,74( — 59,38¢ 87,35:  146,74( 32,897 1992/2006/201 11/1/201:

Argosy

Casino

Riverside Riverside, MC 10C% 23,46¢ 143,30: 166,76¢ —  23,46¢ 143,30: 166,76¢ 38,387

Hollywood

Casino

Tunica Tunica, MS 10% 4,63¢ 42,03: 46,66¢ — 4,63« 42,03: 46,66¢ 18,78

Boomtown

Biloxi Biloxi, MS 10% 3,42t 63,08 66,50¢ — 3,42t 63,08! 66,50¢ 30,72(

Argosy

Casino

Sioux City Sioux City, IA 100% 3 11,92( 11,92% — 3 11,92( 11,92% 11,14¢

Hollywood

Casino Maryland

St. Louis  Heights, MO 100% 44,19¢ 177,060 221,26: — 44,19 177,060 221,26: 16,25(

Hollywood at

Dayton

Raceway Dayton, OH 10C% 3,211 — 3,211 — 3,211 — 3,211 —

Hollywood at

Mahoning

Valley Ract Youngstown,

Track OH 10C% 5,68: — 5,68 — 5,68¢ — 5,68: —
$382,55! $  2,050,49 $2,433,05 $ 62$382,58: $ 2,050,53.$2,433,11. $ 484,48

(1) The total cost for federal income tax purposehefroperties listed above was $2.44 billion.

2) Estimated useful lives range from 1 to 41 years.
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1997/200¢

1991/199¢

2012

2012

1997/201C

2008/201c
2009/2012

2008/201z

2005

1994/2007

1994/201z

1994/200¢

1993/200¢

1997/201z

N/A

N/A

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:
11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

11/1/201:

31

30

31

31

31

31

31

31
30

31

31

40

37

31

15

13

N/A

N/A
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Real Estate:
Balance at the beginning of the per
Amounts contributed from Sg-Off
Improvements
Balance at the end of the ye

Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at the beginning of the per
Amounts contributed from Sg-Off
Depreciation expens
Balance at the end of the ye
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company's management, under the sigo@mand with the participation of our principakextive officer and principal financial
officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the amy's disclosure controls and procedures, astsuchis defined under Rule 13a-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8#18s amended (the "Exchange Act"), as of Deceibhe2013, which is the end of the
period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10rKdesigning and evaluating the disclosure contals$ procedures, management
recognized that any controls and procedures, neemaow well-designed and operated, can providg mrdsonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, and management wasreshto apply its judgment in evaluating the costfit relationship of possible controls
and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our ipahexecutive officer and principal financial afr concluded that the Company's disclosur
controls and procedures were effective as of Deeer®@b, 2013 to ensure that information requiredealisclosed by the Company in reports
we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i)aeted, processed, summarized, evaluated and rdpagepplicable, within the time periods
specified in the United States Securities and EixghaCommission's rules and forms and (ii) accuradland communicated to the Company's
management, including the Company's principal etxezwfficer and principal financial officer, asfappriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We currently rely on financial informatiand resources from Penn National Gaming, Inc. toaga certain aspects of our business and
report our results under a transition servicesegent. Since our Spin-Off from Penn National Gaming., we have added new corporate ant
oversight functions such as Board of Director anestor relations. Other than those noted aboeegthave been no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Bange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that oeliduring the fiscal quarter ended
December 31, 2013, that have materially affecteds® reasonably likely to materially affect, onteirnal control over financial reporting.

This Annual Report does not include a repbmanagement's assessment regarding internabtoner financial reporting or an
attestation report of our company's registeredipw@acounting firm due to a transition period ebtiled by the rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission for new public companies.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item comirg directors is hereby incorporated by refereiocthe Company's definitive proxy statement
for its 2014 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (th@12 Proxy Statement"), to be filed with the U.Sci8#ies and Exchange Commission
within 120 days after December 31, 2013, pursuafdgulation 14A under the Securities Act. Inforimratrequired by this item concerning
executive officers is included in Part | of thisiural Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information called for in this itembereby incorporated by reference to the 2014 P8igjement.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

The information called for in this itembereby incorporated by reference to the 2014 P8igjement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information called for in this itemhereby incorporated by reference to the 2014 P&iayement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information called for in this itemhereby incorporated by reference to the 2014 P&iayement.

92




Table of Contents

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements. The following is a litree Consolidated Financial Statements of the Gmy@mnd its subsidiaries and
supplementary data filed as part of Item 8 hereof:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&13012
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@icember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholegusty for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2022011
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeailed December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
2. Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule lll. Real Estate and Accumulated Deprieciats of December 31, 2013 for GLPI.
3. Exhibits, Including Those Incorporated by Refere.

The exhibits to this Report are listed on the aquamying index to exhibits and are incorporated inevg reference or are filed
as part of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

GAMING AND LEISURE PROPERTIES, INC

By: /sl PETER M. CARLINO

Peter M. Carlino
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Office

Dated: March 25, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidoelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title. Date
/s PETER M. CARLINO Chairman of the Board, Chief Execut
Officer and Director (Principal March 25, 2014
Peter M. Carlinc Executive Officer,
/s/ WILLIAM J. CLIFFORD Senior Vice President Finance and C
Financial Officer (Principal Financial =~ March 25, 2014
William J. Clifford Officer)
/s/ DAVID A. HANDLER
Director March 25, 2014
David A. Handlel
/s/ E. SCOTT URDANG
Director March 25, 2014
E. Scott Urdanq
/s/ JOSEPH W. MARSHALL
Director March 25, 2014
Joseph W. Marsha
/sl WESLEY R. EDENS
Director March 25, 2014

Wesley R. Eden

94




Table of Contents

Exhibit

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibit

2.1

3.1

3.2

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

Separation and Distribution Agreement by and betwPenn National Gaming, Inc. and
Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. dated Noverhp2013. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's current report on F8-K filed on November 7, 2013

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation afrg and Leisure Properties, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to therany's current report on Form 8-K filed
on October 15, 2013

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Gaming and Leistopédeties, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company's currepbrt on Form 8-K filed on October 15,
2013).

Indenture, dated as of October 30, 2013, among Gaital, L.P. and GLP Financing

I, Inc., as Issuers, Gaming and Leisure Properties, as Parent Guarantor, and Wells F:
Bank, National Association, as Trustee. (Incorpeadiy reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Company's current report on Fori-K filed on November 1, 2013

Officer's Certificate of GLP Capital, L.P. and GEancing Il, Inc., dated as of October 30,
2013, establishing the 2018 Notes and the 2023aN@tecorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's current report on F8-K filed on November 1, 2013

Officer's Certificate of GLP Capital, L.P. and GElancing Il, Inc., dated as of October 31,
2013, establishing the 2020 Notes. (Incorporatetelgrence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Compal
current report on Form-K filed on November 1, 2013

Investor Rights Agreement by and among Gaming agisuce Properties, Inc. and
FIF V PFD LLC dated as of November 1, 2013. (Inoogted by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company's current report on For-K filed on November 5, 2013

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct80e2013, by and among GLP

Capital, L.P., GLP Financing Il, Inc., Gaming angidure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and the othiai purchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2018 Notes. (Incorporated by reteréo Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
current report on Form-K filed on November 1, 2013

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct80e2013, by and among GLP

Capital, L.P., GLP Financing Il, Inc., Gaming angidure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and the othial purchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2023 Notes. (Incorporated by reteréo Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
current report on Form-K filed on November 1, 2013

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Oct8tef013, by and among GLP

Capital, L.P., GLP Financing Il, Inc., Gaming angidure Properties, Inc. and Merrill Lynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and the othiai purchasers named therein, with
respect to the 2020 Notes. (Incorporated by reteréo Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's
current report on Form-K filed on November 1, 2013

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2013 ngn@l_P Capital, L.P., as successor-by-
merger to GLP Financing, LLC, each lender from timé&ime party thereto and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent. (Incaigal by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's current report on Fori-K filed on November 1, 2013

Master Lease by and among GLP Capital L.P. and Penant LLC dated November 1,
2013. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Company's current report on Form 8-
K filed on November 7, 2013
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Exhibit

Description of Exhibit

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

14.1

*

21.1
23.T°

31.1

31.7°

32.1°

32.7

101

Tax Matters Agreement dated as of November 13 2§1and among Penn National
Gaming, Inc. and Gaming and Leisure Properties,(Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's current report omfré-K filed on November 7, 2013

Transition Services Agreement dated November 13 2¥land among Penn National
Gaming, Inc. and Gaming and Leisure Properties,(Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's current report omk&-K filed on November 7, 2013

Employee Matters Agreement by and between PenmidtGaming, Inc. and Gaming and
Leisure Properties, Inc. (Incorporated by referemndexhibit 10.4 to the Company's current
report on Form -K filed on November 7, 2013

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. 2013 Long Tiereentive Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to tler@any's current report on Form S-8 filed
on October 31, 2013

Code of Business Conduct. (Incorporated by refereéa&Exhibit 14.1 to the Company's
current report on Form-K filed on October 15, 2013

Subsidiaries of the Registra
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registé?ablic Accounting Firm

CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or-18da) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or-18da) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.

CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3%s Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of The Sarban« Oxley Act of 2002

CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3%s Adopted Pursuant to Section 906
of The Sarban« Oxley Act of 2002

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Raiion S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2013 and 2012, (i) the didased Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011thgiiConsolidated Statements of Cha
in Shareholders' Equity for the years ended Dece®be2013, 2012 and 2011, (iv) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, and (v) the notes to the Consolidated FirsuStatements, tagged as blocks of t

# Compensation plans and arrangements for execudivesthers.

* Filed herewith
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inca Pennsylvania corporation)

State or Other
Jurisdiction of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation
Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. (d/b/a HollywoodiGafaton Rouge Louisiana
Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc (d/b/a Hollywood Casinaripéille). Maryland
GLP Capital Partners, LL Pennsylvanii
GLP Capital, L.P. Pennsylvanii
GLP Holdings, Inc. Pennsylvanii
GLP Financing I, LLC Delaware
GLP Midwest Properties, LL! Delaware
RY Newco, LLC Louisiana

GLP Financing Il, Inc. Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statement:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-192@Ertaining to the 2013 Long Term Incentive Congation Plan;

of our report dated March 25, 2014, with respech®consolidated financial statements and schezfuBaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.
and Subsidiaries included in this Annual Reportrifrd0-K) of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. Suatbsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 25, 2014
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
I, Peter M. Carlino, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ksafming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affdétte registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
€)) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 25, 2014 /s/ PETER M. CARLINO

Name Peter M. Carlinc
Title: Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
[, William J. Clifford, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Ksafming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omdtéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))5¢r the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéfe, or is reasonably likely to materially affdétte registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

€)) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ WILLIAM J. CLIFFORD
Date: March 25, 201

Name: William J. Clifford
Title: Chief Financial Officel
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Gagnand Leisure Properties, Inc. (the "Company"Fonm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as filed with the U.S. Securdies$ Exchange Commission on the date hereof (tepdR"), I, Peter M. Carlino, Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmBection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A@®2\J.S.C. Section 1350 that, to my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as amen
and

2. The information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operati
of the Company.

/sl PETER M. CARLINO

Peter M. Carlino
Chief Executive Officer
March 25, 201«
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002,
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of Gagnand Leisure Properties, Inc. (the "Company"Fonm 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013 as filed with the U.S. Securdies$ Exchange Commission on the date hereof (tepdR"), I, William J. Clifford, Chief

Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A@®J.S.C. Section 1350 that, to my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934, as amen
and

2. The information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operati
of the Company.

/s/ WILLIAM J. CLIFFORD

William J. Clifford
Chief Financial Officer
March 25, 201«
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